
City of Port Orchard Council Meeting Agenda 
December 19, 2023 

 6:30 p.m. 

Pursuant to the Open Public Meetings Act, the City Council is conducting its public 
meeting in the Council Chambers at City Hall. Members of the public may view and 
provide public comment during the meeting in person at City Hall, via the online 
platform zoom (link below), or via telephone (number below). The public may also view 
the meeting live on the City’s YouTube channel. 

Remote access 
Link: https://us02web.zoom.us/J/88552837936 

Zoom Meeting ID: 885 5283 7936 
Zoom Call-In: 1 253 215 8782 

Guiding Principles 
• Are we raising the bar?
• Are we honoring the past, but not living in the past?
• Are we building connections with outside partners?
• Is the decision-making process positively impacting diversity, equity, and

inclusion?

1. CALL TO ORDER
A. Pledge of Allegiance

2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA

3. CITIZENS COMMENTS
(Please limit your comments to 3 minutes for items listed on the Agenda and that are not for a 
Public Hearing. Please keep your comments respectful and no personal attacks. This is a 
comment period and not a question-and-answer session. When recognized by the Mayor, please 
state your name for the official record. If you are attending remotely via telephone, enter *9 
from your keypad to raise your hand. 

4. CONSENT AGENDA
(Approval of Consent Agenda passes all routine items listed below, which have been distributed 
to each Councilmember for reading and study. Consent Agenda items are not considered 
separately unless a Councilmember so requests. In the event of such a request, the item is 
returned to Business Items.) 

A. Approval of Vouchers and Electronic Payments
B. Approval of Payroll and Direct Deposits
C. Adoption of a Resolution Approving an Agreement with Puget Sound

Energy for an Energy Conservation Grant (Ryan) Page 4
D. Approval of Amendment No. 2 to Contract No. 001-15 with Aspect

Consulting, LLC for Marina Mart/Vlist Property Environmental Services
(Ryan) Page 16

E. Approval of Amendment No. 12 to Contract No. 066-20 with Rice Fergus
Miller, Inc. for the Community Events Center Project (Bond) Page 24

F. Adoption of a Resolution Approving a Contract with OpenSquare for
Furniture Installation and Design Services (Ryan) Page 38

Mayor: 
Rob Putaansuu 
Administrative Official 

Councilmembers: 
Mark Trenary (Mayor Pro-Tempore) 
E/D & Tourism Committee, Chair   
Utilities/Sewer Advisory Committee 
Transportation Committee 
KRCC-alt 

 

Shawn Cucciardi  
Finance Committee 
E/D & Tourism Committee 
Lodging Tax, Chair  

Fred Chang 
Economic Development & Tourism Committee 
Land Use Committee 
Transportation Committee 

Jay Rosapepe  
Finance Committee,  
Land Use Committee 
KRCC, PSRC-alt, PSRC Transpol-alt, KRCC Transpol-
alt, KRCC Planpol-alt,  

John Clauson 
Finance Committee, Chair 
Utilities/Sewer Advisory Committee 
Kitsap Public Health District-alt 

Cindy Lucarelli  
Festival of Chimes & Lights Committee, Chair 
Utilities/Sewer Advisory Committee, Chair 
Kitsap Economic Development Alliance 

Scott Diener 
Land Use Committee, Chair 
Transportation Committee 

Department Directors: 
Nicholas Bond, AICP  
Development Director 

Denis Ryan 
Public Works Director 

Tim Drury 
Municipal Court Judge 

Noah Crocker, M.B.A.  
Finance Director 

Matt Brown 
Police Chief 

Brandy Wallace, MMC, CPRO  
City Clerk 

Meeting Location: 
Council Chambers, 3rd Floor 
216 Prospect Street 
Port Orchard, WA 98366 

Contact us: 
(360) 876-4407 
cityhall@portorchardwa.gov 

https://us02web.zoom.us/J/88552837936


     
Please turn off cell phones during meeting and hold your questions for staff until the meeting has been adjourned. 

The Council may consider other ordinances and matters not listed on the Agenda, unless specific notification period is required. 
Meeting materials are available on the City’s website at: www.portorchardwa.gov or by contacting the City Clerk’s office at (360) 876-4407. 

December 19, 2023, Meeting Agenda                                                                    Page 2 of 3 

5. PUBLIC HEARING 
A. Ordinance Approving the First Amendment to the McCormick Communities Development Agreement 

for Transportation (Bond) Page 117 
 

6. BUSINESS ITEMS 
A. Adoption of an Ordinance Approving the First Amendment to the McCormick Communities 

Development Agreement (Bond) Page 119 
B. Adoption of an Ordinance Amending the 2023-2024 Biennial Budget Including Exhibit A 

Personnel (Crocker) Page 137 
C. Adoption of an Ordinance Authorizing the Positions of Principal Planner, Human Resources Analyst, 

GIS/Asset Management Coordinator and Establishing General Duties and Qualifications (Lund) Page 
146 

D. Second Reading and Adoption of an Ordinance Approving a Franchise Agreement with the City of 
Bremerton (Bond) Page 153 

E. Adoption of a Resolution Confirming Mayoral Appointments to Boards, Committees and Commissions 
Boards (Wallace) Page 169 

F. Adoption of a Resolution Authorizing the Purchase of a Portion of Kitsap County Tax Parcel No. 342401-
4-027-2008 (Freeman) for the Pottery Sidewalk Extension & Road Project (Ryan) Page 173 

G. Adoption of a Resolution Authorizing the Purchase of a Portion of Kitsap County Tax Parcel No. 342401-
4-023-2002 (Magneson) for the Pottery Sidewalk Extension & Road Project (Ryan) Page 183 

H. Adoption of a Resolution Declaring Intent to be Reimbursed for Capital Expenditures from a Future 
Borrowing (Crocker) Page 193 

I. Approval of an Amendment No. 3 to Contract No. 048-23 with Lincoln Construction, Inc. for the City 
Hall Renovations Project (Ryan) Page 195 

J. Approval of the November 21, 2023, City Council Work Study Session Meeting Minutes Page 255 
K. Approval of the November 28, 2023, City Council Meeting Minutes Page 259 

 
7. DISCUSSION ITEMS (No Action to be Taken) 

 
8. PRESENTATION 

A. Recognition of Outgoing Councilmembers 
 

9. REPORTS OF COUNCIL COMMITTEES 
 

10. REPORT OF MAYOR 
 

11. REPORT OF DEPARTMENT HEADS 
 

12. CITIZEN COMMENTS 
(Please limit your comments to 3 minutes for any items not up for Public Hearing. When recognized by the Mayor, please state 
your name for the official record. If you are attending remotely via telephone, enter *9 from your keypad to raise your hand.) 
 

13. EXECUTIVE SESSION: Pursuant to RCW 42.30.110, the City Council may hold an executive session. The topic(s) and the 
session duration will be announced prior to the executive session. 

 
14. CITY COUNCIL GOOD OF THE ORDER 
 
15. ADJOURNMENT 

http://www.portorchardwa.gov/


     
Please turn off cell phones during meeting and hold your questions for staff until the meeting has been adjourned. 

The Council may consider other ordinances and matters not listed on the Agenda, unless specific notification period is required. 
Meeting materials are available on the City’s website at: www.portorchardwa.gov or by contacting the City Clerk’s office at (360) 876-4407. 

December 19, 2023, Meeting Agenda                                                                    Page 3 of 3 

 
COMMITTEE MEETINGS Date & Time Location 

Economic Development and Tourism  TBD, 2024; 9:30am Remote Access 

Utilities  TBD, 2024; 5:00pm Remote Access 

Finance TBD, 2024 5:00pm Remote Access 

Transportation TBD, 2024; 4:30pm Remote Access 

Festival of Chimes & Lights December 18, 2023; 3:30pm Remote Access 

Land Use  TBD, 2024; 4:30pm Remote Access 

Lodging Tax Advisory  TBD, 2024 City Hall with Remote Access 

Sewer Advisory  February 21, 2024; 6:30pm West Sound Utility* 

Outside Agency Committees Varies Varies 

 

http://www.portorchardwa.gov/


 
City of Port Orchard 
216 Prospect Street, Port Orchard, WA 98366 
(360) 876-4407 • FAX (360) 895-9029 
 

 
Agenda Staff Report 

 
Agenda Item No.: Consent Agenda 4C Meeting Date: December 19, 2023 

Subject: Adoption of a Resolution Approving an  Prepared by: Denis Ryan 
 Agreement with Puget Sound Energy for   Public Works Director 
 an Energy Conservation Grant    Atty Routing No: 366922-0009 
  Atty Review Date: 12/13/2023 

 

Summary: The City of Port Orchard endeavors to conserve energy resources and has incorporated 
conservation measures into the renovation of its City Hall.  The City has received a grant from Puget 
Sound Energy (PSE) as an incentive for utilizing conservation measures.  Under PSE’s Electric Schedule 
253, Gas Schedule 253, Electric Schedule 83, and Gas Schedule 183 as currently in effect and on file 
with the Washington Utilities and Transportation Commission (collectively, “Tariffs”), PSE offers grants 
for certain conservation measures installed or implemented at facilities that receive electric or natural 
gas service from PSE. The incentive-based grant would be paid to the City over a period of five years, 
and based on the conservation measures installed and implemented by the City during that period.  A 
total amount of up to $171,870 would be paid to the City over this five year period. 

Recommendation: Staff recommends that the City Council authorize the Mayor to Execute a 
Conservation Grant Agreement with Puget Sound Energy. 

Relationship to Comprehensive Plan:  Chapter 7.3 – Non-City Managed Utilities 

Motion for Consideration: I move to adopt a Resolution authorizing the Mayor to Execute a 
Conservation Grant Agreement with Puget Sound Energy. 

Fiscal Impact:  There is no local match required. The grant is for an amount up to $171,870, based on 
incentive measures met during the five year process. 

Alternative: Do not accept Grant and provide alternative direction. 

Attachment: Resolution, PSE Conservation Grant Agreement 
 

Page 4 of 263



 

RESOLUTION NO._______ 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF PORT ORCHARD, WASHINGTON, AUTHORIZING 
THE MAYOR TO EXECUTE AN AGREEMENT WITH PUGET SOUND ENERGY (PSE) 
THEREBY ACCEPTING A GRANT FOR ENERGY CONSERVATION FOR PORT ORCHARD 
CITY HALL. 

WHEREAS, the City of Port Orchard endeavors to conserve energy resources and has 
incorporated conservation measures into the renovation of its City Hall; and     

WHEREAS, under PSE’s Electric Schedule 253, Gas Schedule 253, Electric Schedule 83, and 
Gas Schedule 183, as currently in effect and on file with the Washington Utilities and Transportation 
Commission (UTC) (collectively, “Tariffs”), PSE offers grants for certain conservation measures 
installed or implemented at facilities that receive electric or natural gas service from PSE; and 

WHEREAS, the City has received a grant from Puget Sound Energy (PSE) as an incentive for 
utilizing conservation measures; and 

WHEREAS, the incentive-based grant, if accepted, would be paid to the City over a period of 
five years, based on the conservation measures installed and implemented an amount up to 
$171,870; and 

WHEREAS, the Port Orchard City Council has determined it to be in the best interest of the 
City to accept the grant funding from PSE for the program; now, therefore,  

THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF PORT ORCHARD, WASHINGTON, HEREBY RESOLVES AS 
FOLLOWS: 

THAT: It is the intent of the Port Orchard City Council that the recitals set forth above are 
hereby adopted and incorporated as findings in support of this Resolution. 

THAT:  The City Council authorizes the Mayor to Execute the Conservation Grant Agreement 
with Puget Sound Energy, attached hereto as Exhibit A and incorporated herein by this 
reference, and to execute all documents necessary to effectuate the receipt of this grant 
funding.   

THAT:  The Resolution shall take full force and effect upon passage and signatures hereon. 

PASSED by the City Council of the City of Port Orchard, SIGNED by the Mayor and attested 
by the City Clerk in authentication of such passage this 19th day of December 2023. 
 

              
Robert Putaansuu, Mayor 

ATTEST:       

        
Brandy Wallace, MMC, City Clerk         

Page 5 of 263



4386 4/13       Page 1 of

Customer Only Agreement
Customer Only Agreement 

Conservation Program: Pay for Performance 
Agreement No.: 1 
Project No.: P_1377771 

CONSERVATION  
GRANT AGREEMENT 

This AGREEMENT is made this ________ day of ______________________, 20________, by and between 
PUGET SOUND ENERGY (“PSE”) and CITY OF PORT ORCHARD (“Participant”). 

RECITALS 

A. Under PSE’s Electric Schedule 253, Gas Schedule 253, Electric Schedule 83, and Gas Schedule 183 as currently in effect
and on file with the Washington Utilities and Transportation Commission (collectively, “Tariffs”), PSE offers grants for
certain conservation measures installed or implemented at facilities that receive electric or natural gas service from PSE.

B. Participant intends to install or implement conservation measures and is requesting a grant from PSE.

AGREEMENTS 

PSE and Participant agree as follows: 
1. PROJECT PREMISES/METER LOCATION ADDRESS: 216 PROSPECT ST  PORT ORCHARD WA

98366 - CITY OF PORT ORCHARD - CITY HALL – PAY FOR PERFORMANCE (Please note: meter
location/address may differ from the site mailing address).  Participant will install or implement the conservation
measures listed in paragraph 2 (“Conservation Measures”) at the above located facilities (the “Premises”). Participant
represents either (a) that it is the owner or otherwise has the lawful authority to make the statements herein on behalf of
the owner of the Premises, or (b) that it is the lawful tenant of the Premises and that it has obtained written authorization
from the owner of the Premises.  That written authorization from the owner to the tenant shall be provided to PSE.

2. Conservation Measures. Participant represents that it will purchase equipment or materials or has entered or will
enter into an agreement with one or more contractors (the “Contractor”) for the purchase and installation or
implementation at the Premises of the Conservation Measures which may be detailed in Attachment C: Attachment
to Conservation Grant, at the following costs:

Conservation Measures Measure 
Life Total Cost1 Eligible Grant2 

1. PFP: Base Incentive - Year 1 19 $161,714.00 $70,310.00 

2. PFP: Base Incentive - Year 2 19 $40,429.00 $17,578.00 

3. PFP: Performance Incentive - Year 2 1 $17,968.00 $7,812.00 

4. PFP: Base Incentive - Year 3 19 $40,429.00 $17,578.00 

5. PFP: Performance Incentive - Year 3 1 $17,968.00 $7,812.00 

13th November 23

Page 6 of 263



4386 4/13       Page 2 of  

Conservation Program: Pay for Performance 
Agreement No.:   1 
Project No.:   P_1377771 

6. PFP: Base Incentive - Year 4 19 $40,429.00 $17,578.00 

7. PFP: Performance Incentive - Year 4 1 $17,968.00 $7,812.00 

8. PFP: Base Incentive - Year 5 19 $40,429.00 $17,578.00 

9. PFP: Performance Incentive - Year 5 1 $17,968.00 $7,812.00 

TOTAL (includes sales tax) $395,302.00 $171,870.00 

1 Participant represents that the total cost of the Conservation Measures is the net amount of its obligation with 
respect thereto.  

2 The grant amount may be reduced at PSE’s sole discretion in the event of project cost reductions or additional 
energy savings benefiting Participant.  See Section 3. 

3. Grant. Upon the execution by both parties and PSE’s receipt of this Conservation Grant Agreement within 90 days
of the agreement date, PSE agrees to grant the Participant, after installation by Participant of the Conservation
Measures, an amount equal to the eligible Conservation grant (“the Grant”) set forth in Attachment C. The parties
agree that the Conservation Measures in Attachment C must be installed within 12 months (but not to exceed 15
months) and the Grant paid within 64 months of the signing of this Conservation Grant Agreement. If for any reason
the installed cost of the Conservation Measures is less than the amount shown above and on Attachment C, PSE may
decrease pro rata the amount of the Grant. Grant paid to Participant may, at PSE’s sole discretion, be reduced to
reflect such benefits. Participant shall be responsible for paying any amount in excess of the amount of the Grant.

4. Separate Contract. Participant acknowledges and agrees that PSE is not, and shall not be deemed to be, a party to
any purchase, installation, implementation, or service contract relating to Conservation Measures, which shall be
installed or implemented pursuant to a contract between Participant and its Contractor(s). Participant expressly
acknowledges that PSE’s involvement with respect to any aspect of the Conservation Measures is limited to the
furnishing of the Grant.  PSE HAS NOT MADE AND DOES NOT MAKE (AND PARTICIPANT
ACKNOWLEDGES THAT PSE DOES NOT MAKE) ANY IMPLIED OR EXPRESS WARRANTY
(INCLUDING BUT NOT LIMITED TO ANY IMPLIED WARRANTY OF MERCHANTABILITY OR
FITNESS) REPRESENTATION, OR PROMISE WITH RESPECT TO EITHER (A) THE CONSERVATION
MEASURES, (B) ANY MATERIALS AND LABOR REQUIRED FOR OR USED IN THE INSTALLATION
OR IMPLEMENTATION OF THE CONSERVATION MEASURES, OR (C) THE INSTALLATION OR
IMPLEMENTATION OF THE CONSERVATION MEASURES.

5. Final Cost Documentation, Access & Inspection: Participant agrees to promptly provide PSE, upon request, and
for a period no shorter than the longest applicable measure life: (1) documentation verifying equipment purchased
and/or work performed in connection with the Conservation Measures installed; (2) reasonable access to and
inspection of the Facility and Conservation Measures installed therein before, during and/or after implementation;
and (3) reasonable access to, inspection and use of energy usage data related to the Conservation Measures
including release of utility bills and Facility energy consumption information following implementation.

6. Release. Participant releases PSE from any and all claims, losses, harm, costs, liabilities, damages and expenses
directly or indirectly resulting from or in connection with (a) the Conservation Measures, (b) any materials and
labor required for or used in the installation or implementation of the Conservation Measures, (c) the installation or
implementation of the Conservation Measures, or (d) the identification, handling and disposal of any associated
hazardous waste materials.

7. Disclaimer. PSE conducts energy analyses at the request of its customers to determine the extent to which
conservation measures are cost–effective. Any estimate of energy savings made by PSE in connection with any

Page 7 of 263



4386 4/13       Page 3 of  

Conservation Program: Pay for Performance 
Agreement No.: 1 
Project No.: P_1377771 

such analyses is solely for the purpose of determining the cost–effectiveness of the particular conservation 
measures and not to be used for any other purpose. PSE has not and does not make any promise, warranty or 
representation with respect to any savings in energy consumption from Conservation Measures. 

8. Termination. (a) Participant agrees to provide deliverables (specified in Attachment C) for this multi-year grant
agreement and understands that failure to provide such deliverables by the deadline set forth in Attachment C may
result, at PSE’s sole discretion, in the Participant’s forfeiture of any remaining grant incentive funds detailed in
Paragraph 2 of this Agreement. (b) In the event a Participant’s contribution to PSE’s recovery of energy efficiency
program costs is affected by all or a portion of Participant’s electric and/or gas delivery service being provided by
a party other than PSE, then Participant agrees to and shall refund to PSE an amount equal to the ratio of the
unused Measure Life of the measure(s) to the total Measure Life of such Conservation Measure(s) multiplied by
the dollar amount of the Grant with respect to such Conservation Measure(s), payable within ninety (90) days of
notice to Participant by PSE of such obligation.  (c) This Conservation Grant Agreement may be reviewed
annually to determine the cost-effectiveness and assess continuance.  Either party may terminate this agreement
with 30 days’ notice to the other parties.

9. Incorporation of tariffs by reference. This Agreement and the Attachment To Conservation Grant are subject to
the terms of the Tariffs, incorporated herein by reference.  Specific terms and conditions from one or more
conservation schedules from similar filed tariffs may also apply, as determined by PSE at its sole discretion, based
on various criteria. A complete list of conservation schedules is available at:

https://www.pse.com/en/pages/rates/electric-tariffs-and-rules

10. Publications. Except as may be required by law, neither party to this Agreement shall, without the prior written
consent of the other, make any news release or public announcement or place any advertisement stating that PSE
and Participant have contracted for the products or services specified in this Agreement or have entered into any
business relationship.   Participant may not use any PSE trademark or service mark in any promotional materials
without PSE's prior review of such usage and written approval of it, at PSE’s sole discretion.

11. Entire Agreement. This Agreement and its attachments set forth the entire agreement between the parties and
supersede any and all prior agreements with respect to the Conservation Measures. No change, amendment or
modification of any provision of this Agreement shall be valid unless set forth in writing and signed by both
parties.

PUGET SOUND ENERGY PARTICIPANT 
CITY OF PORT ORCHARD 

By: By: 

Name:  Print Name: 

Title:  Title: 

Federal Tax I.D. No.: 

Page 8 of 263



6011 4/13  Page 1 of 7 

 

 Conservation Program:   Pay for Performance 
 Agreement No.:   1 
 Project No.:   P_1377771 

 
 ATTACHMENT C 

 TO CONSERVATION GRANT 
 

No 

Conservation Measure(s) shall consist of the following: 

Base Year Capital Projects    

The PFP Program Application list of capital savings opportunities table provides a list of capital 
projects submitted by PARTICIPANT on 08/26/2022.  Bidding closed in May 2023 and 
construction commenced in Sept 2023.  These projects are to be completed in the first 12 
months, not to exceed 15 months, of the 5 year grant term.  If all projects are completed in less 
than 12 months, and the required documentation has been submitted to PSE, the Year 1 Base 
Incentive can be made before the end of the first year.     

Incentive Specifications    

PSE will provide incentives on an annual basis in accordance with the proposed capital projects.  
In order to receive the incentive, PARTICIPANT shall provide all deliverables required in 
Participant Requirements.  The incentives will be as follows:    

1) Base Incentives: The Base Incentives are calculated using proposed 1st year savings from the 
Estimated Project Savings in Attachment A.  The total Base Incentive rate is not to exceed 
$0.45/kWh.   PARTICIPANT may receive an incentive for between 0-50% of the Base Year 1 
incentive.  PARTICIPANT has agreed to 50%.  This payment may be received after completing 
the projects & submitting required documentation, even if they are completed in less than 1 
year.  The remaining 50% has been used to calculate a $0.05625/kWh rate to be paid annually 
for the rest of the contract discounted based on achieved saving.  

2) Performance Incentives: The performance incentive will be calculated after each of the 4 
performance years.  A performance incentive rate equal to $0.05/kWh will be paid for annual 
savings achieved beyond the projected Base Year Projects savings total. 

 

The above specifications are solely for the purpose of defining energy-related components of Conservation Measure(s) for 
which the Grant is offered. Puget Sound Energy is not responsible for ensuring the health, safety, comfort, or well-being of 
workers or facility occupants or the suitability of equipment selected for the intended application. It is the responsibility of the 
grant Participant and the Participant’s hired designers, contractors, consultants to ensure compliance of the Conservation 
Measure(s) with Participant’s needs and all applicable codes and standards.  

  The following shall be submitted by Participant prior to Grant payment:  

 Completed Request for Taxpayer I.D. Number (“W-9”). 

 Copies of invoicing (no purchase orders, quotes, or estimates) for all expenses, including but not limited to equipment, 
materials, and labor associated with installation of Conservation Measure(s).  

No 

Page 9 of 263



6011 4/13  Page 2 of 7 

 

 Conservation Program:   Pay for Performance 
 Agreement No.:   1 
 Project No.:   P_1377771 

 
 ATTACHMENT C 

 TO CONSERVATION GRANT 
 

Conservation Measure(s) shall be verified as follows prior to Grant payment: 

Participant Requirements    

By participating in the P4P program, the PARTICIPANT agrees to:    

1) Establish a primary contact: PARTICIPANT must designate a primary contact for 
communicating with PSE over the course of the program.  If the primary contact changes at 
any time, PARTIPANT agrees to notify PSE of a new contact.  PARTICIPANT designates Denis 
Ryan of City of Port Orchard Public Works department.  

2) Complete Quarterly Reporting: PARTICIPANT must complete and submit Quarterly 
Reporting for the building(s) identified in the Grant Agreement.  The reports must note any 
significant action that impacted energy usage including:   

a. Capital projects status    

b. O&M changes (schedules, set points, etc.)    

c. Behavioral campaigns    

d. Changes in occupied hours    

e. Changes in occupancy    

f. Changes in site square footage 

Quarterly Reports are due 9/31, 12/30, 3/29, and 6/31 of each year of the grant.  The final 
project costs for any addition capital measures are due by 06/31 of each year of the grant.  
PARTICIPANT has up to 60 calendar days from the due date to submit the deliverable 
requirement or within a time period determined by PSE.  If PARTICIPANT does not provide the 
deliverables, PSE may terminate the contract and all services.   A sample Quarterly Report 
Template is provided in Attachment D. 

Baseline    

The prior 12 month's consumption is generally the fixed baseline.  The baseline period for this 
grant agreement is proposed to be electric billing cycle ending 8/24/2022-7/25/2023 + electric 
equivalent of gas billing cycle ending 4/6/2022-3/7/2023. 

 

Page 10 of 263



6011 4/13  Page 3 of 7 

 

 Conservation Program:   Pay for Performance 
 Agreement No.:   1 
 Project No.:   P_1377771 

 
 ATTACHMENT C 

 TO CONSERVATION GRANT 
 

The combined equivalent electric consumption of PSE/CNG supplied energy during the baseline 
period was 492,702 kWh.  The Base Year projects represent a 56% savings over baseline.    

PSE Savings Calculations    

PSE will calculate the savings of the performance period against the baseline period on an 
annual basis for PARTICIPANT. The baseline period consumption will be adjusted to the 
independent variables that impact consumption, which may include weather, occupancy hours, 
production units, etc.  PSE will also deduct the deemed savings from any capital measures 
implemented by customer that have already been incentivized through other rebate programs.  
PSE has identified the likely independent variables as HDD and CDD, but reserves the right to 
change the independent variables used. PARTICIPANT shall submit any information that would 
support adjustments to the baseline.  This may include changes to the building area, changes in 
occupancy, significant addition of plug loads (greater than 1% of annual consumption), etc. 

 

 

If intended energy savings are not being achieved by Conservation Measure(s) because specified equipment efficiency 
parameters or performance parameters defined above are not used, Participant shall be required to correct such deficiencies 
prior to Grant payment. Failure to comply with specified equipment efficiency or performance parameters may result in 
forfeiture or reduction of Grant payment.  

 

 

Page 11 of 263



6011 4/13  Page 4 of 7 

 Conservation Program:   Pay for Performance 
 Agreement No.:   1 
 Project No.:   P_1377771 

 
 

ATTACHMENT D -  QUARTERLY REPORT TEMPLATE 
 

BUILDING INFORMATION 
Building Name:   

Person Completing this Form:   Date:  

Building Area (ft2):  Annual kWH:  Annual Therms:  

Current EUI (kBTU/ft2):  Last EUI:  Target EUI:  

ENERGY STAR Score:   

Electric Meter:   Gas Meter:  
 

CAPITAL PROJECTS STATUS 

Project Name Start Date 
Completion 
Date 

Status/Progress Notes 

Project A    

Project B    

Project C    

    

    
 

Occupancy schedule for the next 3 months (or see attachment) 
Day Start Stop Notes 

Sunday    

Monday    

Tuesday    

Wednesday    

Thursday    

Friday    

Saturday    

Holidays    
 

Breaks, Holidays, and Events for the next 3 months (or see attachment) 
Type Start Date End Date Notes 

    

    

    
 

Page 12 of 263



6011 4/13  Page 5 of 7 

 

 Conservation Program:   Pay for Performance 
 Agreement No.:   1 
 Project No.:   P_1377771 

 
 

ATTACHMENT D -  QUARTERLY REPORT TEMPLATE 
 

System Settings (or see attachment) 
Description Setting Notes 

HVAC Schedule   

Lighting Schedule   

Heating Setpoints (°F)        occupied  unoccupied  

Cooling Setpoints (°F)      occupied  unoccupied  
 

CHECKLIST 

# Question Confirmation Method Yes No 

1 Does the HVAC schedule align with system 
settings?   

Look at the controls schedule (if available) for all 
major HVAC systems.  Look at the interval data for 
a typical week. 

  

2 Do the HVAC zone setpoints align with 
system settings? 

Look at the control system for typical system 
setpoints.   

  

3 Are upcoming holidays, breaks, and events 
scheduled?   

Look at the controls schedule for all major HVAC 
systems.  Look at the interval data for past 
holidays/events to confirm scheduling is working 
properly. 

  

4 Are economizers functioning? Look at major HVAC systems to confirm that 
outside air dampers are open above minimum 
setpoint and mechanical cooling is disabled when 
outside air temperature is less than the cooling 
setpoint. 

  

5 Are all major pieces of equipment operating 
in automatic mode (rather than manual, 
hand, off, etc)? 

Look at the control system or electrical panels to 
confirm equipment is operating in automatic 
mode. 

  

6 Does your interior lighting schedule match 
occupancy? 

Look at the lighting control system.   

7 Does your exterior lighting match non-
daylight hours? 

Look at the lighting control system, time clock, or 
other lighting controls. 

  

8 How have you engaged with occupants 
and/or implemented behavioral campaigns? 

Consider reminders, posters, stickers, newsletters, 
websites, meetings, etc. 

  

Page 13 of 263



6011 4/13  Page 6 of 7 

 

 Conservation Program:   Pay for Performance 
 Agreement No.:   1 
 Project No.:   P_1377771 

 
 

ATTACHMENT D -  QUARTERLY REPORT TEMPLATE 
 

9 Have any major changes (occupancy, 
staffing, production, building area, 
additional plug loads, etc) occurred at your 
building? 

   

10 Have you started, completed, or plan on 
completing any capital projects?  If so, 
when? 

   

11 Have there been any changes (positive or 
negative) in your monthly billing data? 

Look at your monthly bill data (adjusted for 
weather or other variables, if possible) and make 
comments regarding trends. 

  

12 Do your system settings align with interval 
data? 

Look at the interval data for a typical week and 
holidays/events. 

  
 

NOTES 
[Please provide specific information related to checklist items or other energy activities.  Examples include “Changed 
heating setpoint from 70 F to 69 F in West Wing based on system settings on 1/1/2018”, “Added square footage on 
9/1/2017”, “Changed 30 HP pump operation from HAND to AUTO on 11/1/2017”.  The description should include the 
effective date, the baseline condition, and the new condition.] 

Checklist# Date Description    

1   

2   

3   

4   

 
ATTACHMENTS 

[Please include attachments that support the checklist or notes.  Examples include HVAC schedule screenshots, HVAC 
setpoint screenshots, energy interval data screenshots, occupant communications, and monthly bill data]  

# Description    

1  

2  

3  

4  

Page 14 of 263



6011 4/13  Page 7 of 7 

 

 Conservation Program:   Pay for Performance 
 Agreement No.:   1 
 Project No.:   P_1377771 

 
 

ATTACHMENT E -  EXAMPLE SAVINGS & INCENTIVES CALCULATIONS 
 

The following table demonstrates how savings may be claimed for a sample portfolio: 

Table 3: Example Savings & Incentives for 15% Projected Capital Savings, Taking 50% of the Base Incentive at the end 
of Year 1 ($0.30/kWh) 

Year 

 
Adjusted 
Baseline 
Usage 
(kWh) 

Yearly 
Usage 
(kWh) 

Yearly 
Savings 
(kWh) 

 

 

Base 
Incentive 
Rate ($/kWh) 

Base 
Incentive ($) 

Performance 
Incentive @ 
$0.05/kWh ($) 

1 1,000,000 850,000 150,000 $0.15/kWh $22,500 N/A 

2 1,000,000 900,000 100,000 $0.0375/kWh $3,750 $0 

3 1,000,000 800,000 200,000 $0.0375/kWh $5,625 $2,500 

4 1,000,000 790,000 210,000 $0.0375/kWh $5,625 $3,000 

5 1,000,000 800,000 200,000 $0.0375/kWh $5,625 $2,500 

      Total  $43,125 $8,000 

Table 1 Definitions 
 Adjusted Baseline Usage – The baseline usage adjusted based on current independent variables (weather, 

occupancy hours, building area, production units, etc) that impact consumption. 
 Yearly Usage – The usage of the site during the year’s reporting period. 
 Yearly Savings – The Adjusted Baseline Usage minus the Yearly Usage. 
 Base Incentive Rate – The capital incentive rate per year.  Not to exceed $0.30/kWh (or $5.00/therm) total.  In 

Year 1, not to exceed $0.15/kWh (or $2.50/therm).  In Years 2-5, it is the remaining $/kWh (or therm) divided by 
4. 

 Base Incentive – The Yearly Savings multiplied by the Base Incentive Rate.  Note that this number can’t be 
negative. 

 Performance Incentive – Any yearly savings greater than the Year 1 Projected Capital Savings amount, multiplied 
by $0.05/kWh (or $0.50/therm).  Note that this number can’t be negative.  

 

 

Page 15 of 263



City of Port Orchard 
216 Prospect Street, Port Orchard, WA 98366 
(360) 876-4407 • FAX (360) 895-9029 
 

 
Agenda Staff Report 

   Agenda Item No.: Consent Agenda 4D Meeting Date: December 19, 2023 
Subject: Approval of Amendment No. 2 to  Prepared by: Denis Ryan 

 Contract No. C001-15 with Aspect   Public Works Director 
 Consulting, LLC for Marina Mart/Vlist       Atty Routing No.: 366922-0009 
 Property Environmental Services Atty Review Date: 12/13/2023 

 
Summary: For many years the City of Port Orchard’s Maintenance shop was located at the property 
located at 514 Bay Street (the “Property”). The Property was included in Washington State Department 
of Ecology’s Voluntary Cleanup Program. The Property was later sold by the City. On November 14, 2014, 
following a procurement process that complied with state and federal law and the City’s procurement 
policies, the Port Orchard City Council approved Contract No. C001-15 with Aspect Consulting, LLC (the 
“Consultant”) for the Marina Mart/Vlist Property Environmental Services (the “Project”).  On December 
19, 2019, Amendment No. 1 to the Underlying Agreement was approved, which extended the duration 
of the Agreement, updated the scope and increased the compensation.  Continued environmental 
services are required for the Project.  Amendment No. 2 will increase the “Time and Materials Not to 
Exceed” amount by an additional $22,900, for a new “Not to Exceed” total of $75,218, inclusive of all 
work performed and compensated to date. Finally, Amendment No. 2 will extend the term of the 
Agreement to December 31, 2025.  
 
Recommendation:  Staff recommends the Council authorize the Mayor to execute Amendment No. 2 to 
Contract No. C001-15 with Aspect Consulting, LLC for the Marina Mart/Vlist Property Environmental 
Services to extend the duration of the contract to December 31, 2025, and increase the contract amount 
by $22,900 for a total amended contract amount of $75,218.  
 
Relationship to Comprehensive Plan:  N/A 
  
Motion for Consideration:  I move to authorize the Mayor to execute Amendment No. 2 to Contract No. 
C001-15 with Aspect Consulting, LLC for the Marina Mart/Vlist Property Environmental Services.  
 
Fiscal Impact:  $13,600 was budgeted in the 2023-2024 Biennial Budget in GL Account 
001.05.518.20.40.  In 2023 $7,305.60 was expended leaving a budget balance of ~$6,300.  A budget 
amendment may be needed in 2024.  Funds for 2025 will be allocated during the 2025-2026 Budget 
process. 
 
Alternatives:   Do not approve and provide alternative guidance. 
 
Attachments: Authorization for Amendment No. 2 
 Amendment No. 2 w/ Exhibits A & B  
  

Page 16 of 263



Ii 
Paqe 1 of 7 

CITY OF PORT ORCHARD 

Authorization for Amendment No. 2 

Date: December 19, 2023 

Project: Marina Mart/Vlist Pro ert 
Environmental Services 

Consultant: Aspect Consulting, LLC 
4201 2nd Avenue South, Suite 201 
Seattle, WA 98104 

Contract / Job # cooi-rs 
This Amendment Authorizes the following changes to the Agreement: Section 1 A. of the Agreement is hereby 
amended to read as follows: Consultant shall perform the services described in the Scope of Work attached to this 
Agreement as Exhibit "M' (as revised). The services performed by the Consultant shall not exceed the Scope of Work 
without prior written authorization from the City, Section 3 of the Agreement is hereby amended to read as 
follows; This Agreement shall commence on January 1, 2015 ("Commencement Date") and shall terminate December 
31, 2025 unless extended or terminated in writing as provided herein. Section 4 of the Agreement is hereby amended 
to read as follows: TIME AND MATERIALS NOT TO EXCEED. Compensation for these services shall not exceed $75,218, 
inclusive of all amounts paid prior to the execution of Amendment No. 2 to this Agreement, without written 
Authorization and will be based on billing rates and reimbursable expenses attached hereto as Exhibit A and B (as 
revised). In all other respects the Underlying agreement between the parties shall remain in full force and effect, 
amended as set forth herein, but only as set forth herein . 

. - 

Agreement History 
Amount Sales Tax Total Date Appvd by 

Original Agreement $.26,648.00 $0,00 $26,648.00 12-Nov-14 Council 
Amendment #1 $25,670.001 $0,00 $25,670,00 19-Dec-19 Mayor 
Amendment #2 $22,900.001 $0.00 $22,900.00 19-Dec-23 Council I 

I 

Total Agreement $75,218.00 $0.00 $75,218,00 
- 

I have reviewed the Amendment information above and certify that to the best of my knowledge descriptions and 

co~~:daccurate. .? _ ·;) --~----"-'~----:--:---- -~ c ~~ ~ ~~ 
Contractor Approval Signature ,# I Pub~fairector 

CA:f?tA: t. f3~tl. p~ijOMk 61EOUX!tl$J ~1_:r_t:::;;~_11-c____ ... -- ----·------ 
Printed Name & Title P/inted Name 

Public Works Contracts Greater than $35,000: Change Orders that do not exceed 
10%, with a maximum of .~SllQQQ., of either legally authorized budget limit or 
contract amount established by City Council can be approved by the Public Works 
Director. Total Contract Amount shall reset to reflect new councu-approved contract 
totals authorized prior to the requested change order. $50,000.$100,0QQ require 
Mayoral Approval, $100,000 <1ml over require Council Approval. 
!!Y~ork~ Co. ra,;t der ?JMIOJ!, change orders tnat Individually do not 
exceed $7,500 with an aggreg<1te cap of $10,000. 
P,u · o_ i!l!t$ e d er ~Z.§Q9: All Change Orders that do 
not exceed an aggregate cap of $7,500 (Excluding underlying value), provided there 
are departmental funds available in the budget. 
All Departments: Mayor approves any and all Change orders that oo not exceed 10% 
of either authortzed budget limit or contract amount established by City Council. 
With a maximum aggregl!te amount of $100,000. Tota! Contract Amount shall reset 
to reflect new Councll-approved contract totals authorized prior to the requested 
change order. Any lndlvid1,1al Change order that is over $100,000 requires Co11ncil 
approval. 

Approved:-----~-------- 
Mayor 

Attest: --------------- City Clerk 

Page 17 of 263



Page 18 of 263



Page 19 of 263



November 30, 2023 

Mr. Denis Ryan 
City of Port Orchard 
216 Prospect Street 
Port Orchard, Washington 98366 

Re: Proposal for Ongoing Groundwater Compliance Monitoring 
Marina Mart/Vlist Property, Port Orchard, WA 
Project No. AS140310A 

Dear Denis: 

Aspect Consulting (Aspect) is pleased to present this proposal to the City of Port Orchard (City) for 
ongoing groundwater compliance monitoring at the former Marina Mart/Vlist Property, located in 
Port Orchard, Washington (herein referred to as the Site). Aspect has been monitoring groundwater 
quality at the Site since 2014 and was previously contracted by the City to provide environmental 
consulting services at the Site through 2023. At your request, we have prepared this proposal to 
present the scope, cost, and schedule for annual groundwater monitoring and reporting for an 
additional 2 years, through 2025. 

Background and Coordination with Others 
Two Kitsap County tax parcels, located at 514 and 528 Bay Street, are currently operated by Vlist 
Motors for used car sales and service. These properties are defined as:  

• Vlist Property – The property located at 514 Bay Street, which includes the Vlist Motors
sales offices, three garage bays, and asphalt parking areas, was previously owned and
operated by the City as a maintenance shop for City vehicles. Three underground storage
tanks (USTs) were used by the City between approximately 1972 and 1990 for the storage
and distribution of gasoline and diesel fuel. The USTs were temporarily closed in place in
1990 and removed in 1999.

• Marina Mart Property – The property located at 528 Bay Street is an asphalt parking lot
and was previously a retail gasoline service station, known as the Marina Mart. Three USTs
were formerly located on the Marina Mart Property. The USTs were removed in 1992.
Remedial actions, consisting of limited soil excavation on both properties, were conducted
between 1999 and 2002. Environmental contractors working for Vlist Motors continue
operating an in situ remediation system to treat groundwater on the Marina Mart Property.
Groundwater has been monitored periodically on both properties since 2003.

Groundwater on both properties contains gasoline-range petroleum hydrocarbons and benzene at 
concentrations that exceed the Washington State Model Toxics Control Act cleanup regulation 
(MTCA) Method A cleanup levels. Seven monitoring wells are located on the Vlist Property to 
monitor groundwater quality following soil-cleanup activities conducted in 1999, 2001, and 2002. 
Two monitoring wells, installed by others in 2017, are located on the Marina Mart Property. The 
City is responsible for completing an annual groundwater monitoring and sampling event, typically 
during the first half of the year. Filco Company Inc. (Filco), an environmental consultant 

e a r t h + w a t e r Aspect Consulting    350 Madison Ave N  Bainbridge Island, WA 98110    206.780.9370      www.aspectconsulting.com

Exhibit A Page 4 of 7

Page 20 of 263



City of Port Orchard 
November 30, 2023 Project No. AS140310A 

Page 2 

representing the owners of the former Marina Mart Property, completes compliance monitoring at 
the same nine monitoring wells during the second half of the year. 

Scope of Work 
The work will consist of annual groundwater monitoring, sampling, and reporting in 2024 and 
2025. Each sampling event will include measurement of water levels and collection and analysis of 
groundwater samples from the nine wells, review of the data collected by Filco, and preparation of 
an annual groundwater data report. The schedule for the work will be coordinated with Filco so the 
sampling events are completed two times per year and separated by approximately 6 months. Based 
on the 2023 sampling schedule, and communication with Filco, the 2024 sampling event will be 
conducted in June.  

Prior to sampling, the monitoring wells will be opened and the water level in each well will be 
measured using an electronic water level meter to the nearest 0.01 inches. Each well will be 
sampled using a peristaltic pump and dedicated tubing in accordance with standard U.S. 
Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) low-flow purge techniques. Upon stabilization, 
groundwater samples will be collected from each monitoring well for laboratory analysis of 
gasoline-range petroleum hydrocarbons by Northwest Method NWTPH-Gx and benzene, toluene, 
ethylbenzene, and xylenes (BTEX) by EPA Method 8260C on standard laboratory turnaround times 
of 10 days. Purge water that is generated by the sampling will be temporarily stored on the Vlist 
Property in a 55-gallon steel drum pending receipt of the laboratory results. The cost estimate 
presented below includes the disposal of two drums of nonhazardous investigation-derived 
wastewater. 

Following receipt of the laboratory results each year, we will prepare a data report to summarize the 
results of the sampling event. The report will include a text summary of the field activities and 
results, summary tables of water level measurements and chemical data compared to the applicable 
MTCA Method A cleanup levels, a figure depicting the groundwater flow direction, and an 
evaluation of contaminant trends over time. If warranted, the report will include recommendations 
for modifications to the monitoring program.  

Schedule and Cost Estimate 
Groundwater sampling is estimated to occur in June of each year. However, this schedule may be 
modified based on the Filco sampling schedule. Any decisions regarding changes to the sampling 
schedule will be made in consultation with the City. The data report will be submitted to the City 
within 15 working days of receipt and validation of the final laboratory report.  

The cost estimate to perform the work described herein is provided in Table 1. 

Page 5 of 7

Page 21 of 263



City of Port Orchard 
November 30, 2023 Project No. AS140310A 

Page 3 

Table 1. Cost Estimate for Ongoing Compliance Groundwater Monitoring 

Task Name Labor 
Field 

Equipment Subcontractors Total 
Project Management & 

Communications $3,120 $0 $0 $3,120 

2024 Sampling & Reporting $7,540 $560 $1,790 $9,890 

2025 Sampling & Reporting $7,540 $560 $1,790 $9,890 

Total $22,900 

Closing 
The above Services will be billed on a time-and-materials basis in accordance with the attached 
Schedule of Charges. We will notify you and obtain your authorization if additional effort above 
and beyond the estimated scope of this work is required. We will use a Contract Change Form to 
request your authorization for any changes to the above description of Services. This cost proposal 
is valid for 90 days unless extended in writing by Aspect Consulting.  

Sincerely, 

Aspect consulting 

Hannah Cohen, LG 
Project Geologist 
hannah.cohen@aspectconsulting.com 

Carla Brock, LHG 
Principal Geologist 
carla.brock@aspectconsulting.com 

Attachments: Schedule of Charges 

V:\140310 Marina Mart\Contracts\Proposal Material\Proposal_2024 to 2025_2023.11.30_140310.docx 

Page 6 of 7

Page 22 of 263



CONFIDENTIAL 

US 2024 ASPECT 

ASPECT CONSULTING 
2024 U.S. RATE SCHEDULE 

(All Values are in $USD) 

Staff Professional $150 
Senior Staff Professional $170 
Professional $195 
Project Professional $220 
Senior Professional $255 
Principal $285 
Senior Principal $315 

Technician I $  85 
Technician II $  95 
Senior Technician I $100 
Senior Technician II $110 
Site Manager I $125 
Site Manager II $135 
Construction Manager I $145 
Construction Manager II $155 

Senior Designer 
Designer 

$200 
$165 

Senior Drafter/Senior CADD Operator $155 
Drafter/CADD Operator/Artist $135 
Project Administrator $100 
Clerical $  75 

Direct Expenses Cost plus 15% 
Subcontract Services Cost plus 15% 
Specialized Computer Applications (per hour) $    15 
Personal Automobile (per mile) Current Gov’t Rate Plus 15% 
Photocopies (per page) $   .09 

Rates are provided on a confidential basis and are client and project specific. 
Unless otherwise agreed, rates will be adjusted annually based on a minimum of the Producer Price Index 

for Engineering Services. 
Rates for field equipment, health and safety equipment, and graphical supplies presented upon request. 

Construction management fee presented upon request. 

Exhibit B Page 7 of 7

Page 23 of 263



City of Port Orchard 
216 Prospect Street, Port Orchard, WA 98366 
(360) 876-4407 • FAX (360) 895-9029 
 
 

 
 

Agenda Staff Report 
 

Agenda Item No.: Consent Agenda 4E Meeting Date: December 19, 2023 

Subject: Approval of Amendment No. 12 to Contract  Prepared by: Nicholas Bond 
 No. 066-20 with Rice Fergus Miller, Inc. for  DCD Director 
 the Community Events Center Project     Atty Routing No.: N/A 
  Atty Review Date: 12/14/2023 

 
Summary:  The City of Port Orchard is under contract with Rice Fergus Miller, Inc (RFM) for the Community 
Event Center project (C066-20).  The project as designed by RFM and its team is partly located on two 
separate Department of Natural Resources (DNR) lease areas where the City of Port Orchard is the lessee.  
The terms for these lease areas are ending within the next two years and DNR’s requirements for lease 
extension include completing a JARPA application and describing all proposed improvements to be 
constructed within five years of lease renewal/extension.  The JARPA application also requires the 
preparation of graphics showing the location of improvements within the lease area.  In order to extend 
these leases, the City requires the assistance of RFM to perform a survey of the lease boundary relative to the 
proposed improvements.  It also requires that RFM’s graphics be presented in a format as required by DNR 
and showing the full lease area extents even though the City’s project only occupies a portion of the lease 
area.  The JARPA also requires additional environmental information that has not previously been gathered.   
 
The City has prepared a contract amendment for time and materials to assist the city with extending its DNR 
leases to facilitate the completion of the CEC project.  The contract amount is not to exceed $62,900. 
 
Relationship to Comprehensive Plan: The planned CEC project is shown in the City’s Comprehensive Plan, 
Parks Plan, and Downtown Subarea Plan. 
 
Recommendation:  Staff recommends approval of Contract Amendment #12 to C066-20 as presented. 
 
Motion for consideration: “I move to approve amendment #12 to C066-20 as presented.” 
 
Fiscal Impact:  $62,900 
 
Alternatives: None. 
 
Attachments: Amendment #12, Rate Sheets for RFM and subconsultants. 

     
 

Page 24 of 263



10788500.1 - 366922 - 0001 

 
 

Amendment No. 12 to Contract No. C066-20 
 

CITY OF PORT ORCHARD PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT WITH 
RICE FERGUS MILLER, INC. 

 

THIS AMENDMENT to Contract No. C066-20 (“Amendment”) is made effective as of the 20th day 
of December, 2023, by and between the City of Port Orchard (“City”), a municipal corporation, organized 
under the laws of the State of Washington, and Rice Fergus Miller, Inc., a corporation organized under the 
laws of the State of Washington, located and doing business at 275 5th St., Bremerton, WA 98337 
(“Consultant”).  

WHEREAS, on July 29, 2020, the City executed a Professional Services Agreement with Consultant 
for the South Kitsap Community Event Center Project (the “Project”) (“Underlying Agreement”); and 

WHEREAS, on July 27, 2021, the City and Consultant executed Amendment No. 1 to the Underlying 
Agreement, increasing the contract amount and adding additional scope of work (work within the scope of 
the initial Request for Qualifications); and   

WHEREAS, on September 17, 2021, the City and Consultant executed Amendment No. 2 to the 
Underlying Agreement, adding additional scope of work (work within the scope of the initial Request for 
Qualifications); and  

WHEREAS, on October 12, 2021, the City and Consultant executed Amendment No. 3 to the 
Underlying Agreement, increasing the contract amount and adding additional scope of work (work within 
the scope of the initial Request for Qualifications); and  

WHEREAS, on January 25, 2022, the City and Consultant executed Amendment No. 4 to the 
Underlying Agreement, increasing the contract amount and adding additional scope of work due to 
unforeseen on-site conditions; and  

WHEREAS, on March 21, 2022, the City and Consultant executed Amendment No. 5 to the 
Underlying Agreement, extending the contract term to accommodate the scope of work; and  

WHEREAS, on April 12, 2022, the City and Consultant executed Amendment No. 6 to the 
Underlying Agreement, updating the scope and fee for tasks 4 and 5 of C082-19; and 

WHEREAS, on September 13, 2022, the City and the Consultant executed Amendment No. 7 to the 
Underlying Agreement, adding additional design work related to shoreline improvements and permitting; 
and  

WHEREAS, on December 13, 2022, the City and the Consultant executed Amendment No. 8 to the 
Underlying Agreement, adding additional design work LEED Certification feasibility; and  

WHEREAS, in February 2023, the City and Consultant executed Amendment No. 9 to the 
Underlying Agreement, adding a modification to the architectural plans to meet LEED silver certification; 
and  

Page 25 of 263



10788500.1 - 366922 - 0001 

WHEREAS, in May 2023, the City and Consultant executed Amendment No. 10 to the Underlying 
Agreement, making design modifications to portions of the CEC space to be occupied by the Library; and  

WHEREAS, in June 2023, the City and Consultant executed Amendment No. 11 to the Underlying 
Agreement, extending site design scope to include Orchard Plaza Schematic Design as an element of the 
Community Event Center; and  

WHEREAS, the City has been working with the Washington State Department of Natural Resources 
regarding the existing and necessary aquatic land lease(s) and associated permits due to the location of the 
CEC along the City’s waterfront and within regulated lands, and the City has determined that services from 
Consultant to assist in the preparation and submission of application materials to DNR for this Project; and  

WHEREAS, the City now wishes to add these services to complete the Project within the Project 
scope referenced in the original 2020 Request for Proposals and as outlined in proposed contract amendment 
#12 as attached hereto; and 

WHEREAS, Contract Amendment #12 provides for the performance of these services on an as-
needed, hourly basis, as the City will utilize in-house expertise for as much of the permit preparation and 
submission as possible, using Consultant to supplement those efforts; and 

WHEREAS, the Consultant was selected as the most qualified firm to perform all phases of the 
Project, and to date the Consultant and City and have completed phases 1-3 as set out in C082-19; and 

WHEREAS, the Parties wish to memorialize their agreement to so amend the Underlying 
Agreement; NOW, THEREFORE, 

 In consideration of the mutual benefits accruing, it is agreed by and between the parties thereto as 
follows:  

1. The Underlying Agreement, including previous Amendments Nos. 1-11, is amended as follows 
(amendment shown in legislative marks):   

a. The Scope of Work is amended to add the tasks as set out on Attachment 1 hereto 
(Amendment #12 Request). 

b. For the Amendment #12 Scope of Work, compensation for these services shall be based on 
the list of billing rates attached hereto as Attachment 2 and incorporated herein by this 
reference, with a not to exceed for the Amendment #12 Scope of Work of $62,900.  

c. The City will issue task orders for work set out on the Amendment #12 Scope of Work 
authorizing specific tasks and the Consultant will provide said services based on the billing 
rates set out in Attachment 2, provided the total compensation for all authorized work under 
the Amendment #12 Scope of Work shall not exceed $62,900.  

d. The contract term remains with a termination date of December 31, 2024, unless extended 
or earlier terminated in accordance with the terms of the Underlying Agreement. 
 

2. In all other respects, the Underlying Agreement between the parties shall remain in full force and 
effect, amended as set forth herein, but only as set forth herein. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Amendment on the day and year set 
forth above. 

 

Page 26 of 263



10788500.1 - 366922 - 0001 

 

CITY OF PORT ORCHARD, 
WASHINGTON 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Robert Putaansuu, Mayor 
 
 
ATTEST/AUTHENTICATED: 

 
 

_______________________________ 
Brandy Wallace, MMC, City Clerk 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Charlotte A. Archer, City Attorney 

CONSULTANT 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Signature 
 
_______________________________ 
Printed Name and Title 
 

Page 27 of 263



2024 Inclusive Rate

Classification (Rounded to $1)

Principal 299
Engineering Manager 264
Senior Engineer 226
Senior Project Engineer 213
Project Engineer I 156
Project Engineer II 184
Project Engineer III 197
Design Engineer I 140
Design Engineer II 147
Engineering Technician 120
Technician 107
Engineering Assistant 96

Senior Project Manager Survey 264
Survey Crew I (w/Equip) 215
Survey Crew II (w/Equip) 273
Field Surveyor I 96
Field Surveyor II 128
Field Surveyor III 152
Survey Assistant 96
Project Surveyor 172
Surveyor I 96
Surveyor II 127
Surveyor III 143

Urban Design Manager 210
Project Landscape Architect 162
Landscape Technician 107
Landscape Assistant 95

Senior Transportation Planner 199
Transportation Planner 120

Environmental Manager 230
Senior Environmental Planner I 191
Senior Environmental Planner II 258
Managing Biologist I 191
Managing Biologist II 213
Managing Biologist III 242
Senior Archaeologist 177
GIS Manager 168
Senior Biologist I 143
Senior Biologist II 166
Word Processor 125
Biologist I 83
Biologist II 111
Biologist III 134
Environmental Planner 166
Editor 96
GIS Tech 92
Cultural Resource Specialist 86

Senior Construction Manager 257
Construction Manager 194
Senior Resident Engineer 181
Resident Engineer 162
Assistant Resident Engineer 152
Senior Construction Observer 201
Construction Observer I 111
Construction Observer II 137
Construction Observer III 150
Construction Technician 96
Document Control Specialist I 127
Document Control Specialist II 150
Document Control Admin 109
Construction Assistant 80

CAD Manager 189
Senior CAD Technician 144
CAD Technician 131

Business Manager 186
Senior Admin 140
Office Admin 108
Office Assistant 86
Subs billed at cost plus 5%.

Reimbursables billed at actual costs.

  Mileage billed at the current approved IRS mileage rate.

KPG Psomas Inc.
Summary of Negotiated Costs

Effective November 10, 2023 through December 31, 2024

Page 28 of 263

holly.williams
Highlight
Proje

holly.williams
Highlight
t Landscape Architect

holly.williams
Highlight
162

holly.williams
Highlight
Landscape Technician

holly.williams
Highlight
107

holly.williams
Highlight
Principal

holly.williams
Highlight
299

holly.williams
Highlight
108

holly.williams
Highlight
Office Admin



 

Rate Schedule—2024 
 
 

Expert Witness Testimony/Litigation Support      Double the Hourly Rate 

President $ 250.00 / Hour  

Professional Biologist $ 220.00 / Hour  

Biologist V  $ 187.00 / Hour  

Biologist IV $ 170.00 / Hour  

Biologist III $ 142.00 / Hour  

Biologist II $ 130.00 / Hour  

Biologist I $ 113.00 / Hour  

Biologist Entry Level $ 102.00 / Hour  

Field Director  $ 83.00 / Hour  

Field Technician IV $ 78.00 / Hour  

Field Technician III $ 71.00 / Hour  

Field Technician II $ 67.00 / Hour  

Field Technician I $ 63.00 / Hour  

Graphics Manager $ 155.00 / Hour  

Graphics Professional $ 150.00 / Hour  

Graphics Technician V $ 142.00 / Hour   

Graphics Technician IV $ 140.00 / Hour  

Graphics Technician III $ 124.00 / Hour  

Graphics Technician II $ 110.00 / Hour  

Graphics Technician I $ 99.00 / Hour  

Project Coordinator III $ 116.00 / Hour  

Project Coordinator II $ 85.00 / Hour  

Project Coordinator I $ 71.00 / Hour  

Standard Mileage $ 1.00 /  Mile   

Company Truck Mileage $ 1.00 /  Mile  

Government Mileage Rate $ .65 /  Mile (or current rates) 
 
 
 
In the event that a subcontractor is needed for a project and the client wishes to have the subcontractor bill ELS directly, a 10% handling fee will be 
added to client invoice for this service. 
 
In the event that permit costs are needed for a portion of a project and the client wishes to have ELS or pay costs at time of request, a 10% handling 
fee will be added to client invoice for this service. 
 
For other project expenses paid in advance by ELS a 10% handling fee will be added to client invoice.  These costs can include but are not limited 
to: aerial photos, specialty maps, government documentation, color copies, oversized copies, film development and field related supplies.   
 

Page 29 of 263



 
 

December 13, 2023 
 
 
Lorie Limson Cook  
Rice Fergus Miller  
275 Fifth Street, Suite 100  
Bremerton, WA, 98337  
 
Subject: Port Orchard Community Event Center  

Survey, Civil Engineering, and Permitting Group Additional Service Request for 
DNR Lease Support  
RFM Amendment #12 

 
Dear Lorie: 
 
This proposal is for the additional service request (ASR) to support the City of Port Orchard’s 
lease renewal process with the Department of Natural Resources (DNR) to allow for design 
progression associated with the Community Events Center and Orchard Plaza projects. 
 
SCOPE OF WORK 
 
BASE SCOPE 
 
 
Task 1 – Survey DNR Lease Support - Aquatic Land Lease Survey (Hourly) 

• Perform control survey to establish control on the Washington State Plane 
Coordinate System. 

• Utilize previous site topographic survey for the required site plan and supplement 
any additional items needed to prepare the ALL survey.  

• Coordinate with the Port of Bremerton surveyor to adjust the lease boundary lines to 
avoid encroachments between the leaseholders’ improvements.  

• Prepare ALL surveys and submit to DNR for review and comments.  
• Address DNR comments and submit for final approval.  
• Record the record of survey with the Kitsap County Auditor.  
• Deliverables will be a Record of Survey for Aquatic Land Lease recorded with the 

Kitsap County Auditor.  
 
 
Task 2: Civil DNR Lease Support (Hourly) 

Civil efforts for this additional service include the following items that have both occurred and 
are anticipated. 

• Support the City team’s efforts of applying for updated DNR leases. 
• Provide an updated exhibit showing adjacent property boundaries. 
• Attend four (4) DNR lease related meetings. 
• We have anticipated approximately 40 hours to support these efforts.  

 
 

Page 30 of 263



Lorie Limson Cook 
December 13,2023 
Page 2 
 
 
 
Task 3: Waterfront Services DNR Lease Support (Hourly) 

Waterfront Services efforts for this additional service include the following items that have 
both occurred and are anticipated. 

• Support the City team’s efforts of applying for updated DNR leases. 
• Review exhibit prepared by others and potential repackage of SSDP documents to 

support the City’s applications 
• Attend four (4) DNR lease related meetings. 
• We have anticipated approximately 40 hours to support these efforts.  

 
 
POTENTIAL ADD SERVICE: 
 
Task A: Waterfront Services DNR Lease JARPA Support (Hourly) 

Waterfront Services will provide the follow in support the planned DNR lease extension: 
• Prepare draft and final Joint Agency Resource Permit Applications (JARPA) for the 

leases associated with the port property, the upland plaza, and the overwater structures. 
• Prepare necessary JARPA exhibits 
• Attend four (4) DNR lease related meetings. 
• We have anticipated approximately 40 hours of senior planner effort for each JARPA 

plus 8 hours of CAD technician.  
 
 
ASSUMPTIONS 

In addition to any assumptions or exclusions previously made in KPFF’s proposals, the 
following assumptions have been made in preparation of this scope of work: 

1. Scope of work requested or required that is not specifically identified in one of the 
tasks above may be considered an additional service.  Prior to completing any 
such work, KPFF will discuss with you the need and impact on the scope and fee. 

2. All recording and application fees will be the responsibility of the client and are not 
included in the fee schedule given below.  

3. KPFF will be allowed unrestricted access to site during course of project to perform 
survey and site walks. 

4. Reimbursement fee given does not include any DNR fees or payments for lease 
holds, fee given includes title reports and recording of the Record of Survey.  

Page 31 of 263



Lorie Limson Cook 
December 13,2023 
Page 3 
 
 
 
 
 
FEES 

We propose to provide the above additional services for the following hourly not to exceed 
fee. 
 

Base Scope: 
 

Task 1 – Survey DNR Lease Support $  17,900 HR 
Task 2 – Civil DNR Lease Support 7,500 HR 
Task 3 – Waterfront Services DNR Lease Support    7,000 HR 
 
 Base Scope Total $32,400 
 
Potential Add Service: 
 
Task A – Waterfront Services DNR Lease JARPA Support $  29,000 HR 
 
 
Reimbursable Cost* $1,500 

 
 

*Reimbursable expenses for items such as travel, reprographic copying, title reports, 
recording and application fees, and courier service will be billed at cost. 

 
 
We appreciate the opportunity to continue supporting the success of Port Orchard’s Community 
Event Center project redevelopment.  If you have any questions regarding this proposal, please 
contact me at (206) 926-0549.  
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
 
 
Jenifer Clapham, PE 
Principal 
 
JRC 
 
1004200510 

Page 32 of 263



KPFF CONSULTING ENGINEERS
LACEY OFFICE

FEE SCHEDULE
FOR

PROFESSIONAL SURVEYING SERVICES

Effective July 2023

Personnel Charges

Principal. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 270/hour
Sr. Project Surveyor . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  $160-170/hour
Project Surveyor . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $150-165/hour
Survey Crew Chief . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $125-140/hour
Survey Crew . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $210-220/hour
Survey CAD Technician . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $100-115/hour
UAV Pilot . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $125-140/hour
Utility Locator . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $125-140/hour

Project Cost Accountant . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $135-145/hour
Project Coordinator . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $100-115/hour
Administration . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $100-115/hour

Reimbursable Expenses

Non-salary costs such as charges for express mail, delivery, photography, reproduction, 
automobile mileage, parking, and client-directed out-of-town travel shall be reimbursed at cost 
without mark-up.

Sub-consultants

The billing of sub-consultants will be marked up 10 percent.

Page 33 of 263



FEE SCHEDULE

CIVIL ENGINEERING SERVICES

Hourly rate ranges for KPFF employees per labor category listed below:

Labor Category Rate Range

Principal $220 - $230/Hour

Associate $165 - $210/Hour

Project Engineer $137 - $155/Hour

Design Engineer $120 - $135/Hour

Civil3D/CADD Tech $105 - $160/Hour

Project Coordinator $120 - $130/Hour

Administration $90 -   $100/Hour

Rates are subject to adjustment in July 2024.

Page 34 of 263



 
 

KPFF CONSULTING ENGINEERS 
Waterfront Services 

 
FEE SCHEDULE 

for 
PROFESSIONAL PLANNING AND ENGINEERING SERVICES 

 
Rates are effective July 1, 2023  

 and are subject to change July 1, 2024 
 
 

Personnel Charges 
         
 2023 Hourly Rates 

Principal $250 

Senior Technical Specialist $310 

Senior Project Manager/Associate $245 

Project Manager $205 

Senior Engineer $190 

Prof. Engineer/Sr. Planner $170 

Construction Project Manager $165 

Design Engineer/Planner $120 

Sr. CAD Technician $150 

Designer/CAD Technician $130 

Program Support Specialists $135 

Administration $100 

  

 
Reimbursable Expenses 
 
Non-salary costs such as charges for express mail, delivery, photography, reproduction, 
automobile mileage, parking and client-directed out-of-town travel shall be reimbursed at 
cost without mark-up. 
 
 
Subconsultants 
 
The billings of subconsultants will be marked up 8%. 
 
 
 

Page 35 of 263



 

 

 

 

 

275 Fifth Street, Suite 100 

Bremerton, WA 98337 

Phone: (360) 377-8773 

rfmarch.com 

 

  

2023 Hourly Billing Rates 

Date of Proposal:  

Project:  

Project No.:  

 
The hourly billing rates shall be annually adjusted in accordance with normal salary review practices 
of Rice Fergus Miller. 
 

Principal in Charge:  $ 250.00 - $ 300.00  

Senior Planner:  $ 140.00 - $ 300.00 

Project Manager:  $ 130.00 - $ 250.00 

Project Architect:  $ 120.00 - $ 250.00 

Staff Architect:  $ 110.00 - $ 190.00 

Project Designer:  $ 110.00 - $ 190.00 

Staff Designer:  $ 100.00 - $ 190.00 

Interior Designer:  $   80.00 - $ 200.00 

Technical Designer:  $  100.00 - $ 170.00 

Production Support:  $  100.00 - $ 170.00 

Graphics Visualization:  $   140.00 

Project Coordinator:  $   140.00 

Administrative Support Staff:  $   90.00 - $ 140.00 

 

Page 36 of 263



 
 
 
 
 

Sider + Byers Hourly Rate Schedule: 
 
            Principal:                     $180.00           CAD Technician:                     $ 100.00           
            Senior Engineer:   $170.00  Administrative:      $ 75.00 
 Electrical Engineer:   $160.00 

Project Engineer:         $150.00 
 
 
 

Page 37 of 263



City of Port Orchard 
216 Prospect Street, Port Orchard, WA 98366 
(360) 876-4407 • FAX (360) 895-9029 
 
 

 

Agenda Staff Report 
 

Agenda Item No.: Consent Agenda 4F Meeting Date: December 19, 2023 

Subject: Adoption of a Resolution Approving a  Prepared by: Denis Ryan 
 Contract with OpenSquare for Furniture  Public Works Director 
 Installation and Design Services     Atty Routing No.: 366922.0009 
  Atty Review Date: 12/13/2023 

 
Summary: The Port Orchard City Hall facility was constructed in 1999, and through the years, 
weather, normal wear and tear, and increased staffing have triggered a need to update and renovate 
the building. The City is seeking to purchase and install new furniture in City Hall in parallel to the 
structural renovation project currently underway.  
 
The City is a member of purchasing cooperative Sourcewell (via City Contract No. C075-14) which 
allows the City to utilize contracts procured by Sourcewell for services and purchases, so long as the 
City confirms the contract complies with all applicable statutory procurement requirements for the 
purchase or service, per RCW 39.34.030. Consistent with City Contract No. C075-14 and the City’s 
Procurement Procedures Policies, adopted as Resolution No. 073-23, as amended, the City’s Public 
Works Department identified Opensquare, as an authorized vendor for the furniture and associated 
design services, awarded via Sourcewell Contract No. 121919-STI (“Sourcewell Contract”).  
 
Staff requested a quote from the vendor for the purchase of furniture and associated 
installation/design services. The City received a quote of $11,340 installation/design services (some of 
which can occur prior to delivery of furniture) and is still awaiting a quote for the purchase of 
furniture. Staff confirmed the quote was consistent with the Sourcewell Contract pricing. The City 
Public Works Department completed the Interlocal Agreement Purchase Checklist and reviewed the 
procurement process utilized by Sourcewell for the Sourcewell Contract and confirmed the applicable 
procurement requirements were met and obtained all necessary documentation from Sourcewell and 
the vendor regarding procurement. 
 
The City’s Procurement Policies require City Council authorization for purchasing budgeted items that 
cost $35,000 or more. The installation/design services plus the cost of the furniture (to be submitted 
to the Council separately upon receipt of the quote) will exceed $35,000.  
 
Recommendation:  Staff recommends adopting a resolution approving an agreement with 
OpenSquare for installation/design services. 
 

Page 38 of 263



Consent Agenda 4F 
Page 2 of 2 

 

  

Relationship to Comprehensive Plan:  N/A 
 

Motion for consideration: “I move to approve a Resolution authorizing an agreement with 
vendor OpenSquare for installation/design services for City Hall furnishings.” 

 
Fiscal Impact:  Costs are budgeted (inclusive of furniture costs).  

 
Alternatives:      Do not approve and provide alternative guidance. 

 
Attachment:      Resolution, Exhibit A-Quote, Sourcewell Contract 

 

Page 39 of 263



        
RESOLUTION NO. ________  

 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF PORT ORCHARD, WASHINGTON, 
APPROVING A CONTRACT WITH OPENSQUARE FOR 
INSTALLATION AND DESIGN SERVICES FOR CITY HALL 
RENOVATION PROJECT AND DOCUMENTING PROCUREMENT 
PROCEDURES.  

  
WHEREAS, the Port Orchard City Hall facility was constructed in 1999, and through the 

years, weather, normal wear and tear, and increased staffing have triggered a need to update 
and renovate the building; and     

 
WHEREAS, the City is seeking to purchase and install new furniture in City Hall in parallel 

to the structural renovation project currently underway; and  
 
WHEREAS, as authorized by City Contract No. C075-14, the City is a member of the 

purchasing cooperative Sourcewell, formally known as the National Joint Power Alliance (NJPA), 
a Minnesota Public Agency; and 
 

WHEREAS; consistent with City Contract No. C075-14 and the City’s Procurement 
Procedures Policies, adopted as Resolution No. 073-23, as amended, the City’s Public Works 
Department identified OpenSquare as an approved vendor for the desired furniture purchases 
and design services through Sourcewell Contract No. 121919-STsI (Sourcewell Contract); and 

 
WHEREAS, staff reviewed the procurement process utilized by Sourcewell for the 

Sourcewell Contract, confirmed the statutory procurement requirements were met, and 
obtained all necessary documentation from Sourcewell and Opensquare regarding 
procurement; and  
 

WHEREAS, Public Works staff requested a quote for installation and associated design 
services from OpenSquare and received a quote of $11,340, and confirmed that this pricing was 
consistent with the Sourcewell Contract; and 
  
 WHEREAS, Public Works staff have requested quotes for the purchase of associated 
furniture from OpenSquare and will submit these to the City Council as a component of this 
Project upon receipt; and  
 

WHEREAS, upon receipt of the quote, the City’s Public Works Department completed 
the Interlocal Agreement Purchase Checklist for the selected vendor and confirmed the quote 
was consistent with the Sourcewell Contract; and 

 
WHEREAS, the 2023-2024 Biennial Budget includes funding for the purchase and 

installation of furniture; and 
 

Page 40 of 263



Resolution No. _____ 
Page 2 of 2 

 
 

WHEREAS, the City’s Procurement Policies require City Council authorization for 
purchasing budgeted items that cost $35,000 or more and for unbudgeted purchases, and 
because staff is phasing this project into multiple purchases the total cost will exceed $35,000; 
and 

 
 WHEREAS, the Port Orchard City Council, at the 2015 recommendation of the State 
Auditor's Office, wishes to document their selection/procurement process as described herein 
for this purchase by Resolution; now, therefore, 
 
 THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF PORT ORCHARD, WASHINGTON, HEREBY RESOLVES 
AS FOLLOWS:   
 

THAT: It is the intent of the Port Orchard City Council that the recitals set forth above 
are hereby adopted and incorporated as findings in support of this Resolution. 

 
THAT: The City Council authorizes the Mayor or his designee to execute an Agreement 
with OpenSquare for Design Services in an amount not to exceed $11,340, and the Mayor 
is authorized to take all actions necessary to effectuate the purchase consistent with this 
authorization. 

 
THAT:  The Resolution shall take full force and effect upon passage and signatures 
hereon. 

 
PASSED by the City Council of the City of Port Orchard, SIGNED by the Mayor and 

attested by the City Clerk in authentication of such passage on this 19th day of December 2023.   
 
 
      ____________________________________ 
      Robert Putaansuu, Mayor  
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
____________________________  
Brandy Wallace, MMC, City Clerk 
 
 
 

Page 41 of 263



opensquare

Wednesday, December t3, 2023

Rob Putaansuu
rputaansuu@cityof portorch ard.us

City Of Port Orchard Mayor

City of Port Orchard

216 Prosfect Street
Port Orchard, WA 98366

RE: Port Orchard City Hall, Level 01-03 Renovations

Dear Rob:

Pursuant to your request, we are pleased to submit to you the attached proposal for Design Services.

We will provide you with professional guidance and assistance for the scope of services outlined for this
project. We look forward to the opportunity of working with you and to the completion of a successful

project.

lf you hav,e any questions regarding this proposal, or about any of the services OpenSquare can provide,

please do not hesitate to call.

Sincerely,

T'// P"/t
Todd Reps

Team Lead

cc Designer
Sales

File

5601 6thAveSourh,Suite4TO I Seattle,WashingtongSlOS I 206.768.8000 l26southSheridarrstreet | spokane,Washington99202 | 509.483.1000

Page 42 of 263



opensqu a re

SCOPE OF SERVICES

Verification of field conditions to ensure the proper installation of systems and freestanding furniture.
Meet with the client's designated representative to clarify depaftmental and individual requirements.

Production of a furniture space plan for (3) floors based upon the previously gathered programming

information. *

. Floor L (Police Office): Approximately (9) workstations, (3) private offices, (2) shared offices, and

miscellaneous storage.
. Floor 2 (Public Office): Approximately (3) workstations, (1-) support area (counter)
. Floor 3 (Court/Clerk Office): Approximately (4) workstations

lnventory documentation of any seats and/or storage product to incorporate into the new final layout.

Production of furniture specifications for product required to facilitate a complete installation

*One revision shall be allotted prior to owner approval of the documents, with no increase to the fee,'provided
the established program is not substantially altered.

FEES

We estimate that the Scope of Services will require approximately (126) hours of design time at the rate
of $90.00 per hour. All hours will be billed actual to a maximum fee not to exceed S11,340.00

Requests made for additional services other than what is described previously, and/or revisions are made
after owner approval, constitute an increase in the scope of work and shall be billed in addition to the
aforementioned fees. Should there be any deadlines requested requiring overtime work, such work will
be billed at one and one-half times the normal hourly billing rate.

REIMBURSABLE EXPENSES

Expenditures and out-of-pocket expenses made by OpenSquare for the direct benefit of your project will
be invoiced at 1.15 x cost in addition to the Design fees. Such reimbursable expenses may include:

Print charges for reproduction of drawings, photographs, or any other special processes

Special mail, messenger/delivery service, and long-distance communications.

Travel fares, mileage, parking, taxi, and tolls

Special consultant fees, if required and authorized by the client's representative.

a

a

a

5601 6thAveSouth,Suite4T0 | Seattle,WashingtongSl0S I 206.768.8000 l26SouthShcrrdanStreet I Spokale,Wauhingtorrgg202 I 509,483.1000

Page 43 of 263



opensqu a re
TERMS and CONDITIONS

lnvoices will be submitted monthly for the hourly fees and expenses charged to your project. Payment is

due and payable in full to OpenSquare upon receipt.

The program outlined and proposed fees forthis project are based on our present understanding ofthe
area to be designed, the general objectives of your program and the scope of responsibility. Client will
agree to cooperate in scheduling meetings and making decisions on our submissions without undue
delay in order to permit completion of this project within time frames to be presented.

Should the scope of the program be modified or completion of this project be extended, we reserve the
right to negotiate an appropriate adjustment to our proposed fees and to our schedule commitments.

OpenSquare assumes no responsibility for the accuracy of the inventory report, should items be moved,
removed, added or in any way altered by the client after completion of, or during the physical inventory.

lf any dispute, whether or not involving litigation, arises out of or relating to this Agreement, the
prevailing party shall be entitled to recover all costs and expenses, including reasonable attorney's fees,

incurred in enforcing any of the terms, conditions or provisions of this agreement.

Either party may terminate this agreement at any time by giving written notice to the other and no

charges other than those already incurred shall be payable.

ACCEPTANCE

lf this proposal is hereby accepted as setforth and the fees and conditions are agreed to as stated,
please sign and return one copy to our office as your authorization to begin work.

12.13.23

OpenSquare Date

AGREED AND ACCEPTED

Authorized Signature Date

5601 6th Ave South, Suite 470 | Seattle, Washington 981 Og I 206.76S.S000 1 26 South Shc'ridarr StreL't I Spokane. Washington 99202 | 509.483.1 000

Page 44 of 263



Page 45 of 263



Page 46 of 263



Page 47 of 263



Page 48 of 263



Page 49 of 263



Page 50 of 263



Page 51 of 263



Page 52 of 263



Page 53 of 263



Page 54 of 263



Page 55 of 263



Page 56 of 263



Page 57 of 263



Page 58 of 263



Page 59 of 263



Page 60 of 263



Page 61 of 263



Page 62 of 263



Page 63 of 263



Page 64 of 263



Page 65 of 263



Page 66 of 263



Page 67 of 263



Page 68 of 263



Page 69 of 263



Page 70 of 263



Page 71 of 263



Page 72 of 263



Page 73 of 263



Page 74 of 263



Page 75 of 263



Page 76 of 263



Page 77 of 263



Page 78 of 263



Page 79 of 263



Page 80 of 263



Page 81 of 263



Page 82 of 263



Page 83 of 263



Page 84 of 263



Page 85 of 263



Page 86 of 263



Page 87 of 263



Page 88 of 263



Page 89 of 263



Page 90 of 263



Page 91 of 263



Page 92 of 263



Page 93 of 263



Page 94 of 263



Page 95 of 263



Page 96 of 263



Page 97 of 263



Page 98 of 263



Page 99 of 263



Page 100 of 263



Page 101 of 263



Page 102 of 263



Page 103 of 263



Page 104 of 263



Page 105 of 263



Page 106 of 263



Page 107 of 263



Page 108 of 263



Page 109 of 263



Page 110 of 263



Page 111 of 263



Page 112 of 263



Page 113 of 263



Page 114 of 263



Page 115 of 263



Page 116 of 263



City of Port Orchard 
216 Prospect Street, Port Orchard, WA 98366 
(360) 876-4407 • FAX (360) 895-9029 
 
 

 
 

Agenda Staff Report 
 

Agenda Item No.: Public Hearing 5A Meeting Date: December 19, 2023 

Subject: Ordinance Approving the First Amendment Prepared by: Nicholas Bond 
 to the McCormick Communities Development  DCD Director 
 Agreement for Transportation     Atty Routing No.: N/A 
  Atty Review Date: N/A 

 
Summary:  On February 1, 2021, the City of Port Orchard and McCormick Communities, LLC entered into a 
Development Agreement for the purpose of establishing transportation improvements and concurrency for 
the McCormick Woods development project. Section 9 of that Development Agreement establishes the 
number of lots and peak pm trips that can be constructed/generated in McCormick Woods. Through this 
amendment request, McCormick Communities, LLC desires to modify these numbers so that the maximum 
number of lots is aligned with the maximum number of peak pm trips already approved in the Development 
Agreement. This First Amendment does not change any impact fee credits, concurrency, development 
standards, or entitlements for any parcels that may be covered by the original Development Agreement and 
that have since been sold by McCormick to other parties. 
 
The application for the development agreement was submitted in accordance with POMC 20.26 
(Development Agreements) on September 13, 2023. This public hearing was noticed consistent with the 
requirements of POMC 20.25 on December 5, 2023. As of the date of this report, the Department of 
Community Development has not received comments regarding the Development Agreement. The City of 
Port Orchard SEPA Responsible Official issued a Determination of Non-Significance for the project on 
December 24, 2020. The SEPA Determination was not appealed. 
 
Relationship to Comprehensive Plan: The original Development Agreement included two transportation 
projects (Campus Parkway Roundabout, and McCormick Woods Drive/Old Clifton Road Roundabout) on the 
City’s adopted Transportation Improvement Program (TIP), which is incorporated into the Comprehensive 
Plan by reference. These projects are also included in Table 8.7.2 of the of the Comprehensive Plan’s 
Transportation Element. These projects remain in this First Amendment to the Development Agreement, with 
only minor changes to required timelines. 
 
Recommendation:  Staff recommends that the City Council hold a public hearing regarding the First 
Amendment to the Development Agreement between the City of Port Orchard and McCormick Communities, 
LLC. as presented. 
 
Fiscal Impact [from original development agreement]: The proposed agreement will result in the developer 
constructing two projects that are listed on the City’s Transportation Improvement Program saving the city 
money and staff resources.  The agreement provides an offsetting traffic impact fee credit for these  

Page 117 of 263



Public Hearing 5A 
Page 2 of 2 

improvements which will reduce impact fee revenue by $1,000 per house in the McCormick area until 
the credit is exhausted.  The project also allows for the creation of a single citywide impact fee 
program which will allow impact fee funds to be used on any eligible project anywhere in the city 
regardless of where the development triggering the fee payment occurs. 

Fiscal Impact [from First Amendment to Development Agreement]: By matching the number of lots to 
the maximum number of peak pm trips already approved in the Development Agreement, which will 
allow for 57 additional units that will receive the impact fee credit of $1,000 per house in the 
McCormick area before the credit is exhausted. 

Alternatives: Do not approve the Development Agreement; request changes to the Development 
Agreement. 

Attachments: See the attachments associated with Business Item 7A. 

Page 118 of 263



City of Port Orchard 
216 Prospect Street, Port Orchard, WA 98366 
(360) 876-4407 • FAX (360) 895-9029 
 
 

 
 

Agenda Staff Report 
 

Agenda Item No.: Business Item 6A Meeting Date: December 19, 2023 

Subject: Adoption of an Ordinance Approving the  Prepared by: Nicholas Bond 
 First Amendment to the McCormick   DCD Director 
 Communities Development Agreement     Atty Routing No.: N/A 
  Atty Review Date: N/A 

 
Summary: On February 1, 2021, the City of Port Orchard and McCormick Communities, LLC entered into a 
Development Agreement for the purpose of establishing transportation improvements and concurrency for 
the McCormick Woods development project. Section 9 of that Development Agreement establishes the 
number of lots and peak pm trips that can be constructed/generated in McCormick Woods. Through this 
amendment request, McCormick Communities, LLC desires to modify these numbers so that the maximum 
number of lots is aligned with the maximum number of peak pm trips already approved in the Development 
Agreement. This First Amendment does not change any impact fee credits, concurrency, development 
standards, or entitlements for any parcels that may be covered by the original Development Agreement and 
that have since been sold by McCormick to other parties. 
 
The application for the development agreement was submitted in accordance with POMC 20.26 
(Development Agreements) on September 13, 2023. This public hearing was noticed consistent with the 
requirements of POMC 20.25 on December 5, 2023. As of the date of this report, the Department of 
Community Development has not received comments regarding the Development Agreement. The City of 
Port Orchard SEPA Responsible Official issued a Determination of Non-Significance for the project on 
December 24, 2020. The SEPA Determination was not appealed. 
 
Relationship to Comprehensive Plan: The original Development Agreement included two transportation 
projects (Campus Parkway Roundabout, and McCormick Woods Drive/Old Clifton Road Roundabout) on the 
City’s adopted Transportation Improvement Program (TIP), which is incorporated into the Comprehensive 
Plan by reference. These projects are also included in Table 8.7.2 of the of the Comprehensive Plan’s 
Transportation Element. These projects remain in this First Amendment to the Development Agreement, with 
only minor changes to required timelines. 
 
Recommendation:  Staff recommends that the City Council vote to adopt an ordinance approving the First 
Amendment to the 2023 McCormick Woods development agreement for transportation.  
 
Motion for Consideration: “I move to approve an ordinance approving the 2023 First Amendment to the 
McCormick Woods development agreement for transportation.” 
 

Page 119 of 263



Business Item 6A 
Page 2 of 2 

 

 

Fiscal Impact: [from original development agreement]: The proposed agreement will result in the 
developer constructing two projects that are listed on the City’s Transportation Improvement Program 
saving the city money and staff resources.  The agreement provides an offsetting traffic impact fee 
credit for these improvements which will reduce impact fee revenue by $1,000 per house in the 
McCormick area until the credit is exhausted.  The project also allows for the creation of a single 
citywide impact fee program which will allow impact fee funds to be used on any eligible project 
anywhere in the city regardless of where the development triggering the fee payment occurs. 

 
Alternatives:  Do not approve the First Amendment to the Development Agreement; request 
additional changes to the Development Agreement. 

 
Attachments:  Ordinance; 2023 Development Agreement; Exhibits to 2023 Development Agreement 

 

Page 120 of 263



ORDINANCE NO. ___ 
           

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF PORT ORCHARD, WASHINGTON, 
AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR TO AMEND AN EXISTING DEVELOMENT 
AGREEMENT WITH MCCORMICK COMMUNITIES, LLC; PROVIDING FOR 
CORRECTIONS; AND ESTABLISHING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
WHEREAS, pursuant to RCW 36.70B.170, the City Council has the authority to review and 

enter into development agreements that govern the development and use of real property within 
the City; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City Council has adopted standards and procedures governing the City’s 

use of development agreements, codified at Chapter 20.26 of the Port Orchard Municipal Code 
(POMC); and  

 
WHEREAS, in January 2021, the City and McCormick Communities, LLC entered into a 

Development Agreement to address the design, construction, and funding of certain 
transportation improvements within and near the McCormick Woods development in the vicinity 
of Old Clifton Road and Campus Parkway, as provided in “Exhibit A” of this Ordinance; and 

 
WHEREAS, McCormick Communities is requesting to update this previously approved 

development agreement to correct a discrepancy between the number of peak pm trips and the 
number of housing units covered by the proposed development agreement; and 

 
WHEREAS, on December 9, 2020, the City’s SEPA official issued a determination of non-

significance for the proposed development agreement and consolidated permits under the 
Optional DNS process, and there have been no appeals; and 

 
WHEREAS, on December 19, 2023, the City Council held a public hearing on the proposed 

amendment to the development agreement, and (comments received/not received, etc); and 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council, after careful consideration of the development agreement 

and all public comments and testimony, finds that the revised development agreement is 
consistent with the City’s Comprehensive Plan and development regulations, the Growth 
Management Act, Chapter 36.70A RCW, and that the amendments herein are in the best 
interests of the residents of the City; now, therefore,  

 
 THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF PORT ORCHARD, WASHINGTON, DO ORDAIN AS 
FOLLOWS: 
 

Page 121 of 263



  Ordinance No. __-21 
  Page 2 of 4 

     
 
 

SECTION 1.  The City Council adopts all of the “Whereas” sections of this ordinance and 
all “Whereas” sections of the Development Agreement as findings in support of this ordinance. 

 
SECTION 2.  The City Council approves of and authorizes the Mayor to execute a 

development agreement with McCormick Communities, LLC and McCormick Land Company, as 
provided in “Exhibit A” of this Ordinance.  

 
SECTION 3.  Severability.  If any section, sentence, clause or phrase of this Ordinance 

should be held to be invalid or unconstitutional by a court of competent jurisdiction, such 
invalidity or unconstitutionality shall not affect the validity of constitutionality of any other 
section, sentence, clause or phrase of this Ordinance. 
 

SECTION 4.  Corrections.  Upon the approval of the city attorney, the city clerk and/or 
code publisher is authorized to make any necessary technical corrections to this Ordinance, 
including but not limited to the correction of scrivener’s/clerical errors, references, Ordinance 
numbering, section/subsection numbers, and any reference thereto. 

 
SECTION 5.  Effective Date.  This Ordinance shall be published in the official newspaper 

of the city and shall take full force and effect five (5) days after posting and publication as required 
by law.  A summary of this Ordinance may be published in lieu of publishing the entire Ordinance, 
as authorized by state law. 

 
SECTION 6. Appeals.  Since the Development Agreement is related to a project permit 

application, the provisions of chapter 36.70C RCW shall apply to the appeal of the decision of the 
development agreement. 
  

PASSED by the City Council of the City of Port Orchard, APPROVED by the Mayor and attested 
by the City Clerk in authentication of such passage this 19th day of December 2023. 

 
 
 

                       
Robert Putaansuu, Mayor 

 
ATTEST: 
 
       _______  
Brandy Wallace, MMC, City Clerk 
 
 

Page 122 of 263



  Ordinance No. __-21 
  Page 3 of 4 

     
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM:       SPONSOR: 
 
 
                       
Charlotte A. Archer, City Attorney    ****, Council Member 
 
PUBLISHED:   
EFFECTIVE DATE:   
  

Page 123 of 263



  Ordinance No. __-21 
  Page 4 of 4 

     
 
 
EXHIBIT A:  MCCORMICK COMMUNITIES, LLC, DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT 
 
 
 
 

Page 124 of 263



 

FIRST AMENDMENT TO McCORMICK TRANSPORTATION DA  
Page 1 
/9-28-2023 
10728979.7 - 367463 - 0005 

FIRST AMENDMENT TO DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT BY AND 
BETWEEN THE CITY OF PORT ORCHARD AND MCCORMICK 
COMMUNITIES, LLC FOR THE DEVELOPMENT AND FUNDING OF 
CERTAIN TRANSPORTATION IMPROVEMENTS 

 
 THIS FIRST AMENDMENT TO DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT FOR THE 
DEVELOPMENT AND FUNDING OF CERTAIN TRANSPORTATION 
IMPROVEMENTS (“Amendment Agreement”) is entered into between the City of Port 
Orchard, a Washington municipal corporation (“City” or “Port Orchard”) and McCormick 
Communities, LLC, a Washington limited liability company (“McCormick”). City and 
McCormick are each a “Party” and together the “Parties” to this Amendment Agreement.  
 

RECITALS: 
 
 WHEREAS, on February 1, 2021 the Parties entered into a Development Agreement for 
the purposes of establishing transportation improvements and concurrency for the McCormick 
Woods development project; and 
 

WHEREAS, Section 9 of the Development Agreement establishes the number of lots and 
peak pm trips that can be constructed/generated in McCormick Woods and the Parties desire to 
modify these numbers such that the maximum number of lots is aligned with the maximum number 
of peak pm trips already approved in the Development Agreement; and 

 
WHEREAS, McCormick is the owner of all parcels that will be impacted by the 

concurrency change; and 
 
WHEREAS, this First Amendment does not change any impact fee credits, concurrency, 

development standards, or entitlements for any parcels that may be covered by the Development 
Agreement and that have since been sold by McCormick to other parties, therefore, none of the 
other owners are parties hereto as their rights are not affected; and 

 
WHEREAS, the properties impacted by this Amendment are shown on Exhibit D which 

is attached to this Amendment; and 
 
WHEREAS, McCormick Land Company’s rights under the Development Agreement are 

not impacted by this First Amendment, therefore, they are not a party hereto; and 
 
WHEREAS, in consideration of the promises and undertakings described above together 

with those in the Development Agreement, the City and McCormick agree as follows: 
 

  

Page 125 of 263



 

FIRST AMENDMENT TO McCORMICK TRANSPORTATION DA  
Page 2 
/9-28-2023 
10728979.7 - 367463 - 0005 

AGREEMENT: 
 

1. Development Agreement affirmed. The Development Agreement is affirmed 
except as modified by this Amendment Agreement. 

 
2. Exhibits. Section 4 “Exhibits” of the Development Agreement is hereby amended 

to read as follows: 
 

Section 4.   Exhibits.  Exhibits to this Agreement are as follows: 

 
a) Exhibit A-1 – Parcel numbers of the McCormick Property that are subject 
to impact fee credit. 
 
b) Exhibit A-2 – Map depicting the boundaries of the McCormick Property 
that are subject to the impact fee credit in this Agreement. 
 
c) Exhibit B-1 – Parcel numbers of the McCormick Property with vested 
concurrency. 
 
d) Exhibit B-2 – Map depicting the boundaries of the McCormick Property 
with vested concurrency. 

 
e) Exhibit C – Map showing the original boundaries for the 2005 
Transportation DA which remains the reimbursement area for MLC. 

 
f) Exhibit D  –  Map showing properties impacted by this Amendment.  

 
 

3. Concurrency. Section 9 “Concurrency” of the Development Agreement is hereby 
amended to read as follows: 

 
Section 9. Concurrency. The Parties agree that City streets affected by 

development of the McCormick Property have the capacity to serve the McCormick 
Property in compliance with the City’s concurrency requirements so long as such 
development does not result in the generation of more than 3,806 PM peak hour 
trips, which is the number of remaining trips identified in Section 9 of the 2005 
Transportation DA reserved for the McCormick Property identified on Exhibits B-
1 and B-2.  This remaining concurrency provided in the 2005 Transportation DA is 
being carried forward for the duration of this Agreement as set forth below. These 
trips are available as of December 15, 2020. 

 

Area 
Available 
PM Peak 

Trips 

Lots/Units for 
Residential 1 

Map 
Designation on 

Ex. C 

Page 126 of 263



 

FIRST AMENDMENT TO McCORMICK TRANSPORTATION DA  
Page 3 
/9-28-2023 
10728979.7 - 367463 - 0005 

McCormick North   North 
• Village local 

center (residential 
+ commercial 

659 (See Note 1) North 

• Single Family 
Residential 312 315 North 

Total McCormick 
North 971   

    
McCormick West   West 

• Multifamily 415 419 West 
• Single Family 

Residential 1,530 1,545 West 

Total McCormick 
West 1,945   

    
McCormick Woods 697 697 640 Wd 
McCormick Woods 
Retail 63 N/A Wd 

McCormick Woods 
Conference (Golf 
Facilities) 

122 N/A GC 

McCormick Woods 
legacy lots 8 8 Not depicted  

Total McCormick 
Woods 890   

    
Grand Total 3,806   

 

1 There are 659 PM Peak Trips available within the Village local center.  Residential 
PM Peak Trips will be calculated per unit and commercial PM Peak trips will be 
calculated by use type and square footage. 

 
The defined areas for the assigned concurrency numbers above are listed by parcel 
number on Exhibit B-1 and shown (except for the eight legacy lots, which are 
vacant lots in prior subdivisions) on Exhibit B-2, which Exhibits are attached hereto 
and incorporated herein by this reference as if set forth in full. Residential 
development shall be limited by either the PM peak hour trips or the number of 
units, whichever is more restrictive.  Commercial development shall be limited only 
by the PM peak hour trips.  To the extent that McCormick in the future proposes 
residential or commercial development within the McCormick Property that will 
generate more than the number of PM peak hour trips shown in the above table, the 
City will make a new concurrency determination regarding the capacity of its street 
system at that time.  

 

Page 127 of 263



 

FIRST AMENDMENT TO McCORMICK TRANSPORTATION DA  
Page 4 
/9-28-2023 
10728979.7 - 367463 - 0005 

4. Project Schedule.  Section 10 “Project Schedule” of the Development Agreement 
is hereby amended to read as follows: 
 

Section 10. Project Schedule. The Developer will commence construction of the 
two McCormick Projects on the following schedule: 
 
a) Work on the roundabout at the intersection of Old Clifton Road and Campus 

Parkway (Project ID #1.5C on the City’s TIP) (Permits #PW20-031 and 
PW20-032) shall commence no later than June 30, 2021, and Developer will 
complete construction in a timely and workmanlike manner. Such work 
shall be completed no later than September 30, 2022. 
 

b) Developer will submit a complete set of plans and permit applications for a 
roundabout at the intersection of Old Clifton Road and McCormick Woods 
Drive (Project ID #2.08) no later than June 1, 2023 January 31, 2025 and 
McCormick will commence construction of said roundabout no later than 
June 1, 20242026, provided that the City has before then acquired the 
additional land, not owned by Developer, that is needed for this roundabout; 
and Developer will complete construction in a timely and workmanlike 
manner. Such work shall be completed no later than September October 30, 
20252027, so long as the City has acquired the land necessary any necessary 
additional right of way and issued the permits for the roundabout before 
June 1, 20242026. If the City has not acquired the land necessary any 
necessary additional right of way or issued the permits for the roundabout 
before June 1, 20242026, but does so more than 24 months before expiration 
of theis Development Agreement, Developer shall construct the roundabout 
with 24 months of such acquisition and/or permit issuance, whichever 
occurs later.   

 
5. Default. Failure or delay by either Party to perform any term or provision of this 

Amendment Agreement shall constitute a default. In the event of alleged default or breach of any 
terms or conditions of this Amendment Agreement, the Party alleging such default or breach shall 
give the other Party not less than thirty (30) days’ notice in writing, specifying the nature of the 
alleged default and the manner in which said default may be cured. During this thirty (30) day 
period, the Party charged shall not be considered in default for purposes of termination or 
institution of legal proceedings.  
 

After notice and expiration of the thirty (30) day period, if such default has not been cured 
or is not being diligently cured in the manner set forth in the notice, the other Party to this 
Amendment Agreement may, at its option, institute legal proceedings pursuant to this Amendment 
Agreement.   
 

Page 128 of 263



 

FIRST AMENDMENT TO McCORMICK TRANSPORTATION DA  
Page 5 
/9-28-2023 
10728979.7 - 367463 - 0005 

6. Non-Waiver of Breach. The failure of a Party to insist upon strict performance of 
any of the covenants and agreements contained herein, or to exercise any option herein conferred 
in one or more instances shall not be construed to be a waiver or relinquishment of said covenants, 
agreements, or options, and the same shall be and remain in full force and effect. 

 
7. Conflict. In the event of any conflict between this Amendment Agreement and the 

Port Orchard Municipal Code, this Amendment Agreement shall control.   
 
8. Resolution of Disputes and Governing Law. If any dispute arises between the 

City and McCormick under any of the provisions of this Amendment Agreement, jurisdiction of 
any resulting litigation shall be filed in Kitsap County Superior Court, Kitsap County, Washington.  
This Amendment Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of 
the State of Washington. The non-prevailing party in any action brought to enforce this 
Amendment Agreement shall pay the other Parties’ expenses and reasonable attorney’s fees. 

 
9. Written Notice. All written communications regarding enforcement or alleged 

breach of this Amendment Agreement shall be sent to the parties at the addresses listed below, 
unless notified to the contrary. Unless otherwise specified, any written notice hereunder shall 
become effective upon the date of both emailing and mailing by registered or certified mail, and 
shall be deemed sufficiently given if sent to the addressee at the address stated below: 
  
McCORMICK:   CITY: 
 
Eric Campbell    Rob Putaansuu, Mayor 
12332 NE 115th Place   City of Port Orchard 
Kirkland, WA 98033   216 Prospect Street 
eric@mspgroupllc.com   Port Orchard WA 98366 
     rputaansuu@cityofportorchard.us   
 
Nick Tosti     A copy shall also be transmitted to the City Clerk at the  
805 Kirkland Avenue, Suite 200 above address 
Kirkland, WA 98033 
nicktosti@gmail.com   
 

10. Modification. No waiver, alteration, or modification of any of the provisions of 
this Amendment Agreement shall be binding unless in writing and signed by a duly authorized 
representatives of the City and McCormick.  

 
11. Severability. The provisions of this Amendment Agreement are declared to be 

severable.  If any provision of this Amendment Agreement is for any reasons held to be invalid or 
unconstitutional by a court of competent jurisdiction, such invalidity or unconstitutionality shall 
not affect the validity or constitutionality of any other provision. 

Page 129 of 263

mailto:eric@mspgroupllc.com
mailto:rputaansuu@cityofportorchard.us
mailto:nicktosti@gmail.com


 

FIRST AMENDMENT TO McCORMICK TRANSPORTATION DA  
Page 6 
/9-28-2023 
10728979.7 - 367463 - 0005 

 
12. Good Faith and Due Diligence. The Parties agree to perform all obligations under 

this Amendment Agreement in good faith and with due diligence. 
 
13. Impact of First Amendment. As set forth in the Recitals above and as shown on 

Exhibit D, McCormick Communities, LLC is the only property owner that is bound by the 
Development Agreement that is impacted by this First Amendment. This First Amendment does 
not change any impact fee credits, concurrency, development standards, or entitlements for any 
parcels that may be covered by the Development Agreement and that have since been sold by 
McCormick to other parties, therefore, none of the owners other than McCormick Communities, 
LLC are parties to this First Amendment as their rights are not affected. Therefore, given the 
limited nature and impacts of this First Amendment, only McCormick Communities, LLC and the 
City need to be parties to this First Amendment and no other parties who may otherwise be bound 
by the Development Agreement need to participate in this First Amendment. 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have executed this Amendment Agreement on this 
__ day of   , 2023. 
 
MCCORMICK COMMUNITIES, LLC  CITY OF PORT ORCHARD 
 
 
By:       By:      
Its:        Its: Mayor 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM:   APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
             
Patrick Schneider     Jennifer S. Robertson 
Attorney for McCormick Communities  Attorney for Port Orchard 
        

ATTEST: 
 
 
              
       Brandy Wallace 
       Port Orchard City Clerk 
 
 

Page 130 of 263



McCormick North McCormick Woods
052301-4-023-2008 042301-3-010-2006
052301-4-027-2004 6031-000-131-0002
052301-4-024-2007 5552-000-045-0008
052301-4-025-2006 092301-1-005-2002
052301-4-026-2005 092301-4-004-2007
052301-4-013-2000 092301-1-009-2008
042301-3-011-2005 092301-4-005-2006

092301-4-003-2008
McCormick West 092301-4-002-2009
082301-2-002-2004 162301-1-021-2003
082301-2-003-2003 162301-1-020-2004
082301-1-013-2003 162301-1-019-2007
082301-2-004-2101
082301-1-010-2006
082301-1-014-2002
172301-2-002-2003
172301-2-004-2001
172301-2-003-2002
172301-2-006-2009
172301-2-005-2000
172301-2-007-2008
172301-3-004-2009

Exhibit A 1

List of Parcels Subject to Fee Credit

Page 131 of 263



North

West

Legend

McCormick North

McCormick West

McCormick Woods

North

West

Wd

Exhibit A2
Areas Subject to Fee Credit

Wd

Wd

Wd

Wd

Wd

Wd

Wd

Page 132 of 263



McCormick North McCormick Woods
052301-4-023-2008 042301-3-010-2006
052301-4-027-2004 6031-000-131-0002
052301-4-024-2007 5552-000-045-0008
052301-4-025-2006 092301-1-005-2002
052301-4-026-2005 092301-4-004-2007
052301-4-013-2000 092301-1-009-2008
042301-3-011-2005 092301-4-005-2006

092301-4-003-2008
McCormick West 092301-4-002-2009
082301-2-002-2004 162301-1-021-2003
082301-2-003-2003 162301-1-020-2004
082301-1-013-2003 162301-1-019-2007
082301-2-004-2101
082301-1-010-2006 Legacy Lots
082301-1-014-2002 5190-000-018-0009
172301-2-002-2003 6031-000-032-0002
172301-2-004-2001 6031-000-025-0001
172301-2-003-2002 6031-000-063-0004
172301-2-006-2009 5161-000-021-0009
172301-2-005-2000 5145-000-023-0008
172301-2-007-2008 5139-000-013-0008
172301-3-004-2009 6031-000-074-0001

Exhibit B 1

List of Parcels with Vested Concurrency

Page 133 of 263



Legend

McCormick North

McCormick West

McCormick Woods

North

West

Wd

Exhibit B2 
New Concurrency Areas

Golf Facilities GC

122

RESERVED PM PEAK
               TRIPS

   971

 1,944

    634

North

West

GC

GC

Wd

Wd

Wd

Wd

Wd

Wd

See Exhibit B1 for legacy lots vested to concurrency with this agreement
Page 134 of 263



Exhibit C
Boundary of 2005 Traffic Agreement

Page 135 of 263



Legend

Parcels subject to 1s revision:

Exhibit E
Areas Subject to first revision

 6031-000-131-0002       5552-000-045-0008          092301-1-005-2002

 092301-4-004-2007       092301-1-009-2008          092301-4-005-2006

 092301-4-003-2008       092301-4-002-2009          162301-1-021-2003

 162301-1-020-2004       162301-1-019-2007

Parcel Numbers

Page 136 of 263

sandrews
Text Box
D



 

City of Port Orchard 
216 Prospect Street, Port Orchard, WA 98366 
(360) 876-4407 • FAX (360) 895-9029 
 
 

 
 

Agenda Staff Report 
 

Agenda Item No.: Business Item 6B Meeting Date: December 19, 2023 
Subject: Adoption of an Ordinance Amending Prepared by: Noah D. Crocker 

 the 2023-2024 Biennial Budget  Finance Director 
 Including Exhibit A Personnel       Atty Routing No: 366922-0007 
     Atty Review Date: 12/13/2023 

 
Summary:  The City of Port Orchard Biennial Budget for 2023-2024 is written to capture revenue and 
expenses over the fiscal period. During the biennial period, changes to the budget in both revenue and 
expenditures need to be recognized by a Budget Amendment. 
 
By this Ordinance, the City Council would amend the 2023–2024 Biennial Budget, as adopted by Ordinance 
No. 046-22 and amended by Ordinance No. 018-23, 022-23, and 029-23, including  changes to Exhibit A 
which identifies Salary and personnel positions of the City.  
 
The proposed budget amendment is intended to provide the following: 

 
1) Fund 001: Current Expense Fund  

a. Increase transfers out to Fund 302 by $29,000 for Electric Charging Stations at PW Shop  
b.Increase transfers out to Fund 302 by $67,000 for the Community Events Center RFM 

Amendment No. 12 
c. Reduce ending fund balance for Fund 001 by $96,000 

 
2) Fund 109: Real Estate Excise Tax Fund 

a. Increase transfer into Fund 109 for REET 1 from Fund 302 by $433,000 for Reimbursement 
of City Hall Expenses  

b. Increase ending fund balance for Fund 109 by $433,000 
 

3) Fund 111: Impact Fee  
a. Increase transfer out from Park Impact Fee’s to Fund 302 by $352,300 for the Community 

Events Center RFM Amendment No. 7 
b. Reduce ending fund balance for Fund 111 by $352,300 

 
4) Fund 302: Capital Construction  

a. Increase revenues to recognize the actual bond proceeds by $759,076 
b.Increase transfers in from Fund 001 by $29,000 for Electric Charging Stations at PW Shop  
c. Increase transfers in from Fund 001 by $67,000 for the Community Events Center RFM 

Amendment No. 12 

Page 137 of 263



Business Item 6B 
Page 2 of 2 

 
 

  

d.Increase transfer in from Fund 111 (Park Impact Fee’s) by $352,300 for the Community 
Events Center RFM Amendment No. 7 

e. Increase Miscellaneous rounding by $24 
f. Increase transfers out by $433,000 to Fund 109 to reimburse REET 1 from prior City Hall 

Expenditures  
g. Increase expenditures for the City Hall Project including cost of issuance, by $326,100  
h.Increase expenditure authority by $29,000 for Electric Charging Stations at PW Shop  
i. Increase expenditure authority by $67,000 for the Community Events Center RFM 

Amendment No. 12 
j. Increase expenditure authority by $352,300 for the Community Events Center RFM 

Amendment No. 7 
 

5) Exhibit A 
a. Adjust the Salary Table for the five groups of city employees who are in collective bargaining 

agreements by the contractual amounts. 
b.Adjust the Salary Table for the non-represented employees by the results of the salary 

review and additional 4.0% COLA, as represented in exhibit A 
c. Adjust the Exhibit A -Salary Table for the Council members based on Ordinance No. 009-23 
d.Create 1 FTE for Principal Planner 
e. Defund 1 FTE for Senior Planner 
f. Create 1 FTE for Human Resource Analyst 
g. Defund 1 FTE for Human Resource Specialist 
h.All new positions, removed positions, and salary adjustments will become effective starting 

the first full pay period of fiscal year 2024 (January 14, 2024) 
 

Recommendation:  The Finance Director recommends adoption of an Ordinance amending the 
2023 – 2024 Biennial Budget. 

 
Relationship to Comprehensive Plan:  N/A 

 
Motion for consideration:  I move to adopt an Ordinance, amending the 2023 – 2024 Biennial 
Budget for the City of Port Orchard. 

 
Fiscal Impact: The 2023–2024 Biennial Budget amendment increases expenditure authority by 

$1,640,400.  Salary adjustments will be absorbed within the current biennial budget 
allotment. 

 
Alternatives:  Do not authorize and provide alternative guidance 

 
Attachments: Ordinance, Exhibit A, and Income Statement  
 

Page 138 of 263



ORDINANCE NO. **-23 
           

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF PORT ORCHARD, WASHINGTON, 
AMENDING ORDINANCE NO. 046-22 AS AMENDED BY 
ORDINANCE NO. 018-23, 022-23 AND 029-23, THE BIENNIAL 
BUDGET FOR THE YEARS 2023–2024, TO RECOGNIZE 
EXPENDITURES AND REVENUES NOT ANTICIPATED AT THE TIME 
OF THE ADOPTION OF THE 2023–2024 BIENNIAL BUDGET 
INCLUDING MODIFICATIONS TO THE SALARY AND POSITIONS 
TABLE; PROVIDING FOR TRANSMITTAL TO STATE; PROVIDING 
FOR PUBLICATION; AND SETTING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 
 

WHEREAS, the City of Port Orchard adopted its 2023 – 2024 Biennial Budget via 
Ordinance No. 046-22, which was previously amended by Ordinance No. 018-23, Ordinance No. 
022-23, and Ordinance No. 029-23; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City desires to keep current on necessary budget amendments; and 
 
WHEREAS, it is necessary to consider adjustments to accounts and/or funds by means of 

appropriation adjustments that could not have been anticipated at the time of passage of the 
2023 – 2024 Biennial Budget; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City will adjust Fund 001-the Current Expense fund to reflect additional 

transfer out authority for the Public Works Shop and the Community Events Center; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City will adjust Fund 111-Impact Fee Fund to reflect additional transfer 

out authority for the Community Events Center from Park Impact fees; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City will adjust Fund 302 to reflect additional expenditure and revenue 

activity related to the Public Works Shop and Community Events Center; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City has sold and received bond proceeds for the City Hall project and 

consistent with the reimbursement resolution and financing plan, the City would like to 
reimburse fund 109 for funds expended prior to the issuance of the bonds; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City will transfer out from Fund 302 to Fund 109 in the amount of not 

more than $433,000 to reimburse Fund 109 for funds expended prior to the issuance of the 
bonds; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City evaluated its personnel needs for the 2023-2024 Biennium and this 

amendment modifies Exhibit A to Ordinance No. 046-22, as amended by Ordinance No. 018-23, 
No. 022-23, and No. 029-23 to modify personnel positions and salary table; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City identified the need to add and fund a 1 Full Time Equivalent (1 FTE) 

Page 139 of 263



Ordinance No. ___ 
Page 2 of 4 

 

 
10788496.1 - 366922 - 0001 

Principal Planner and defund (1 FTE) Senior Planner; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City identified the need to add and fund a 1 Full Time Equivalent (1 FTE) 

Human Resource Analyst and defund (1 FTE) Human Resource Specialist; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Council desires to adjust the budget for revenues identified for funds 

109, 302; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City will adjust all 2024 ending fund balances to reflect the impact of the 

proposed budget amendments; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City Finance Committee met on December 12, 2023, to review the 

proposed budget amendments including modifications to Exhibit A (Salary and Positions); and 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council has considered the proposed budget amendments and finds 

that amendments authorized by this Ordinance are consistent with applicable laws and 
financial policies, and further the public's health, safety and welfare; now, therefore, 

 
THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF PORT ORCHARD, WASHINGTON, DO ORDAIN AS 

FOLLOWS: 
 
SECTION 1.   The 2023 – 2024 Biennial Budget, established by Ordinance No. 046-22, 

as amended by Ordinance No. 018-23, No. 022-23, and Ordinance No. 029-23, is hereby 
amended to reflect the following: 
 

Page 140 of 263



Ordinance No. ___ 
Page 3 of 4 

 

 
10788496.1 - 366922 - 0001 

Fund No. Fund Name Type Ordinance-046-22 Adjustment Ordinance-018-23 Adjustment Ordinance-029-23 Adjustment Ordinance-XXX-23
001 Current Expense Fund Revenue 37,042,700$         7,864,100$   44,906,800$         1,930,400$   46,837,200$         -$           46,837,200$           

Expense 37,042,700$         7,864,100$   44,906,800$         1,930,400$   46,837,200$         -$           46,837,200$           
002 City Street Revenue 6,555,300$           1,826,400$   8,381,700$           596,600$      8,978,300$           -$           8,978,300$            

Expense 6,555,300$           1,826,400$   8,381,700$           596,600$      8,978,300$           -$           8,978,300$            
003 Stabilization Revenue 2,890,500$           30,500$       2,921,000$           -$             2,921,000$           -$           2,921,000$            

Expense 2,890,500$           30,500$       2,921,000$           -$             2,921,000$           -$           2,921,000$            
103 Criminal Justice Revenue 1,165,000$           257,800$      1,422,800$           -$             1,422,800$           -$           1,422,800$            

Expense 1,165,000$           257,800$      1,422,800$           -$             1,422,800$           -$           1,422,800$            
104 Special Investigative Unit Revenue 102,000$             4,900$         106,900$             -$             106,900$             -$           106,900$               

Expense 102,000$             4,900$         106,900$             -$             106,900$             -$           106,900$               
107 Community Events Revenue 463,600$             85,600$       549,200$             -$             549,200$             -$           549,200$               

Expense 463,600$             85,600$       549,200$             -$             549,200$             -$           549,200$               
108 Paths & Trails Revenue 15,300$               500$            15,800$               -$             15,800$               -$           15,800$                 

Expense 15,300$               500$            15,800$               -$             15,800$               -$           15,800$                 
109 Real Estate Excise Tax Revenue 4,979,100$           803,700$      5,782,800$           1,800,000$   7,582,800$           433,000$    8,015,800$            

Expense 4,979,100$           803,700$      5,782,800$           1,800,000$   7,582,800$           433,000$    8,015,800$            
111 Impact Fee Revenue 15,713,700$         468,100$      16,181,800$         -$             16,181,800$         -$           16,181,800$           

Expense 15,713,700$         468,100$      16,181,800$         -$             16,181,800$         -$           16,181,800$           
206 Bond Redemption Fund Revenue 598,400$             -$             598,400$             1,199,000$   1,797,400$           -$           1,797,400$            

Expense 598,400$             -$             598,400$             1,199,000$   1,797,400$           -$           1,797,400$            
302 Capital Construction Revenue 2,423,500$           16,431,100$ 18,854,600$         2,669,300$   21,523,900$         1,207,400$ 22,731,300$           

Expense 2,423,500$           16,431,100$ 18,854,600$         2,669,300$   21,523,900$         1,207,400$ 22,731,300$           
304 Street Capital Projects Revenue 13,698,100$         1,181,900$   14,880,000$         2,632,400$   17,512,400$         -$           17,512,400$           

Expense 13,698,100$         1,181,900$   14,880,000$         2,632,400$   17,512,400$         -$           17,512,400$           
411 Water - Operations Revenue 10,685,800$         813,500$      11,499,300$         197,600$      11,696,900$         -$           11,696,900$           

Expense 10,685,800$         813,500$      11,499,300$         197,600$      11,696,900$         -$           11,696,900$           
412 Water - Stabilization Revenue 955,500$             11,000$       966,500$             100,000$      1,066,500$           -$           1,066,500$            

Expense 955,500$             11,000$       966,500$             100,000$      1,066,500$           -$           1,066,500$            
413 Water - Capital Projects Revenue 18,683,400$         3,737,400$   22,420,800$         238,000$      22,658,800$         -$           22,658,800$           

Expense 18,683,400$         3,737,400$   22,420,800$         238,000$      22,658,800$         -$           22,658,800$           
414 Water - Debt Service Revenue 1,502,600$           -$             1,502,600$           1,593,700$   3,096,300$           -$           3,096,300$            

Expense 1,502,600$           -$             1,502,600$           1,593,700$   3,096,300$           -$           3,096,300$            
421 Storm Drainage -Operations Revenue 5,215,200$           (314,300)$     4,900,900$           -$             4,900,900$           -$           4,900,900$            

Expense 5,215,200$           (314,300)$     4,900,900$           -$             4,900,900$           -$           4,900,900$            
422 Storm Drainage -Stabilization Revenue 536,800$             6,200$         543,000$             -$             543,000$             -$           543,000$               

Expense 536,800$             6,200$         543,000$             -$             543,000$             -$           543,000$               
423 Storm Drainage -Capital Projects Revenue 1,294,500$           (401,300)$     893,200$             -$             893,200$             -$           893,200$               

Expense 1,294,500$           (401,300)$     893,200$             -$             893,200$             -$           893,200$               
424 Storm Drainage -Debt Service Revenue 355,300$             -$             355,300$             43,100$       398,400$             -$           398,400$               

Expense 355,300$             -$             355,300$             43,100$       398,400$             -$           398,400$               
431 Sewer - Operations Revenue 15,420,200$         1,885,900$   17,306,100$         -$             17,306,100$         -$           17,306,100$           

Expense 15,420,200$         1,885,900$   17,306,100$         -$             17,306,100$         -$           17,306,100$           
432 Sewer - Stabilization Revenue 1,430,000$           16,300$       1,446,300$           100,000$      1,546,300$           -$           1,546,300$            

Expense 1,430,000$           16,300$       1,446,300$           100,000$      1,546,300$           -$           1,546,300$            
433 Sewer - Capital Projects Revenue 29,024,200$         427,000$      29,451,200$         1,006,000$   30,457,200$         -$           30,457,200$           

Expense 29,024,200$         427,000$      29,451,200$         1,006,000$   30,457,200$         -$           30,457,200$           
434 Sewer - Debt Service Revenue 1,527,600$           8,900$         1,536,500$           390,700$      1,927,200$           -$           1,927,200$            

Expense 1,527,600$           8,900$         1,536,500$           390,700$      1,927,200$           -$           1,927,200$            
500 ER&R Revenue 6,928,200$           241,200$      7,169,400$           2,085,900$   9,255,300$           -$           9,255,300$            

Expense 6,928,200$           241,200$      7,169,400$           2,085,900$   9,255,300$           -$           9,255,300$            
632 Wastewater Treatment Facility Revenue 10,187,900$         147,000$      10,334,900$         -$             10,334,900$         -$           10,334,900$           

Expense 10,187,900$         147,000$      10,334,900$         -$             10,334,900$         -$           10,334,900$           

Grand Total Revenue 189,394,400$       35,533,400$ 224,927,800$       16,582,700$ 241,510,500$       1,640,400$ 243,150,900$         
Grand Total Expense 189,394,400$       35,533,400$ 224,927,800$       16,582,700$ 241,510,500$       1,640,400$ 243,150,900$         

2023-2024 Biennial Budget

 
 

SECTION 2.   Amended Salary Schedule. Exhibit A to Ordinance No. 046-22, as 
amended by Ordinance No. 018-23, 022-23 and Ordinance No. 029-23, for authorized positions, 
is amended as attached hereto as Exhibit A and incorporated herein by this reference.  The new 
positions, removed positions and salary adjustments will become effective starting the first full 
pay period of 2024, which starts January 14, 2024. 
 

SECTION 3. Transmittal. The City Clerk shall transmit a complete, certified copy of 
the amended budget as adopted to the state auditor and to the Association of Washington 
Cities per RCW 35.34.130.  
  

SECTION 4.  Severability. If any section, sentence, clause or phrase of this Ordinance 
should be held to be unconstitutional or unlawful by a court of competent jurisdiction, such 

Page 141 of 263



Ordinance No. ___ 
Page 4 of 4 

 

 
10788496.1 - 366922 - 0001 

invalidity or unconstitutionality shall not affect the validity or constitutionality of any other 
section, sentence, clause or phrase of this Ordinance.  
 

SECTION 5. Publication. This Ordinance shall be published by an approved summary 
consisting of the title. A summary of this Ordinance may be published in lieu of the entire 
ordinance, as authorized by State Law. 
 

SECTION 6. Effective Date. This ordinance shall be in full force and effect five (5) days 
after posting and publication as required by law.  

 PASSED by the City Council of the City of Port Orchard, APPROVED by the Mayor and 
attested by the Clerk in authentication of such passage this 19th day of December 2023. 
 
 
              

Rob Putaansuu, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
       
Brandy Wallace, MMC, City Clerk  
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM:    SPONSOR: 
 
 
              
Charlotte Archer, City Attorney   John Clauson, Councilmember 
 
 
PUBLISHED: 
EFFECTIVE DATE: 

Page 142 of 263



Fund: 001 - Current Expense
 2023-2024 Current 

Biennial Budget Ord. 
029-23 

 2023-2024 
Adjustments 

 2023-2024 Amended 
Biennial Budget 

Beginning Fund Balance 14,319,782$               -$                         14,319,782$                    
Revenue 32,517,418$               -$                         32,517,418$                    
Expense 44,113,923$               96,000$                   44,209,923$                    

Ending Fund Balance 2,723,277$                 (96,000)$                 2,627,277$                       

Fund: 109 - Real Estate Excise Tax
 2023-2024 Current 

Biennial Budget Ord. 
029-23 

 2023-2024 
Adjustments 

 2023-2024 Amended 
Biennial Budget 

Beginning Fund Balance 4,182,707$                 -$                         4,182,707$                       
Revenue 3,400,093$                 433,000$                3,833,093$                       
Expense 5,213,485$                 -$                         5,213,485$                       

Ending Fund Balance 2,369,315$                 433,000$                2,802,315$                       

Fund: 111 - Impact Mitigation Fee
 2023-2024 Current 

Biennial Budget Ord. 
029-23 

 2023-2024 
Adjustments 

 2023-2024 Amended 
Biennial Budget 

Beginning Fund Balance 5,304,555$                 -$                         5,304,555$                       
Revenue 10,877,245$               -$                         10,877,245$                    
Expense 6,877,890$                 352,300$                7,230,190$                       

Ending Fund Balance 9,303,910$                 (352,300)$               8,951,610$                       

Fund: 302 - Capital Construction
 2023-2024 Current 

Biennial Budget Ord. 
029-23 

 2023-2024 
Adjustments 

 2023-2024 Amended 
Biennial Budget 

Beginning Fund Balance 547,631$                     -$                         547,631$                          
Revenue 20,976,269$               1,207,400$             22,183,669$                    
Expense 20,930,700$               1,207,400$             22,138,100$                    

Ending Fund Balance 593,200$                     -$                         593,200$                          

Governmental Funds                                                                      
(Operating, Stabilization, Special, Debt Service)

Governmental                                                                                    
Capital Construction

Page 1

Page 143 of 263



Elected Officials Positions Wages
Mayor 1 Annual 123,911.41
Council (Seats 1,4,5) 3 Bi-Weekly 500
Council (Seats 2,3,6) 3 Monthly 1,000
Council (At Large) 1 Bi-Weekly 500
Total Elected 8.00

Personnel Positions FTE Minimum Maximum
City Clerk 1 50.15 58.15
Community Development Director 1 71.17 82.53
Finance Director 1 72.55 84.13
Human Resources Director 1 60.45 70.11
Police Chief 1 76.71 88.97
Public Works Director 1 74.07 85.90
Total Mayoral Direct Reports 6.00
Deputy City Clerk 1 37.50 43.49
Human Resources Analyst 1 41.85 48.53
Human Resources Specialist 0 30.83 35.75
Total Administration 2.00
Deputy Finance Director 1 55.40 64.24
Accounting Assistant I 1 28.65 33.22
Accounting Assistant II 4 31.96 37.06
Accounting Assistant III 2 38.90 45.11
Accounting Assistant III / IT Specialist 1 40.26 46.69
Information Technology Manager 1 58.58 67.94
IT Support Specialist 1 37.99 44.05
Total Finance/IT 11.00
Deputy Director Community Development 1 54.29 62.97
Permit Center Manager 1 39.34 45.62
Permit Tech 2 32.01 37.12
Permit Clerk 2 29.54 34.28
Permit Center Assistant 0.70 26.03 30.19
Principal Planner 1 54.28 62.96
Senior Planner 1 46.50 53.91
Plans Examiner/Building Inspector II 2 40.07 46.47
Associate Planner 1 40.15 46.56
Assistant Planner 1 35.42 41.08
Building Inspector I 1 36.10 41.86
Code Enforcement Officer I 1 30.64 35.56
Code Enforcement Officer II 1 38.83 45.04
Parking Enforcement Officer (2 PT) 1 29.00 33.63
Total Community Development 16.70
Municipal Court Judge 0.6 Annual 123,380.28
Municipal Court Administrator 1 50.16 58.17
Lead Clerk 1 31.87 38.08
Court Clerk 2 26.93 32.15
Total Judicial 4.60
Deputy Police Chief 2 69.74 80.87
Police Services Coordinator  1 35.85 42.82
Records Evidence Specialist 3.7 26.80 31.99
Sergeant 5 53.72 59.48
Patrol Officer 19 36.04 49.48
Total Police Department 30.70

Personnel Position Listing

Page 144 of 263



Personnel Position Listing
Personnel Positions FTE Minimum Maximum

City Engineer 1 62.82 72.85
Assistant City Engineer 1 56.67 65.72
Operations Manager 1 52.05 60.36
Utility Manager 1 52.05 60.36
Utilities Compliance Specialist 1 37.34 43.28
Civil Engineer II 1 48.97 56.78
Stormwater Program Coordinator 1 40.88 47.41
GIS/Asset Management Coordinator 1 41.90 48.60
Public Works Procurement Specialist 1 38.95 45.16
Project Coordinator/Inspector 2 40.77 47.28
Office Assistant II 1 29.67 34.41
Office Assistant I 1 26.03 30.19
Public Works Foreman 1 39.92 47.65
Mechanic 2 33.26 39.72
Electrician 1 35.28 42.13
Public Works Personnel 15 32.25 38.51
WA/SW/Storm Coordinators 3 34.66 41.38
Public Works Laborer 2 24.02 28.69
Total Public Works 37.00

Minimum Maximum
Seasonal Public Works Hourly 16.87 22.50
Intern Hourly 16.87 22.50
Temporary Employee Hourly 16.87 22.50

Grand Totals 108.00

Page 145 of 263



 

 

City of Port Orchard 
216 Prospect Street, Port Orchard, WA 98366 
(360) 876-4407 • FAX (360) 895-9029 
 
 

Agenda Staff Report 
 

Agenda Item No.: Business Item 6C Meeting Date: December 19, 2023 
Subject: Adoption of an Ordinance Authorizing the Prepared by: Debbie Lund 

 Positions of Principal Planner, Human  HR Director 
 Resources Analyst, GIS/Asset     Atty Routing No.: 366922-0008 
 Management Coordinator and  Atty Review Date: 12/13/2023 
 and Establishing General Duties and   
 Qualifications   

 
Summary:  As part of the mid-biennial 2023-2024 budget process, departments were able to make 
personnel requests for revisions to existing positions as well as requests for new positions. During the 
budget process, the Community Development Department requested the creation of a Principal 
Planner position to provide oversight and supervision of the planning functions of the department, 
thereby reducing the number of direct reports to the Community Development Director and 
increasing departmental efficiency. The Human Resources Department requested the reclassification 
of the position of Human Resources Specialist to Human Resources Analyst in order to more 
accurately reflect the duties and responsibilities being performed by and expected of the current 
incumbent. The Public Works Department requested a reclassification of the GIS 
Specialist/Development Review Assistant position to GIS/Asset Management Coordinator to more 
accurately reflect the duties and responsibilities being performed by and expected of the current 
incumbent.  
 
By this Ordinance the Council would evidence support for these changes and establish the general 
duties and responsibilities for the positions of Principal Planner, Human Resources Analyst, and 
GIS/Asset Management Coordinator. 
 
The City Council previously adopted Ordinance 008-20, which delegates authority to the Mayor to 
establish and amend job descriptions, provided they are consistent with the general qualifications and 
duties assigned by the Council. Therefore, attached to this proposed Ordinance for Council’s 
consideration is a summary of qualifications and duties for the three proposed positions and the 
Mayor will establish job descriptions consistent with these general duties and responsibilities.  
 
Recommendation: Staff recommends approval of the attached summary for the positions of Principal 
Planner, Human Resources Analyst, and GIS/Asset Management Coordinator. 
 
Relationship to Comprehensive Plan: N/A 
 
Motion for consideration: “I move to adopt an Ordinance establishing the positions of Principal 
Planner, Human Resources Analyst, and GIS/Asset Management Coordinator and setting general 
qualifications and duties for these positions.”  

Page 146 of 263



Business Item 6C 
Page 2 of 2 

 

 

 
Fiscal Impact: Included in the 2023-2024 budget.  

 
Alternatives: Do not approve the position summary and provide alternative guidance. 

 
Attachments: Ordinance and Appendix A, position summaries for Principal Planner, Human 
Resources Analyst, and GIS/Asset Management Coordinator. 

Page 147 of 263



ORDINANCE NO. ______ 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF PORT ORCHARD, WASHINGTON, 
TO ESTABLISH GENERAL QUALIFICATIONS AND DUTIES OF THE 
POSITIONS OF PRINCIPAL PLANNER, HUMAN RESOURCES 
ANALYST, AND GIS/ASSET MANAGEMENT COORDINATOR; 
PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY AND PUBLICATION; AND SETTING 
AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 
 

WHEREAS, the City has determined that reclassification of some current positions is 
justified based on position expectations and needs of the City; and   

 
WHEREAS, the proposed 2023-2024 biennial budget contains the addition of the newly 

created position of Principal Planner; and 
 
WHEREAS, the proposed 2023-2024 biennial budget also contains the addition of the 

newly created position of Human Resources Analyst; and 
 
WHEREAS, the proposed 2023-2024 biennial budget also contains the addition of the 

newly created position of GIS/Asset Management Coordinator; and 
 
WHEREAS, through Ordinance 008-20, the City Council delegated authority to the Mayor 

to establish and amend job descriptions, provided they are consistent with the general 
qualification and duties assigned by the council; and 

 
WHEREAS, a statement of the general qualifications and duties of these three positions 

is attached hereto as Appendix A, and incorporated herein by reference; and 
 
WHEREAS, the rate of pay for these new positions if approved, is set through the 2023-

2024 budget adoption process; now, therefore, 
 

THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF PORT ORCHARD, WASHINGTON, DO ORDAIN AS 
FOLLOWS: 

 
SECTION 1.  The City Council hereby authorizes the creation of the position of Principal 

Planner with qualifications and general duties as generally provided for in Appendix A.  
 
SECTION 2.  The City Council hereby authorizes the creation of the position of Human 

Resources Analyst with qualifications and general duties as generally provided for in Appendix A.  
 

SECTION 3.  The City Council hereby authorizes the creation of the position of GIS/Asset 
Management Coordinator with qualifications and general duties as generally provided for in 

Page 148 of 263



Ordinance No. _________ 
Page 2 of 2 

 
 
Appendix A.  

 
SECTION 4.  Severability. If any section, sentence, clause or phrase of this Ordinance 

should be held to be unconstitutional or unlawful by a court of competent jurisdiction, such 
invalidity or unconstitutionality shall not affect the validity or constitutionality of any other 
section, sentence, clause or phrase of this Ordinance.   

 
SECTION 5.  Publication. This Ordinance shall be published by an approved summary 

consisting of the title. 
  
SECTION 6.  Effective Date.  This Ordinance shall take effect and be in full force and effect 

five days after publication as provided by law.  
 

 PASSED by the City Council of the City of Port Orchard, APPROVED by the Mayor and 
attested by the Clerk in authentication of such passage this 19th day of December 2023. 
 
 
 
              

Robert Putaansuu, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
       
Brandy Wallace, MMC, City Clerk 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM:    SPONSOR: 
 
 
              
Charlotte A. Archer, City Attorney   John Clauson, Councilmember 
 
 
PUBLISHED: 
EFFECTIVE DATE: 

Page 149 of 263



Appendix A 

 
Ordinance 008-20 delegates authority to the Mayor to establish and amend job description as 
needed provided they are consistent with general qualifications and duties assigned by the City 
Council at the time the position is created by Council. 

Proposed New Positions 
 
 
Position Principal Planner 
Department Community Development 
Major Job Function and Purpose 
This position is responsible for directing the work of the Planning division of the department.  
Provides oversight and functions as a resource for Planners and permit staff related to complex 
urban planning proposals and projects.  Serves as the lead Planner on a variety of projects.  
 
General Function 
Reviews applications for compliance with zoning regulations, assists with updates to the City’s 
Development Code and annual amendments and periodic updates to the Comprehensive Plan.  
Provides technical assistance and information to the Director, department staff, and the public, 
including assisting other Planning staff and responding to questions at the front counter, by phone, 
or via email.  Assists the Port Orchard Planning Commission and/or other Planning committees.  
 
Minimum Qualifications Include* 
Bachelor’s degree in Planning or closely related field from an accredited college or university and 
seven (7) years of professional planning experience are required.  AICP certification is required 
upon hire.  Must pass a background check.  Valid driver’s license required upon hire.  Out of state 
candidates are required to obtain a WA state driver’s license in accordance with state law.   
 
Preferred qualifications include a Master’s degree in a related area of study, supervisory experience; 
knowledge of the Washington State Management Act; substantial experience in managing complex 
planning projects and programs, preparing a variety of code and comprehensive plan amendments, 
and presenting proposals to advisory groups and elected officials.  
 

 
 
 
 
 
  

Page 150 of 263



Appendix A 
Page 2 
 
 
 
Position Human Resources Analyst 
Department Human Resources 
Major Job Function and Purpose 
Under the direction of the Human Resources Director, this position performs technical work in 
recruitment, benefits, and personnel administration as well as policy development, interpretation, 
and monitoring.  Assists in overall management of the Human Resources functions of the City.    
 
General Function 
The Human Resource Analyst coordinates all aspects of recruitment, selection, and benefits 
administration.  Assists with policy research and development, research, and evaluation related to 
labor negotiations, job description development, salary research, and interpretation and consistent 
application of City policies and state and federal regulations related to employees.  
 
Minimum Qualifications Include* 
Bachelor's degree in Business or Public Administration, Human Resources, Personnel, or related 
field and four (4) years of Human Resources, personnel and/or labor relations experience is 
required.  Attain and maintain CJIS certification for access to law enforcement records.  Valid 
driver’s license required upon hire.  Out of state candidates are required to obtain a WA state 
driver’s license in accordance with state law. 
 
Preferred qualifications include experience with county, state, and local governments; Human 
Resources certification such as PHR or SHRM-CP, and experience in writing and presenting 
information to the public and elected officials. 
 

 
  

Page 151 of 263



Appendix A 
Page 3 
 
 
 
Position GIS/Asset Management Coordinator 
Department Public Works 
Major Job Function and Purpose 
This position is responsible for the day-to-day activities pertaining to coordinating and 
facilitating the design, provision and maintenance of geographic information systems and 
related services including asset management throughout the organization. This includes 
responsibility for implementation of the City's GIS and asset management programs; and 
maintenance of the integrity and reliability of systems and related data. , Position also assists 
with reviewing of engineering plans and building permits, and performs field construction 
inspections of private and public development projects. 
 
General Function 
This position manipulates and updates GIS according to information provided by other Public 
Works personnel and development as-builts; maintains appropriate software updates of the GIS 
program; and is the primary contact for City employee GIS inquiries. Position serves as the primary 
point of contact for GIS and asset management inquiries. This position also reviews engineering 
plans and building permits for compliance with regulations and performs on-site inspections of new 
construction to ensure compliance with appropriate regulations. 
 
Minimum Qualifications Include* 
High school diploma/GED and five (5) years of experience in ESRI/Arc Online, AutoCAD, and/or 
Civil Engineering are required.  Valid driver’s license required upon hire.  Out of state candidates 
are required to obtain a WA state driver’s license in accordance with state law. 
 
Preferred qualifications include experience with asset management systems and in municipal 
development or public works projects that include design, design review, and/or inspection; Water 
Distribution Manager I certification. 
 

 

Page 152 of 263



City of Port Orchard 
216 Prospect Street, Port Orchard, WA 98366 
(360) 876-4407 • FAX (360) 895-9029 
 
 

 

Agenda Staff Report 
 

Agenda Item No.: Business Item 6D Meeting Date: December 19, 2023 

Subject: Second Reading and Adoption of an   Prepared by: Nicholas Bond 
 Ordinance Approving a Franchise   DCD Director 
 Agreement with the City of Bremerton     Atty Routing No.: N/A 
  Atty Review Date: December 13, 2023 

 
Summary:  In 2009, the City of Port Orchard annexed an area of West Port Orchard that included the McCormick 
Woods subdivisions.  Within this area, north of Old Clifton Road, these subdivisions are served by the City of Bremerton 
water utility and are in Bremerton’s Washington State Department of Health approved Water Service Area.  The City of 
Bremerton does not have a franchise agreement in place to operate their water system within these recently annexed 
Port Orchard rights of way.   
 
Staff from the City of Port Orchard and City of Bremerton have negotiated a franchise agreement that outlines the 
terms of Bremerton’s use of Port Orchard’s right of way.  In accordance with RCW 35A.47.040, a franchise agreement 
must be approved by ordinance and requires two readings and must be passed by a majority of the entire city council. 
The first reading of the Ordinance occurred at the 12/12/23 City Council meeting and the second reading is scheduled 
for 12/19/23.  The City Council of Bremerton must also approve the agreement and sign the acceptance. 
 
Relationship to Comprehensive Plan: The area subject to the franchise agreement is shown in the City’s water system 
plan (as referenced in the City of Port Orchard Comprehensive Plan) as being served by the City of Bremerton. 
 
Recommendation: Staff recommends that the City Council conduct the second reading of the Ordinance and approve 
the franchise agreement between the City of Port Orchard and the City of Bremerton as presented.  
 
Motion for consideration: “I move to adopt an ordinance, approving franchise agreement between the City of Port 
Orchard and City of Bremerton to allow the City of Bremerton to operate their water system within Port Orchard 
rights of way as presented.” 
 
Fiscal Impact:  The franchise agreement will ensure that the City of Bremerton pays utility taxes within their franchise 
area to the City of Port Orchard, will ensure that the City of Bremerton obtains permits as water system work is 
completed in the City of Port Orchard, ensures that repairs to Port Orchard’s streets and sidewalks are made upon 
completion of water system repairs and improvements performed by the City of Bremerton, and provides for better 
coordination and cooperation between Port Orchard and Bremerton.  
 
Alternatives: Amend the proposed franchise agreement. 
 
Attachments: Franchise Agreement Ordinance 

Page 153 of 263



  
 

Water Franchise Agreement 
Page 1 
10669603.7 - 366922 - 0036 

ORDINANCE NO. ____ 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF PORT ORCHARD, WASHINGTON, 
GRANTING A NON-EXCLUSIVE FRANCHISE TO THE CITY OF 
BREMERTON FOR THE PURPOSES OF ALLOWING BREMERTON TO 
CONSTRUCT, MAINTAIN, OPERATE, REPLACE, AND REPAIR A WATER 
SYSTEM WITHIN PUBLIC RIGHTS OF WAY OF THE CITY OF PORT 
ORCHARD, AND FIXING A TIME WHEN THE SAME SHALL BECOME 
EFFECTIVE. 

 
 WHEREAS, portions of Bremerton’s water utility facilities are located within the city limits of 
Port Orchard and occupy portions of the Port Orchard rights of way; and 
 
 WHEREAS, a portion of the Bremerton water service area is also within the city limits of Port 
Orchard; and  
 
 WHEREAS, Port Orchard has requested Bremerton to enter into a water utility franchise for 
these facilities which will allow Bremerton to install, construct, maintain and operate a water 
system, including mains, appurtenances and service pipe along, under and across such city roads, 
streets, avenues, boulevards, alleys and public places hereinafter called “Rights-of Way,” within the 
city limits of Port Orchard; and  
 
 WHEREAS, the Port Orchard City Council (“Council”) has authority to grant utility franchises 
pursuant to RCW 35A.47.040; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Parties to this franchise are subject to and participants in the Kitsap County 
Coordinated Water System Plan (“CWSP”) and pursuant to the CWSP have entered into a long term 
and mutually beneficial relationship for the provision of both wholesale water to Port Orchard and 
the provision of residential service directly to consumers in Port Orchard; and 
 

WHEREAS, pursuant to the CWSP and this relationship, the Parties have entered into a series 
of interlocal and other agreements providing for the joint ownership and maintenance of water 
reservoirs in Port Orchard and other matters relating to the provision of water in Port Orchard by 
both Port Orchard and Bremerton; and 

 
WHEREAS, the ongoing nature of this cooperative relationship for the provision of water by 

neighboring municipalities pursuant to the CWSP provides the basis for the understandings 
contained in this ordinance; 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE,  
 

Page 154 of 263



  
 

Water Franchise Agreement 
Page 2 
10669603.7 - 366922 - 0036 

 THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF PORT ORCHARD, WASHINGTON, DOES ORDAIN AS 

FOLLOWS: 

 SECTION 1.   Definitions. Where used in this franchise (the "Franchise") these terms have 
the following meanings: 
 

A. "Port Orchard" means the City of Port Orchard, a Washington municipal 
corporation, and its respective successors and assigns. 

 
B. "Bremerton" means the City of Bremerton, a Washington municipal 

corporation, and its respective successors and assigns. 
 
C. “CWSP” means the Kitsap County Coordinated Water System Plan, as the 

same exists or is hereafter amended.  
 
D. “Facility” or "Facilities" means tanks, reservoirs, water treatment facilities, 

meters, pipes, mains, valves, blow offs, vaults, fire suppression water facilities, risers, 
generators, electrical control panels, power meters, telephone connections, pressure 
reducing valves ("PRVs"), pump stations, meter stations, lines, service lines located in the 
Franchise Area as defined below, and all other necessary or convenient facilities and 
appurtenances thereto for the purpose of operating a water utility system, whether the 
same be located over, on or underground. 

 
E.  "Franchise Area" means all areas that are within boundaries of the City of 

Port Orchard, as the same exist or are hereafter amended, and are also within Bremerton’s 
service area as defined by the CWSP and agreements between the Parties and shall include 
every and all of the public roads, streets, avenues, alleys, highways and rights-of-way of Port 
Orchard as now or hereafter laid out, platted, dedicated or improved within the Franchise 
Area. The Franchise Area shall not include or convey any right to Bremerton to install 
facilities on, or to otherwise use, City owned or leased properties, provided, however, the 
Parties have a long standing relationship as neighboring jurisdictions providing joint and 
other water utility services and nothing herein shall be deemed to abrogate or amend any 
existing contract, easement, or other understanding regarding the provision of water or 
shared facilities in place at the date of this franchise or hereafter entered into unless 
specifically set forth herein. 

 
F. "Ordinance" means this Port Orchard Ordinance No. XXXX, which sets forth 

the terms and conditions of this Franchise. 
 
G. "Party" or "Parties" means Port Orchard or Bremerton individually, or 

collectively as addressed in this Franchise. 

Page 155 of 263



  
 

Water Franchise Agreement 
Page 3 
10669603.7 - 366922 - 0036 

H. “Routine Maintenance” means miscellaneous maintenance, repair and 
replacement activities undertaken by Bremerton on Facilities located in the streets and 
rights-of-way covered by this Franchise. Routine Maintenance includes, but shall not be 
limited to, flushing mains, video inspection of mains, operations, maintenance, repair and 
replacement of services, pumps, air-vacs, PRV stations, valves and hydrants, repair of surface 
areas around existing Facilities, hydro-excavation and potholing, and valve box adjustments.  

  
 SECTION 2. Grant of Franchise. Port Orchard grants to Bremerton and to its successors 
and assigns, for the term of ten (10) years from the effective date hereof, the right, privilege, 
authority and franchise for itself, its successors and assigns, to install, construct, maintain and 
operate water infrastructure including mains, laterals and service lines along, under and across such 
Port Orchard Rights-of-Way, together with all necessary equipment of every sort necessary, subject 
to all the terms and conditions herein.  This grant shall be solely limited to the City of Port Orchard’s 
present or future Rights-of-Way within Bremerton’s Retail Water Service Area, as that service area 
now exists or as it may be amended or altered in the future (the “Franchise Area”). and does not 
include other parts of Port Orchard. The term  “Rights-of-Way” shall be understood to include any 
and every Port Orchard city road, street, avenue, alley or other public place designated or specified 
in this Franchise in, upon, under, over, across and along which rights are, or are intended to be 
vested in Bremerton, its successors and assigns, under and by virtue of this Franchise, but not to 
include parks or open space property without specific designation within this Franchise or another 
written agreement between the Parties. 
 
 SECTION 3. Automatic Renewal; Termination. This Franchise shall automatically renew 
for successive 10-year terms unless it is terminated in accordance with this Section. Either Party may 
terminate this franchise after the initial term for any reason upon 730 days’ advance written notice 
to the other Party prior to the end of the renewal term.  
 
 SECTION 4. Area of Franchise/Location of Infrastructure. This Franchise shall apply to 
those portions of Bremerton’s present and future water lines and appurtenances within the City of 
Port Orchard’s present or future Rights-of-Way within Bremerton’s Retail Water Service Area, as 
that service area now exists or as it may be amended or altered in the future (the “Franchise Area”). 
Upon Port Orchard’s request, Bremerton shall provide a map showing the approximate location of 
Bremerton’s water infrastructure within the Franchise Area. The Parties acknowledge the need to 
maintain adequate security measures regarding the location of water facilities and wish to avoid 
locating critical water facilities in public documents. In the event Port Orchard desires to design new 
streets or intersections, renovate existing streets, or make other public improvements, Bremerton 
will reasonably cooperate with the planning effort. Chapter 19.122 RCW or other applicable law, 
with respect to determining the location of utility facilities prior to construction, shall control the 
marking and/or location of facilities and shall define the parties' respective obligations.  
 
 
 SECTION 5. Operation and Maintenance. Bremerton shall be solely responsible for the 
operation, maintenance, repair, and construction of its utility infrastructure unless provided 

Page 156 of 263



  
 

Water Franchise Agreement 
Page 4 
10669603.7 - 366922 - 0036 

otherwise by a written agreement between the Parties. Bremerton shall maintain its facilities 
located within the Franchise Area in good operating condition and repair in a manner consistent 
with applicable law and prudent utility practice.  
 

SECTION 6. Not an Exclusive Franchise. This Franchise shall not be deemed or held to be 
an exclusive franchise and shall not in any manner prohibit the Port Orchard Council from granting 
other and further franchises of any kind or character that it may deem proper, in, upon under, over, 
across and along any Rights-of-Way within the area described herein; provided, that no other 
franchise granted after this Franchise shall require the removal or relocation of Bremerton’s then 
existing facilities.  No water franchise shall be granted which is not in compliance with the CWSP. 
This Franchise shall in no way prohibit or prevent the public from using any such Rights-of-Way or 
any part thereof, or Port Orchard’s power to make all necessary improvements, repairs, or changes 
therein.  
 

SECTION 7. Regulation of Use and Control. Port Orchard in granting this Franchise does 
not waive any rights which it now has or may hereafter acquire with respect to Port Orchard roads, 
Rights-of-Way or other Port Orchard property and this Franchise shall not be construed to deprive 
Port Orchard of any powers, rights or privileges which it now has or may acquire to regulate the use 
of and to control Port Orchard roads, Rights-of-Way and any other Port Orchard property covered 
by this Franchise.  
 

SECTION 8. Compliance with applicable laws and regulations. The Parties to this 
Franchise agreement shall at all times adhere to applicable local, state, and federal law and to the 
provisions of the CWSP. In the event of ambiguity or conflict, interpretation of this franchise 
ordinance shall be informed by the CWSP and the interlocal and other agreements between the 
Parties relating to the provision of water or water service by Bremerton within the boundaries of 
Port Orchard. 

 
SECTION 9.  Vacation. If at any time Port Orchard shall vacate any Port Orchard road, Rights-

of-Way or other Port Orchard property which is subject to rights granted by this Franchise, Port 
Orchard shall not be liable for any damages or loss to Bremerton by reason of such vacation, 
provided that Port Orchard shall as a condition of the vacation,  reserve an easement perpetuating 
Bremerton’s right to continue the use of the area for the operation and maintenance of its Facilities.  
 

SECTION 10. Indemnification. Bremerton shall indemnify, defend and hold harmless Port 
Orchard, and its officers, officials, boards, commissions, agents and employees  (hereinafter in this 
Section “Port Orchard”) from any action, claim, damage, loss, liability, cost or expense, including 
court and appeal costs and reasonable attorneys’ fees and expenses, arising from any action, 
neglect, omission or inaction of Bremerton or its agents or employees including, but not limited to, 
delays on construction projects caused by or arising out of Bremerton’s failure to relocate its 
facilities in a timely manner, or the condition of any of its facilities, provided, however, that nothing 
herein shall require Bremerton to indemnify or hold harmless Port Orchard from any intentional or 
reckless tortious or criminal act. Bremerton shall consult and cooperate with Port Orchard while 

Page 157 of 263



  
 

Water Franchise Agreement 
Page 5 
10669603.7 - 366922 - 0036 

conducting its defense of Port Orchard. If any such claim or demand is subject to RCW 4.24.115 and 
caused by or results from the concurrent negligence of (a) Port Orchard, its elected or appointed 
officials, or its agents or employees and (b) Bremerton, or its agents or employees, then in such 
event the defense and indemnity provisions shall be valid and enforceable only to the extent of 
Bremerton’s negligence. 

 
Port Orchard shall give Bremerton written notice as provided below of any claim or of the 

commencement of any action, suit or other proceeding covered by the indemnity in this Section. If 
a claim or action arises, Port Orchard or any other indemnified party shall then tender the defense 
of the claim to Bremerton as soon as feasible with a goal of tendering to Bremerton within ten (10) 
business days of receipt of such notice, which defense shall be at Bremerton’s expense. Bremerton 
may not agree to any settlement of claims financially affecting Port Orchard without Port Orchard’s 
prior written approval, which approval shall not be unreasonably withheld.  

 
If separate representation to fully protect the interests of both parties is necessary, such as 

a conflict of interest between Port Orchard and the counsel selected by Bremerton to represent Port 
Orchard, Bremerton shall pay the expenses incurred by Port Orchard in defending itself with regard 
to any action, suit or proceeding indemnified by Bremerton. Port Orchard’s expenses shall include 
all out of-pocket expenses that are necessary for Port Orchard’s defense, such as consultants’ fees, 
and shall also include the reasonable value of any services rendered by Port Orchard Attorney or 
any employees of Port Orchard or its agents but shall not include outside attorneys’ fees for services 
that are unnecessarily duplicative of services provided Port Orchard by Bremerton.  

 
This section shall survive the termination of this Franchise Agreement.  

 
SECTION 11. Insurance.  
 
A. General requirement. Each Party shall have and maintain adequate insurance or 

participate in an insurance authority during the entire term of this Franchise (and for a period of 
twelve [12] months thereafter) to protect itself against claims for death or injuries to persons or 
damages to property or equipment which in any way relate to, arise from or are connected with this 
Franchise or the use of Port Orchard’s rights-of-way, or their respective  officials, agents, 
representatives, contractors, subcontractors and their employees. Bremerton’s insurance shall also 
protect Port Orchard for claims as described herein that arising from or are connected with this 
Franchise. 

 
B. Verification of Coverage. The Parties will provide each other with an Evidence of Coverage 

Letter. The Evidence of Coverage is to be signed by a person authorized to bind coverage on its 
behalf. The Evidence of Coverage letter must be consistent with standard industry practices and is 
to be provided to Port Orchard upon acceptance of this Franchise. The Parties hereby warrant that 
its respective liability coverage satisfy the requirements of this Franchise.  
 

Page 158 of 263



  
 

Water Franchise Agreement 
Page 6 
10669603.7 - 366922 - 0036 

SECTION 12. Requirement for Construction Permits. Bremerton and its successors, 
assigns, or contractors shall have the right and authority to enter upon Port Orchard roads and 
Rights-of-way described herein for the purpose of constructing, extending, repairing or replacing, 
servicing and/or operating and maintaining its lines and facilities and connecting the same with 
consumer service lines, upon the condition that prior to such work within Port Orchard roads or 
Rights-of-way, Bremerton shall first obtain the necessary permits approved by Port Orchard and 
shall pay all applicable fees. Bremerton agrees to use best efforts to notify contractors or other 
parties who will be performing work on the Bremerton Facilities within the Franchise Area of the 
requirement to obtain permits from Port Orchard prior to commencing work. 
 
Before any work is performed, applications for said permits shall first be presented to the Port 
Orchard Permit Center which may require copies of plans, profiles, cross-sections, specifications, or 
such further detail of the work to be done as is or may be required by ordinance in other instances. 
Such work, whether done by Bremerton, or its contractors, shall include necessary paving, patching, 
grading and any other reasonable and necessary repair or restoration of Port Orchard roads or 
Rights-of-way and shall be to Port Orchard City Standards and the reasonable satisfaction of Port 
Orchard. Any third party seeking to connect to the Bremerton water system and not acting as a 
contractor or agent of Bremerton shall be responsible for acquiring all necessary permits at its 
expense from Port Orchard. 
  
All permits for work to be performed by Bremerton’s forces shall be applied for and given in the 
name of Bremerton who shall be held responsible for all work done thereunder, and Port Orchard 
shall waive bonding.   Work performed on behalf of Bremerton by its contractors shall be undertaken 
in the name of the contractor which shall fully bond for its work.  
 
The preservation of monuments and markers shall be undertaken in compliance with Chapter 332-
120 WAC. 
 
If Bremerton or its contractors obtain bonding for work performed by others in Port Orchard within 
the Franchise Area, Port Orchard shall be named as an additional obligee on said performance 
bonds.  
 
In the event of an emergency in which Bremerton’s facilities within the Franchise Area are in a 
condition as to immediately endanger property, life, health or safety, Bremerton may take action 
immediately to correct the dangerous condition without first obtaining permits so long as permits 
are obtained as soon as practicable thereafter. Bremerton will notify Port Orchard of the nature of 
the emergency and the work to be performed prior to or at the commencement of the work, if 
reasonably possible.  
 
In the case of damage to the Rights-of-Way caused by Bremerton or its construction contractors, 
Bremerton agrees to repair the damage at its own expense and to restore the Rights-of-Way 
consistent with Section 16 below.  
 

Page 159 of 263



  
 

Water Franchise Agreement 
Page 7 
10669603.7 - 366922 - 0036 

SECTION 13. Providing “As Built” Drawings. Bremerton or its agent shall maintain on the 
jobsite project plans marked to indicate plan revisions made in the field and other details of 
construction. The drawings shall be made available upon completion of the project to Bremerton 
for use in preparation of “as built” records. Bremerton shall be responsible for the cost of any 
required “as-built” drawings. A copy of these “as built” drawings shall be provided to Port Orchard. 
Bremerton shall be responsible for and present to Port Orchard “as built” records for any work done 
in the franchise area during the term of this franchise.   

 
SECTION 14. Notification to Cencom. If it is necessary to shut down or diminish water 

pressure so that fire hydrants may be affected, Bremerton shall ensure that Cencom is promptly 
notified in advance. In addition, when Bremerton will be flushing a portion of its system in Port 
Orchard or has a service outage or other shut down or reduction in its system, Bremerton 
Operations will notify Port Orchard Operations by phone or email as soon as feasible. Port Orchard’s 
Operations telephone number is 360-845-8408 and email is publicworks@portorchardwa.gov. 

SECTION 15. Restoration of Rights-of-Way. Bremerton shall be responsible for and leave 
all Port Orchard roads and Rights-of-way in as good of condition, after work on, or under or adjacent 
to Port Orchard roads or Rights-of-way as the same existed before such work, and in addition such 
restoration or repair shall be consistent with the applicable City of Port Orchard Public Works 
Engineering Standards and Specifications. In the event that Bremerton, or its contractors connecting 
to Bremerton’s lines or facilities under work permit, shall fail to restore Port Orchard roads or Rights-
of-way to the condition that pre-existed such work to Port Orchard standards and to the reasonable 
satisfaction of Port Orchard Public Works Director, Port Orchard may request that Bremerton make 
the repairs or undertake the restoration, but in any case, Port Orchard reserves the right to make 
such repairs or restoration to such roads or Rights-of-way. If Port Orchard opts to make the repairs 
and restoration, then upon presentation of an itemized bill for such repairs or restoration, including 
the cost of labor and equipment, Bremerton shall pay the said bill within sixty (60) days.  

SECTION 16. Removal or Relocation of Facilities Installed by Bremerton. Upon any 
construction or Rights-of-Way work or utility installation by Port Orchard that reasonably 
necessitates the removal, protection, support, temporary disconnection or relocation (hereinafter 
“relocation or relocate”) of Bremerton facilities, any of Bremerton’s lines or facilities, erected upon 
or within any portion of such Rights-of-Way, shall, if necessary, be  relocated by Bremerton at its 
own expense so that it shall not interfere with the work of relocation or change of grade and shall 
be reset in accordance with the provisions above set forth so that the location and elevation of such 
line or facility shall conform to the new grade and location of the Rights-of-Way or Port Orchard 
facilities; provided, that if a third party’s project causes the need for the removal or relocation of 
Bremerton’s facilities, that third party shall  pay for the removal or relocation of Bremerton’s 
facilities. This provision shall not apply to the second (or more) times a facility is required to be 
relocated by Port Orchard if such second (or more) relocation occurs within 5 years of a previous 
relocation of the same facility.   Liability for any damages to Bremerton that may occur by reason of 
Port Orchard’s improvements, repairs, or maintenance or by the exercise of any rights reserved in 
this section shall be determined in accord with the laws of the state of Washington.  

Page 160 of 263



  
 

Water Franchise Agreement 
Page 8 
10669603.7 - 366922 - 0036 

  
SECTION 17. Applicable Codes. Bremerton agrees that any new water line/facilities 

installation or replacement or any fire hydrant installation or replacement done pursuant to this 
Agreement shall meet fire flow and hydrant requirements, including water main looping, as set forth 
in approved water system plan and standards adopted by Bremerton and as set out in the current 
or subsequently adopted codes as adopted by Port Orchard:  

City's Building Code, including the International Fire Code,               

The CWSP, Chapters 70A and 35.92 RCW, and Chapter 246-293 WAC; and 

All other applicable state statutes regarding water works specifications and design.  

Work on, in, under, over or across the Port Orchard rights-of-way shall meet all codes and standards 
adopted by the City of Port Orchard, including the Port Orchard Municipal Code and the Port 
Orchard Public Works Engineering Standards and Specifications provided, however, that  
Bremerton’s water supply system shall be constructed to its standards and specifications. 

 
SECTION 18. Joint Planning Work. 
 

 A. The Parties agree to participate in the development of, and reasonable updates to, 
the other Party's planning documents as follows:  

 (1) For Bremerton’s service area within Port Orchard city limits, Bremerton will 
respond in a timely and reasonable matter to requests for information from Port Orchard in 
developing Port Orchard’s Comprehensive Plan Utilities Element that meets the 
requirements described in RCW 36.70A.070(4).  

 (2) Bremerton agrees that upon request by Port Orchard, it will provide timely 
review and input of the Port Orchard Comprehensive Plan Utilities Element as it relates to 
Bremerton’s operations. 

 (3) Bremerton shall submit information related to the general location, and 
proposed location of all existing and proposed Facilities within Port Orchard as requested by 
Port Orchard within a reasonable time, not exceeding sixty (60) days from receipt of a written 
request for such information, provided that such information is in Bremerton’s possession, 
or can be reasonably developed from the information in Bremerton’s possession.  

 (4) Port Orchard will provide information relevant to Bremerton’s operations 
within sixty (60) days of written request to assist Bremerton in the development or update 
of Bremerton’s Water Comprehensive Plan(s) and/or Utilities Plan Element, provided that 
such information is in Port Orchard’s possession, or can be reasonably developed from the 
information in Port Orchard’s possession. 

Page 161 of 263



  
 

Water Franchise Agreement 
Page 9 
10669603.7 - 366922 - 0036 

 B. Bremerton and Port Orchard shall each assign a representative whose responsibility 
shall be to coordinate planning for capital improvement plan projects including those that involve 
undergrounding. At a minimum, such coordination shall include: 
 

(1) For the purpose of planning, Bremerton and Port Orchard shall provide each 
other with a copy of their respective current adopted Capital Improvement Plan upon 
request by the other Party. 

  
(2) At least annually, Bremerton shall provide Port Orchard with a schedule of 

Bremerton’s planned capital improvements which may affect the Port Orchard rights-of-way 
for that year.  

 
(3) At least annually, Port Orchard shall provide Bremerton with a schedule of 

Port Orchard’s planned capital improvements which may affect the rights-of-way within the 
Franchise Area over the next twelve (12) month period including but not limited to street 
overlays and repairs, storm drainage improvements and construction, and all other rights-
of-way activities that could affect Bremerton’s capital improvements and infrastructure.  
 (4) Bremerton shall meet with Port Orchard, as reasonably necessary, to 
schedule and coordinate construction activities.  

 (5) All construction locations, activities, and schedules shall be coordinated to 
minimize public inconvenience, disruption, or damages.  

 (6) Port Orchard and Bremerton agree to cooperate in the planning and 
implementation of emergency operations response procedures.  

 (7) Without charge to either Party, both Parties agree to provide each other with 
as-built plans, maps, and records in electronic format as available that show the location of 
its facilities within rights-of-way.  
 
 (8) The Parties agree to meet periodically as needed to coordinate planning as 
described herein. 
 
SECTION 19. Shared Use of Excavations.  
 
A. Port Orchard and Bremerton shall exercise best efforts to coordinate construction 

work either Party may undertake within the Franchise Area so as to promote the orderly and 
expeditious performance and completion of such work as a whole. Such efforts shall include, at a 
minimum, reasonable and diligent efforts to keep the other Party and other utilities within the 
Franchise Areas informed of its intent to undertake such construction work. Port Orchard and 
Bremerton shall further exercise best efforts to minimize any delay or hindrance to any construction 
work undertaken by themselves or other utilities within the Franchise Area. 

 
 B.  If at any time, or from time to time, either Bremerton or Port Orchard shall cause 
excavations to be made within the Franchise Area, the Party causing such excavation to be made 

Page 162 of 263



  
 

Water Franchise Agreement 
Page 10 
10669603.7 - 366922 - 0036 

shall afford the others, upon receipt of a written request to do so, an opportunity to use such 
excavation, provided that: 
 

(1) No statutes, laws, regulations, ordinances, or Bremerton policies prohibit or 
restrict the proximity of other utilities or facilities to Bremerton’s Facilities installed or to be 
installed within the area to be excavated;  

 
(2) Such joint use shall not unreasonably delay the work of the Party causing the 

excavation to be made; and 
 
(3) Such joint use shall be arranged and accomplished on terms and conditions 

satisfactory to both Parties. The Parties shall each cooperate with other utilities in the 
Franchise Area to minimize hindrance or delay in construction. 

 
C.  Port Orchard reserves the right to not allow open trenching within any Port Orchard 

street within five (5) years following a street overlay or improvement project; however, Bremerton 
may open trench provided it grind and overlay a minimum distance of fifty (50) feet each side of the 
excavation. Bremerton shall be given written notice at least one hundred eighty (180) days prior to 
the commencement of any street overlay or improvement project.   
 

D.  The laying, construction, maintenance, and operation of Bremerton’s system of lines 
and facilities granted under this Franchise shall not preclude Port Orchard, its agents, or its 
contractors grading or doing other necessary roadwork contiguous to Bremerton’s lines and 
facilities. Port Orchard, its agents or contractors shall be responsible in accordance with Washington 
law for any and all damage to Bremerton facilities that have been properly located in accordance 
with Chapter 19.122. 
 
 SECTION 20. Assignment of Rights to Third Party. Bremerton shall have the right to assign 
its Franchise with Port Orchard’s consent, which shall not be unreasonably withheld. Provided, 
however, no such assignment shall be of any force or effect unless written notice of such assignment 
shall be filed with Port Orchard Clerk within thirty (30) days thereafter, together with an acceptance 
by the assignee in writing of all the terms, covenants, and conditions of this Franchise and an 
agreement of such assignee to perform and be bound by all the terms and conditions of this 
Franchise. 
 
All the provisions, conditions, regulations, and requirements herein contained shall be binding upon 
the successors and assigns of Bremerton, and all privileges, as well as all obligations and liabilities 
of Bremerton, shall insure to its successors and assigns equally as if they were specifically mentioned 
wherever Bremerton is mentioned. 
 
 SECTION 21. Obsolete and Discontinued Infrastructure. Bremerton shall notify Port 
Orchard when any of its infrastructure subject to this Franchise has been deemed obsolete or its 
use discontinued. The Parties will confer and may agree to abandon the facilities in place or in the 

Page 163 of 263



  
 

Water Franchise Agreement 
Page 11 
10669603.7 - 366922 - 0036 

event that they cannot agree, the facilities shall be removed at Bremerton’s expense within two (2) 
calendar years of notification unless a shorter time frame is reasonably required to facilitate Port 
Orchard’s use of its Rights of Way.  
 

SECTION 22.  Franchise Costs. Given the ongoing nature of the Parties relationship and the 
revenues generated by the utility tax imposed by Port Orchard, the Parties shall each bear their 
respective costs incurred in the negotiation and administration of this franchise agreement, 
including Port Orchard bearing the legal expense of negotiating and drafting this Agreement.  

 
SECTION 23. Reservation of Rights. Port Orchard reserves the right at any time upon 

ninety (90) days written notice to Bremerton, to so change, amend, modify, or amplify any of the 
provisions of its ordinances incorporated pursuant to Section 17 and relating to the public health, 
safety, and welfare. In the event of a change in Washington case law, federal or state statute or 
regulation that invalidates or makes any term of this franchise illegal or impossible to fulfill, the 
Parties agree to reopen the negotiation of this franchise to achieve compliance with such law or 
regulation.   

 
Port Orchard specifically reserves for itself the right to impose taxes, use fees, costs, service 

requirements, or other fees on Bremerton for the privilege of conducting this business in Port 
Orchard, for the use of the Port Orchard’s rights-of-way, to pay for the costs of regulating this 
activity, or for any other public purpose so long as those taxes, use fees, costs, service requirements 
or other fees, as authorized by law, are imposed by ordinance. A utility tax is currently in effect 
which Bremerton is paying on Port Orchard business. Port Orchard will provide Bremerton with 
ninety (90) days’ advance written notice prior to the effective date of any change to such utility tax. 
Bremerton agrees that it will not challenge the imposition of these taxes to the extent that they only 
apply to business or activities that are conducted inside the Port Orchard city limits. Bremerton 
similarly reserves the right and discretion to adopt ordinances that pass these additional costs on to 
those customers served in the Franchise Area. 
 

SECTION 24. Penalty for Violation of Conditions. If Bremerton shall violate or fail to 
comply with any of the terms, conditions or responsibilities of this Franchise through neglect or  
failure to heed or comply with any notice given Bremerton under the provisions of this Franchise, 
the Council may revoke, amend, alter, change, or supplement this Franchise provided, however, 
that the Council shall give sixty (60) days written notice of its intention to do so, during which period 
Bremerton shall have the opportunity to remedy the failure to comply; and provided further, that if 
the failure cannot reasonably be cured in sixty (60) days, Bremerton shall be provided with a 
reasonable period to cure before any revocation, amendment, alteration, change or supplement 
shall take effect. No such notice need be given in case of an emergency. This provision shall not 
preclude any other remedies for noncompliance identified under this Agreement. 
 

Page 164 of 263



  
 

Water Franchise Agreement 
Page 12 
10669603.7 - 366922 - 0036 

 SECTION 25. Non-Waiver. The failure of either Party to enforce any breach or violation by 
the other Party or any provision of this Franchise shall not be deemed to be a waiver or a continuing 
waiver by the non-breaching Party of any subsequent breach or violation of the same or any other 
provision of this Franchise. 
 

SECTION 26. Alternate Dispute Resolution. If the Parties are unable to resolve disputes 
arising from the terms of this Franchise, prior to resorting to a court of competent jurisdiction, the 
Parties may submit the dispute to mediation or other non-binding alternate dispute resolution 
process agreed to by the Parties. Unless otherwise agreed upon between the Parties or determined 
herein, the cost of that process shall be shared equally by the Parties. 
 

SECTION 27.  Attorneys’ Fees. All fees and expenses for mediation or arbitration shall be 
borne by the Parties equally.  However, each Party shall bear the expense of its own counsel, 
experts, witnesses, and preparation and presentation of evidence. In any claim or lawsuit for 
damages arising from the Parties' performance of this Agreement, each Party shall pay all its legal 
costs and attorney's fees incurred in defending or bringing such claim or lawsuit, in addition to any 
other recovery or award provided by law; provided, however, nothing in this paragraph shall be 
construed to limit Port Orchard’s or Bremerton’s right to indemnification under Section 11 of this 
Agreement. 
 
 SECTION 28. Severability. This Agreement shall be construed to give effect to such 
purposes and uses under this Franchise which are consistent with economical and efficient service 
rendered in the public interest. If any provision of this Franchise, or its application, is determined to 
be invalid by court of law, then the remaining provisions shall continue and be valid unless the 
dominant purpose of the franchise or the public interest herein is thwarted thereby.  
 
 SECTION 29. Venue and Applicable Law. This Agreement shall be governed by the laws of 
the State of Washington. Venue for all actions arising under this Agreement shall be Kitsap County 
Superior Court.  
 
 SECTION 30. Amendment. This Franchise may be amended only by written instrument, 
signed by both Parties, which specifically states that it is an amendment to this Franchise, and is 
approved and executed in accordance with the laws of the State of Washington.  Without limiting 
the generality of the foregoing, this Franchise (including, without limitation, Section 11 
“Indemnification” above) shall govern and supersede and shall not be changed, modified, deleted, 
added to, supplemented or otherwise amended by any permit, approval, license, agreement or 
other document required by or obtained from Port Orchard in conjunction with the exercise (or 
failure to exercise) by Bremerton of any and all rights, benefits, privileges, obligations, or duties in 
and under this Franchise.  
  
 SECTION 31. Bremerton Acceptance of Franchise. Bremerton shall have no rights under 
this Franchise, nor shall Bremerton be bound by the terms and conditions of this Franchise unless 

Page 165 of 263



  
 

Water Franchise Agreement 
Page 13 
10669603.7 - 366922 - 0036 

Bremerton shall, within sixty (60) days after the effective date of the ordinance, file with Port 
Orchard its written acceptance of this Franchise. 
  
 SECTION 32. Effective Date of Franchise. The terms and conditions of this ordinance shall 
not be binding on Port Orchard and Bremerton unless the Bremerton City Council within sixty (60) 
days of the effective date of Port Orchard’s approval of the Franchise Ordinance adopts a resolution 
accepting this Franchise, and the date of the adoption of such resolution by the Bremerton City 
Council shall be the effective date ("Effective Date") of the Franchise. 
 
 SECTION 33. Notice. Unless applicable law requires a different method of giving notice, any 
and all notices, demands or other communications required or desired to be given hereunder by 
any Party (collectively, "notices") shall be in writing and shall be validly given or made to another 
Party if delivered either personally or by Federal Express or other overnight delivery service of 
recognized standing, or if deposited in the United States Mail, certified, registered, or express mail 
with postage prepaid, or if sent by e-mail with electronic confirmation.  If such notice is personally 
delivered, it shall be conclusively deemed given at the time of such delivery.  If such notice is 
delivered by Federal Express or other overnight delivery service of recognized standing, it shall be 
deemed given one (1) business day after the deposit thereof with such delivery service.  If such 
notice is mailed as provided herein, such shall be deemed given three (3) business days after the 
deposit thereof in the United States Mail.  If such notice is sent by email, it shall be deemed given 
at the time of the sender's receipt of electronic confirmation.  Each such notice shall be deemed 
given only if properly addressed to the Party to whom such notice is to be given as follows: 
 

To Port Orchard: Public Works Director 
City of Port Orchard 
216 Prospect Street 
Port Orchard, WA 98366 
Phone: (360) 876-4407 
 
With a Copy to the City Clerk at the same address 
 

To Bremerton: 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Public Works Director 
City of Bremerton 
345 6th Street, Suite 100 
Bremerton, WA  98337 
Phone: (360) 473-2376 

Any Party may change its address for the purpose of receiving notices as herein provided by a 
written notice given in the manner required by this Section to the other Party. 
 

Page 166 of 263



  
 

Water Franchise Agreement 
Page 14 
10669603.7 - 366922 - 0036 

 SECTION 34. Entire Agreement. The Port Orchard Franchise Ordinance along with this 
Agreement and all exhibits thereto presents the entire agreement between the parties with respect 
to any matter covered by the franchise. 
 
 SECTION 35. Effective Date of Ordinance. This ordinance shall be published in the official 
newspaper of the city and shall take full force and effect five (5) days after the date of publication.  
A summary of this ordinance in the form of the ordinance title may be published in lieu of publishing 
the ordinance in its entirety. 
 
 PASSED by the City Council of the City of Port Orchard, APPROVED by the Mayor and attested 
by the City Clerk in authentication of such passage this  19th day of December 2023. 
 

 
___________________________  
Robert Putaansuu, Mayor  

    
 
ATTEST:        
 
 
____________________________________  
Brandy Wallace, MMC, City Clerk     
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM:     SPONSOR: 
 
 
              
Charlotte A. Archer      Cindy Lucarelli, Council Member 
Port Orchard City Attorney    
 
 
PUBLISHED:   
EFFECTIVE DATE: 
 
 
  

Page 167 of 263



  
 

Water Franchise Agreement 
Page 15 
10669603.7 - 366922 - 0036 

ACCEPTANCE OF FRANCHISE BY BREMERTON 
 

 
 The undersigned authorized representative of the City of Bremerton hereby declares on behalf 
of the Bremerton Mayor and City Council the acceptance of the nonexclusive franchise to the City of 
Bremerton approved by the Port Orchard City Council on ____________, 2023, by the adoption of City 
of Port Orchard Ordinance No.  . 
 
 DATED this ______ day of ________________, 20__. 
 
 
       CITY OF BREMERTON 
 
 
        ______________________________ 
       Greg Wheeler, Mayor     
ATTEST/AUTHENTICATED:        
 
 
____________________________________    
Bremerton City Clerk 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM:     
 
 
        
Kylie J. Finnell 
Bremerton City Attorney    
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 168 of 263



City of Port Orchard 
216 Prospect Street, Port Orchard, WA 98366 
(360) 876-4407 • FAX (360) 895-9029 
 
 

 
Agenda Staff Report 

 
Agenda Item No.: Business Item 6E Meeting Date: December 19, 2023 

Subject: Adoption of a Resolution Confirming Prepared by: Brandy Wallace, MMC 
 Mayoral Appointments to Boards,   City Clerk 
 Committees, and Commissions      Atty Routing No.: N/A 
  Atty Review Date: N/A 

 
Summary:  Annually, the City Clerk’s office reviews the expiring terms and/or vacancy of members of various 
boards, committees, and commissions. 
 
The Mayor is seeking to appoint the following volunteers to fill expired or vacant terms on various boards, 
committees, and commissions, upon confirmation of the City Council: 
 

• Planning Commission: Appointment of Wayne Wright to Vacant Position No. 4 for a three-year term 
expiring December 31, 2026; the appointment of Louis Ta, Position No. 5 to a four-year term expiring 
December 31, 2027; and the reappointments of Bek Ashby, Position No. 6 and Joe Morrisson, 
Position No. 7 to a four-year term expiring December 31, 2027. 

 
• Design Review Board: Appointment of Laurie Wagner, Lay Position No. 3 to the Design Review 

Board, for a three-year term expiring December 31, 2026. 
 

• Animal Control Appeal Board: Reappointment of Lorraine Olsen for a three-year term expiring 
December 31, 2026. 

 
• Building Board of Appeals: Reappointment of Matt Zawlocki to the Building Board of Appeals for a 

five-year term expiring December 31, 2028. 
 

• Kitsap County Capital Grant Recommendation Committee: Reappointment of Christine Stansbery to 
the Kitsap County Capital Grant Recommendation Committee for a one-year term expiring December 
31, 2024. 

 
• Kitsap County Services Grant Recommendation Committee: Appointment of Rochelle Lemay to the 

Kitsap County Services Grant Recommendation Committee for a one-year term expiring December 
31, 2024. 

 
• Peninsula Regional Transpiration Planning Organization (PRTPO): reappointment of Bek Ashby to 

the Peninsula Regional Transportation Planning Organization (PRTPO) for a one-year term expiring 
December 31, 2024. 
 

Page 169 of 263



Business Item 6E 
Page 2 of 2 

 

 

Recommendation:  Mayor Putaansuu recommends adoption of a Resolution confirming his appointments, 
as presented. 
 
Relationship to Comprehensive Plan: N/A. 

 
Motion for consideration: “I move to adopt a resolution confirming the Mayor’s appointments to the 
Boards, Committees, and Commissions, as set forth in the Resolution presented.” 
 
Fiscal Impact: None. 
 
Alternatives: Not confirm the Mayor’s appointment and provide further direction. 
 
Attachments: Resolution.  

Page 170 of 263



 
RESOLUTION NO. _____ 

 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF PORT ORCHARD, WASHINGTON CONFIRMING 
MAYORAL APPOINTMENTS TO THE PLANNING COMMISSION, DESIGN REVIEW 
BOARD, BUILDING BOARD OF APPEALS, KITSAP COUNTY GRANT AND CAPITAL 
GRANT RECOMMENDATION COMMITTEE AND PENINSULA REGIONAL 
TRANSPORATION PLANNING ORGANIZATION (PRTPO). 

 
 WHEREAS, the Mayor is authorized to appoint volunteers to fill expired or vacant terms 
on various boards, committees, and commissions, upon confirmation of the City Council; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the following boards, committees, and commissions have expiring or vacant 
terms; now therefore,  

 
 THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF PORT ORCHARD, WASHINGTON, HEREBY RESOLVES 
AS FOLLOWS: 

 
THAT:  The City Council of the City of Port Orchard does hereby confirm 
the appointment of Wayne Wright to fill vacant Position No. 4, for a 
three-year term expiring December 31, 2026; the appointment of Louis 
Ta, Position No. 5, to a four-year term expiring December 31, 2027; and 
the reappointments of Bek Ashby, Position No. 6 and Joe Morrisson, 
Position No. 7 to a four-year term expiring December 31, 2027, to the 
Planning Commission. 
 
THAT: The City Council of the City of Port Orchard does hereby confirm 
the appointment of Laurie Wagner, Lay Position No. 3, to the Design 
Review Board, for a three-year term expiring December 31, 2026. 
 
THAT: The City Council of the City of Port Orchard does herby confirm the 
reappointment of Lorraine Olson to the Animal Control Appeal Board for 
a three-year term expiring December 31, 2026. 
 
THAT: The City Council of the City of Port Orchard does hereby confirm 
the reappointment of Matt Zawlocki to the Building Board of Appeals for 
a five-year term expiring December 31, 2028. 

 
THAT: The City Council of the City of Port Orchard does hereby confirm 
the reappointment of Christine Stansbery to the Kitsap County Capital 
Grant Recommendation Committee for a one-year term expiring 
December 31, 2024. 
 
THAT: The City Council of the City of Port Orchard does hereby confirm 
the appointment of Rochelle Lemay to the Kitsap County Services Grant 
Recommendation Committee for a one-year term expiring December 31, 
2024. 
 
 
 
 

Page 171 of 263



Resolution No. __ 
Page 2 of 2 

 
   

THAT: The City Council of the City of Port Orchard does hereby confirm 
the reappointment of Bek Ashby to the Peninsula Regional 
Transportation Planning Organization (PRTPO) for a one-year term 
expiring December 31, 2024. 

 
 PASSED by the City Council of the City of Port Orchard, APPROVED by the Mayor and 
attested by the City Clerk in authentication of such passage this 19th day of December 2023. 
 
 
 
 
        
 Robert Putaansuu, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
 
    
Brandy Wallace, MMC, City Clerk 
 
  

Page 172 of 263



 
City of Port Orchard 
216 Prospect Street, Port Orchard, WA 98366 
(360) 876-4407 • FAX (360) 895-9029 
            

 
Agenda Staff Report 

 
Agenda Item No. Business Item 6F Meeting Date: December 19, 2023 

Subject: Adoption of a Resolution Authorizing the  Prepared by: Denis Ryan 
 Purchase of a Portion of Kitsap County Tax   Public Works Director 
 Parcel No. 342401-4-027-2008 (Freeman)     Atty Routing No: 366922-0009 
 for the Pottery Sidewalk Extension & Road  Atty Review Date: 12/13/2023 
 Project   

 
Summary: The City has identified the need to acquire real property to support the construction of the Pottery Ave 
Sidewalk Extension and Road Project (the “Project”). The City engaged the consulting firm Commonstreet 
Consulting to serve as the City’s Right of Way Agent for this Project and associated acquisitions.  Based on the 
Project designs, the City identified the necessary acquisition of a strip of approximately 1,800 square feet of real 
property located at 1698 Pottery Ave, Kitsap County Tax Parcel No. 342401-4-027-2008 (the “Property”) for the 
Project.  Consistent with the City’s policies for Right of Way Acquisition (utilizing the WSDOT requirements for this 
type of project), on November 30, 2023 the City—through its Consultant—issued an offer letter to the owners of 
the Property. The acquisition will not displace the Property’s owners but rather merely impact a portion of the 
yard and landscaping.  

Following the issuance of the offer, it was determined, that an additional $3,700 as an administrative settlement 
was necessary composition for the Property’s owners to cover capital gains tax costs associated with the 
transaction. Additionally, the Consultant identified a deed of trust on this Property, that creates a financial 
encumbrance that will require the execution of a partial reconveyance issued by the lender. Accordingly, this 
transaction will close through escrow with title insurance to clear the deed of trust encumbrance, with the closing 
costs an associated administrative cost for the City to bear.   

The City’s Right of Way Agent has negotiated the terms of purchase for the Property by the City of the Property, 
subject to Council approval. The total proposed costs are set out on the Real Property Voucher as: $19,8000 for 
the acquisition, $2,523 for landscaping, and $3,777 as an administrative settlement associated with the tax issue, 
as well as up to $10,000 for estimated closing costs.  
 
Relationship to Comprehensive Plan:  Chapter 8 - Transportation  

Recommendation: That the City Council authorize the acquisition of a portion of Kitsap County Tax Parcel No. 
342401-4-027-2008, as described in Exhibit A, for the Pottery Ave Sidewalk Extension and Road Project, for an 
Acquisition Payment not to exceed $26,100.00, plus payment of up to $10,000 in additional associated closing 
costs, and authorizes the Mayor or designee to execute all necessary documents to effectuate the purchase.  

Motion for Consideration:  I move to adopt a resolution, authorizing the purchase of Kitsap County Tax Parcel No. 
342401-4-027-2008 for the Pottery Ave Sidewalk Extension and Road Project.  

Fiscal Impact: Grant and Local Match funding for this acquisition expenditure is allocated within the Project 
Funding Estimate (PFE) for the Project and the 2021-2022 Biennial Budget. 

Alternatives: Do not approve and provide alternative guidance. 

Attachments: Resolution, Offer Letter and Warranty Deed, Real Property Voucher 

Page 173 of 263



RESOLUTION NO. ____ 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF PORT ORCHARD, WASHINGTON, AUTHORIZING 
THE PURCHASE OF A PORTION OF KITSAP COUNTY TAX PARCEL NO. 342401-4-
027-2008 FOR THE POTTERY AVE SIDEWALK EXTENSION AND ROAD PROJECT 
AND AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR TO EXECUTE ALL NECESSARY DOCUMENTS TO 
EFFECTUATE TRANSACTION. 
  
WHEREAS, the City has identified the need to acquire real property to support the 

construction of the Pottery Ave Sidewalk Extension and Road Project (the “Project”); and 
 
WHEREAS, in accordance with the City’s Acquisition Procedures, the City retained a 

Right of Way Acquisition Consultant, Commonstreet Consulting, (the “Consultant”) to assist 
with the Project; and  

 
WHEREAS, on November 30, 2023, the City through its Consultant issued an offer letter 

to the owners of real property located at 1698 Pottery Ave, Kitsap County Tax Parcel No. 
342401-4-027-2008 (the “Property”), to purchase approximately 1,800 square feet of the 
Property which is needed for the Project and for associated landscaping to redress Project 
impacts on the Property; and  

 
WHEREAS, it was determined, after the original administrative offer was made, that an 

additional $3,700 as an administrative settlement was necessary to cover capital gains tax costs 
associated with the transaction; and  

 
WHEREAS, the City’s Right of Way Agent has negotiated the terms of purchase by the 

City of the Property and recommends payment to the owners of the Property in the amount of 
$26,100, inclusive of fair market value for the portion the Property to be acquired, necessary 
landscaping improvements to restore the impacted Property, and an administrative settlement 
associated with the tax issue; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City’s Right of Way Agent recommends pre-approval of up to $10,000 in 

closing costs associated with the transaction in order to ensure timely acquisition for the 
Project; and  

 
WHEREAS, the Port Orchard City Council finds it is in the best interest of the City to 

authorize the acquisition of the Property for the amounts recommended by the Consultant; 
now, therefore,  
 
 THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF PORT ORCHARD, WASHINGTON, HEREBY RESOLVES 
AS FOLLOWS:   
 

THAT: It is the intent of the Port Orchard City Council that the recitals set forth above 
are hereby adopted and incorporated as findings in support of this Resolution. 

Page 174 of 263



Resolution No. ___ 
Page 2 of 2 

 
 

THAT: The City Council authorizes the acquisition of a portion of Kitsap County Tax 
Parcel No. 342401-4-027-2008, as described in Exhibit A, for the Pottery Ave Sidewalk 
Extension and Road Project, for a Total Acquisition Payment not to exceed $26,100, plus 
an expenditure of up to $10,000 in associated closing costs and authorizes the Mayor or 
designee to execute all necessary documents to effectuate the purchase.  
 

 PASSED by the City Council of the City of Port Orchard, SIGNED by the Mayor and 
attested by the City Clerk in authentication of such passage on this 19th day of December 2023.   
 
 
 
      ____________________________________ 
      Robert Putaansuu, Mayor  
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
____________________________  
Brandy Wallace, MMC, City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
   

Page 175 of 263



~o~ 
ORCHARD® 
~ - 

November 30, 2023 

Claimants 
Elizabeth Freeman and Garry Freeman 
1698 Pottery Ave 
Port Orchard WA 98366 

Re: Offer Letter and Receipt 
Project Title: Pottery Ave Sidewalk Extension and Road Diet Project 
Project No: PW 2023-002 
Parcel No.: 4-027 
Tax ID No.: 342401-4-027-2008 

Dear Elizabeth Freeman and Dale Freeman: 

The city of Port Orchard plans to improve Pottery Ave near your home at 1698 Pottery Ave. In 
order to construct, install, and maintain the sidewalk improvements as designed, we need to 
acquire property rights from you so that we can preserve the project's functionality. I have 
attached a drawing which shows the area we need to purchase. 

The city of Port Orchard has established an amount it believes is just compensation for the 
proposed acquisition of a fee area abutting Pottery Avenue. Based on the market value 
estimated for your property, we are offering the following: 

11800 Sguare Foot (mLI} fee title $19,800.00 
lm12rovements: Landsca12ing (Grass & Tree) $ 2,523.00 

Total Compensation: $22,323.00 

This offer is being made on a willing buyer/willing seller basis and the sale of these property 
rights to the City is voluntary. If you decide to accept the offer, the Agency will pay all closing 
costs including the Real Estate Excise Tax on this transaction. If you decide to reject the offer, 
then the Agency will notify you in writing that this offer will be withdrawn. 

PUBLIC WORKS DIRECTOR 
216 PROSPECT ST PORT ORCHARD, WA 98366 

PHONE (360)876.4991 I FAX (360) 876.4980 
EMAIL: PUBLICWORKS@CITYOFPORTORCHARD.US 

WWW.CITYOFPORTORCHARD.US Page 176 of 263



We have attempted by this letter to provide a concise statement of the purpose, location, and 
an opinion of value of the proposed acquisition. We hope the information will assist you in 
reaching a decision. 

Please feel free to contact me with any questions or concerns. 

Sincerely, 

Randy Johnson I Real Property Agent 
And Right of Way Consultant for 
City of Port Orchard Public Works 
216 Prospect St I Port Orchard, WA 98366 
(564) 205-0131 I Randy@csrow.com 

RECEIPT OF THIS LETTER IS HEREBY ACKNOWLEDGED. 
(Please sign below on copy provided. This is necessary to ensure that you received the 
original of this letter.) 

I understand that this acknowledgement does not signify my acceptance or rejection 

of~ L':-: 1f=·· __.- ll /~o / 1.,:, 
Signature Date 

Signature Date 

PUBLIC WORKS 
216 PROSPECT ST PORT ORCHARD, WA 98366 

PHONE (360)876.4991 I FAX (360) 876.4980 
EMAIL: PUBUCWORKS@CIJYOFPORTORCHARD.US 

WWW.CITYOFPORTORCHARD.US Page 177 of 263



After recording return document to: 

City of Port Orchard 
216 Prospect Street 
Port Orchard, Washington 98366 

Document Title: Warranty Deed 
Reference Number of Related Document: NIA 
Grantor(s): Elizabeth Freeman & Garry Dale Freeman, each as their respective 
separate estates 
Grantee(s): City of Port Orchard 
Legal Description: PTN OF SE 1/4 OF SEC 34-24-lE 
Additional Legal Description is on Pages 3&4 of Document. 
Assessor's Tax Parcel Number: PTN 342401-4-027-2008 

WARRANTY DEED 

Pottery Ave Sidewalk Extension & Road Diet Project 

The Grantors, Elizabeth Freeman & Garry Dale Freeman, each as their respective 
separate estates, for and in consideration of the sum of TEN AND NO/100 ($10.00) Dollars, 
and other valuable consideration, hereby conveys and warrants to the City of Port Orchard, 
Grantee, the following described real property situated in Kitsap County, in the State of 
Washington: 

For legal description and additional conditions 
See Exhibits A and B attached hereto and made a part hereof. 

It is understood and agreed that delivery of this deed is hereby tendered and that the 
terms and obligations hereof shall not become binding upon the City of Port Orchard unless 
and until accepted and approved hereon in writing for the City of Port Orchard, by its authorized 
agent. 

LPA-302 
10/2014 

Page 1 of ( 4) Pages Parcel No. 342401-4-027-2008 

Page 178 of 263



WARRANTY DEED 

Date:_\\_/_~_o__:_/ _·1-_=7 _ 

Elizabeth Freeman 

---.. .. 

Accepted and Approved 

City of Port Orchard 

By: _ 
Robert Putaansuu, 
Mayor 

Date: _ 

STATE OF WASHINGTON ) 
: ss 

County of K; r5ap ) 
On this 3 ciii, day of N<!'v~rviberr before me personally appeared Elizabeth 
Freeman & Garry Dale Freeman to me known to be the individuals described in and 
who executed the foregoing instrument, and acknowledged that they signed and sealed 
the same as their free and voluntary act and deed, for the uses and purposes therein 
mentioned. 

GIVEN under my hand and official seal the day and year last above written. 

otary lie · and for the State of 
Washington, residing at (>/ V 1114, g r, 
My commission expires q/JjwL.C 

LPA-302 
10/2014 

Page 2 of ( 4) Pages Parcel No.342401-4-027-2008 

Page 179 of 263



WARRANTY DEED 

EXHIBIT A 
R/W DESCRIPTION 

KITSAP COUNTY PARCEL 342401-4-027-2008 

THE EAST 30.00 FEET OF THE SOUTH 60.00 FEET OF THE NORTHEAST QUARTER 
OF THE SOUTHEAST QUARTER OF SECTION 34, TOWNSHIP 24 NORTH, 
RANGE 01 EAST, W.M., KITSAP COUNTY, WASHINGTON. 

CONTAINING 1,800 SQUARE FEET, MORE OR LESS. 

Grantor's Initials 

~ 

.:AVID EVANS 
AND ASSOCIATES INC. 

LPA-302 
10/2014 

Page 3 of(4) Pages 

14432 SE Eastgate Way, Suite 400 
Bellevue, WA 98007 

425 519.6500 

Parcel No. 342401-4-027-2008 

Page 180 of 263



WARRANTY DEED 

34 

0 25' 50' 

w w 
0 0 a:: a:: 
zz 
'st 'st 
N N 

I ~- ~ ,~ ;:; ;:; er w w 
,~ 30' C/J C/J ,~ 
I 

S88018,02.,E 30' R/WTAKE 

30 OO' 1,800 S.F. --...or ~ 
gl - I~ ~, ~,~ ~, ~,~ 

SOUTH LINE. NE,,.. SE,,, .,rJ ~ 
N88°18'02"W 

30 00' 
I ,~ 
I~ 30• ,~ 
I 

( 342401-4-027-2008 ) 

FOUND 3 1/2" BRASS CAP 
STAMPED "WASHINGTON 
COUNTY REFERENCE T23N R1" 
IN CASING 

w 
>- > 
~ <( 

f-- LJ.. > ": 0 ,v 
"'f- ..... 
~ I w 
,.: ~ t- 

_J t (.) 0 
a. 

Grantor's Initials 

POINT OF COMMENCEMENT 
FOUND 3 1/2" BRASS CAP 
STAMPED "WASHINGTON 
COUNTY REFERENCE T23N R1" 
IN CASING 

EXHIBIT B 
PARCEL 342401-4-027-2008 

TAX PAYER FREEMAN ELIZABETH & GARRY DALE 
TAX PAYER ADDRESS 1698 POTTERY AVE PORT ORCHARD, WA 98366 
SITE ADDRESS 1698 POTTERY AVE PORT ORCHARD, WA 98366 
TAKE AREA 1,800 S.F. 
SECTION NE 1/4, SE 1/4 SEC. 34, TWP 24 N., RNG. 01 E., W.M. 

~ 
-AVID EVANS 

AND ASSOCIATES INC. 

14432 SE Eastgate Way, Suite 400 
Bellevue Washington 98007 

Phone: 425.519.6500 

LPA-302 Page 4 of(4) Pages 
10/2014 

Parcel No. 342401-4-027-2008 

Page 181 of 263



REAL PROPERTY VOUCHER 

AGENCY NAME I hereby certify under penalty of perjury that the items and 
amounts listed herein are proper charges against the 

City of Port Orchard Agency, that the same or any part thereof has not been paid, 

216 Prospect St and that I am authorized to sign for the claimant. 

Port Orchard, WA 98366 SIGNATURE (IN INK) FOR EACH CLAIMANT DATED 

x~~ A \\ /-'70/2-3 
ITIN/SSN: 

--· GRANTOR OR CLAIMANT (NAME, ADDRESS) cp 
Elizabeth Freeman and Garry Dale Freeman Elizabeth Freeman 
1698 Pottery Avenue, Port Orchard WA 98366 ~ 

.~~~ PROJECT NO. AND TITLE 

PW 2023-002 . llli-7 '; Pottery Ave Sidewalk Extension and Road Diet 
FEDERAL AID NO. IPARCELNO. Garry DaltFre'emanV ' I / / 

342401-4-027-2008 
In full, complete and final payment and settlement for the title or interest conveyed 

I 

DATED $ AMOUNT 
or released, as fully set forth in: 
LAND: 

1800 Square Feet (m/1) Fee Title + $19,800.00 
IMPROVEMENTS: 

Landscaping + $2,523.00 

JC (Just Compensation) Amount $22,323.00 
ADMINISTRATIVE SETTLEMENT + $3,777.00 
REAL ESTATE EXCISE TAX To Be Paid By City of Port Orchard + 
OTHER: 

,.,,-, + 

'~~- /A//Jo6 Voucher No. TOTAL AMOUNT PAID 

Randy John , Right of Way Agent $26,100.00 
APPROVED FOR PAYMENT: DATE 

Nick Bond, AICP 

We have agreed to the compensation listed above as the full and final payment for the loss of our landscaping. The city of Port 
Orchard will not, at any time in the future, be responsible for any additional costs above and beyond the amount listed above, nor for 
the construction of such improvement (or repair). 

LPA-3211CW2014 

Page 182 of 263



 
City of Port Orchard 
216 Prospect Street, Port Orchard, WA 98366 
(360) 876-4407 • FAX (360) 895-9029 
            

 
Agenda Staff Report 

 
Agenda Item No. Business Item 6G Meeting Date: December 19, 2023 

Subject: Adoption of a Resolution Authorizing the  Prepared by: Denis Ryan 
 Purchase of a Portion of Kitsap County Tax   Public Works Director 
 Parcel No. 342401-4-023-2002 (Magneson)     Atty Routing No: 366922-0009 
 for the Pottery Sidewalk Extension & Road  Atty Review Date: 12/13/2023 
 Project   

 
Summary: The City has identified the need to acquire real property to support the construction of the Pottery Ave 
Sidewalk Extension and Road Project (the “Project”). The City engaged the consulting firm Commonstreet 
Consulting to serve as the City’s Right of Way Agent for this Project and associated acquisitions.  Based on the 
Project designs, the City identified the necessary acquisition of a strip of approximately 1,688 square feet of real 
property located at 1608 Pottery Ave, Kitsap County Tax Parcel No. 342401-4-023-2002 (the “Property”) for the 
Project.  Consistent with the City’s policies for Right of Way Acquisition (utilizing the WSDOT requirements for this 
type of project), on March 3, 2023, the City—through its Consultant—issued an offer letter to the owners of the 
Property. The acquisition will not displace the Property’s owners but rather merely impact a portion of the yard 
and landscaping.  
 
Following the issuance of the offer, it was determined that the Property’s septic drain-field was located within the 
acquisition area and would require decommissioning as a component of the Project. Thus, on November 15, 2023, 
the City withdrew its initial offer and issued a revised offer for the portion of the Property to include costs 
associated with the decommissioning of the septic system and the Property’s connection to the City’s sewerage 
system. The City’s Right of Way Agent has negotiated the terms of purchase for the Property by the City of the 
Property, subject to Council approval.  
 
Relationship to Comprehensive Plan:  Chapter 8 - Transportation  
 
Recommendation: That the City Council authorize the acquisition of a portion of Kitsap County Tax Parcel No. 
342401-4-023-2002, as described in Exhibit A, for the Pottery Ave Sidewalk Extension and Road Project, for an 
Acquisition Payment not to exceed $50,000, plus payment of additional associated closing costs including the Real 
Estate Excise Tax and authorizes the Mayor or designee to execute all necessary documents to effectuate the 
purchase.  

 
Motion for Consideration:  I move to adopt a resolution, authorizing the purchase of a portion of Kitsap County 
Tax Parcel No. 342401-4-023-2002 for the Pottery Ave Sidewalk Extension and Road Project.  
  
Fiscal Impact: Grant and Local Match funding for this acquisition expenditure is allocated within the Project 

Funding Estimate (PFE) for the Project and the 2021-2022 Biennial Budget. 
 
Alternatives: Do not approve and provide alternative guidance. 
 
Attachments: Resolution, Exhibit A- Offer letter and Warranty Deed, Real Property Voucher 

Page 183 of 263



RESOLUTION NO. ____ 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF PORT ORCHARD, WASHINGTON, AUTHORIZING 
THE PURCHASE OF A PORTION OF KITSAP COUNTY TAX PARCEL NO. 342401-4-
023-2002 FOR THE POTTERY AVE SIDEWALK EXTENSION AND ROAD PROJECT 
AND AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR TO EXECUTE ALL NECESSARY DOCUMENTS TO 
EFFECTUATE TRANSACTION. 
  
WHEREAS, the City has identified the need to acquire real property to support the 

construction of the Pottery Ave Sidewalk Extension and Road Project (the “Project”); and 
 
WHEREAS, in accordance with the City’s Acquisition Procedures, the City retained a 

Right of Way Acquisition Consultant, Commonstreet Consulting, (the “Consultant”) to assist 
with the Project; and  

 
WHEREAS, on March 3, 2023, the City through its Consultant issued an offer letter to 

the owners of real property located at 1608 Pottery Ave, Kitsap County Tax Parcel No. 342401-
4-023-2002 (the “Property”), to purchase approximately 1,688 square feet of the Property 
needed for the Project; and  

 
WHEREAS, it was determined, after the original administrative offer was made, that the 

Property’s septic drain-field was located within the acquisition area and on November 15, 2023, 
the City issued a revised offer for the portion of the Property to reflect the costs associated 
with decommissioning the septic system and connecting the Property to the City’s sewerage 
system; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City’s Consultant, has negotiated the terms of purchase by the City of the 

Property; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Port Orchard City Council finds it is in the best interest of the City to 

authorize the acquisition of the Property for $50,000, inclusive of fair market value for the 
portion the Property to be acquired, necessary landscaping improvements to restore the 
impacted Property, and the cost to cure the septic issue; now, therefore,  
 
 THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF PORT ORCHARD, WASHINGTON, HEREBY RESOLVES 
AS FOLLOWS:   
 

THAT: It is the intent of the Port Orchard City Council that the recitals set forth above 
are hereby adopted and incorporated as findings in support of this Resolution. 

 
THAT: The City Council authorizes the acquisition of a portion of Kitsap County Tax 
Parcel No. 342401-4-023-2002, as described in Exhibit A, for the Pottery Ave Sidewalk 
Extension and Road Project, for a Total Acquisition Payment not to exceed $50,000, plus 
payment of additional associated closing costs, including the Real Estate Excise Tax, and 

Page 184 of 263



Resolution No. ___ 
Page 2 of 2 

 
authorizes the Mayor or designee to execute all necessary documents to effectuate the 
purchase.  
 

 PASSED by the City Council of the City of Port Orchard, SIGNED by the Mayor and 
attested by the City Clerk in authentication of such passage on this 19th day of December 2023.   
 
 
 
      ____________________________________ 
      Robert Putaansuu, Mayor  
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
____________________________  
Brandy Wallace, MMC, City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
   

Page 185 of 263



P.o.u 
ORCHARD® -------= - - 

November 15, 2023 

Claimant 
Royce D. Magneson 
1608 Pottery Ave 
Port Orchard WA 98366 

Re: Revised Offer Letter and Receipt 
Project Title: Pottery Ave Sidewalk Extension and Road Diet Project 
Project No: PW 2023-002 
Parcel No.: 4-023 
Tax ID No.: 342401-4-023-2002 

Dear Royce Magneson: 

The City of Port Orchard (City) plans to improve Pottery Ave near your home at 1608 Pottery 
Ave. In order to construct, install, and maintain the sidewalk improvements as designed, we 
need to acquire property rights from you so that we can preserve the project's functionality. I 
have attached a drawing which shows the area we need to purchase. 

In the offer letter dated March 3, 2023, the City offered to purchase property and 
improvements owned by you and identified as Parcel Number 4-023. 

Due to the discovery of your septic drainfield located within the acquisition area after the 
Administrative Offer Summary (AOS) was completed and Just Compensation was set, it is 
necessary to withdraw the City's original offer and make a new offer. 

The City has established an amount it believes is just compensation for the proposed 
acquisition of a fee area abutting Pottery Avenue. The Agency's revised offer is as follows: 

1,688 Sguare Foot {mLI) fee title $11,394.00 
lm(2rovements: Landsca(2ing {Grass & Fencing} $ 3,887.00 
Cost to Cure - Sewer Connection Costs $34,719.00 

Total Compensation: $50,000.00 

PUBLIC WORKS DIRECTOR 
216 PROSPECT ST PORT ORCHARD, WA 98366 

PHONE (360)876.4991 \ FAX (360) 876.4980 
EMAIL: PUBLICWORKS@CITYOFPORTORCHARD.US 

WWW.CITYOFPORTORCHARD.US 

Exhibit A

Page 186 of 263



This offer is being made on a willing buyer/willing seller basis and the sale of these property 
rights to the City is voluntary. If you decide to accept the offer, the Agency will pay all closing 
costs including the Real Estate Excise Tax on this transaction. If you decide to reject the offer, 
then the Agency will notify you in writing that this offer will be withdrawn. 

The cost to cure captures all related expenses for disconnecting and decommissioning the 
septic tank, as well as all expenses for the sewer connection from the single-family home to the 
sewer cleanout line installed by the City at the seller's property line during the Project. Also 
included is payment for the removal of any necessary trees, foliage, and related stumps and 
roots. 

We have attempted by this letter to provide a concise statement ofthe purpose, location, and 
an opinion of value of the proposed acquisition. We hope the information will assist you in 
reaching a decision. 

Please feel free to contact me with any questions or concerns. 

Sincerely, 

Randy Johnson I Real Property Agent 
And Right of Way Consultant for 
City of Port Orchard Public Works 
216 Prospect St I Port Orchard, WA 98366 
(564) 205-0131 I Randy@csrow.com 

RECEIPT OF THIS LETTER IS HEREBY ACKNOWLEDGED. 
(Please sign below on copy provided. This is necessary to ensure that you received the 
original of this letter.) 

I understand that this acknowledgement does not signify my acceptance or rejection 
of this offer. 

Date 

Date 

PUBLIC WORKS 
216 PROSPECT ST PORT ORCHARD, WA 98366 

PHONE (360)876.4991 I FAX (360) 876.4980 
EMAIL: PUBUCWORKS@CrTYQEPQRTORCHARD.US 

WWW.CITYOFPORTORCHARD.US 

Page 187 of 263



After recording return document to: 

City of Port Orchard 
216 Port Orchard 
Port Orchard, Washington 98366 

Document Title: Warranty Deed 
Reference Number of Related Document: N/A 
Grantors: Royce D. and Desray Magneson, husband and wife 
Grantee: City of Port Orchard 
Legal Description: PTN Portion NE SE, 34 24N 0lE 
Additional Legal Description is on Pages 3&4 of Document. 
Assessor's Tax Parcel Number: PTN 342401-4-023-2002 

WARRANTY DEED 

Pottery Ave Sidewalk Extension and Road Diet Project 

The Grantors, Royce D. Magneson and Desray Magneson, husband and wife, who 
acquired title as Royce D. Magneson, as his separate estate, for and in consideration of the sum 
of TEN AND NO/100 ($10.00) Dollars, and other valuable consideration, hereby conveys and 
warrants to the City of Port Orchard, a municipal corporation of the state of Washington, 
Grantee, the following described real property situated in Kitsap County, in the State of 
Washington: 

For legal description and additional conditions 
See Exhibits A and B attached hereto and made a part hereof. 

It is understood and agreed that delivery of this deed is hereby tendered and that the 
terms and obligations hereof shall not become binding upon the City of Port Orchard unless 
and until accepted and approved hereon in writing for the City of Port Orchard, by its authorized 
agent. 

LPA-302 
10/2014 

Page 1 of(4) Pages Parcel No. 342401-4-023-2002 

Page 188 of 263



WARRANTY DEED 

Date: NoW,(WIW 

RceD. Maes;n 

D?.~,~Ck, 
Accepted and Approved 

City of Port Orchard 

By: _ 
Robert Putaansuu 
Mayor 

Date: _ 

STATE OF WASHINGTON ) 
: ss 

County of K.i BPfl ) 
On this / {-J!i_ day of /V,ve~W 2'>~efore me personally appeared Royce D. 
Magneson and Desray Magneson to me known to be the individuals described in and 
who executed the foregoing instrument, and acknowledged that they signed and sealed 
the same as their free and voluntary act and deed, for the uses and purposes therein 
mentioned. 

GIVEN under my hand and official seal the day and year last above written. 

(i;;:p.ia¥\\\I I II I/ 11/J I ~¥s-';)/, J Q L, I/// ~ ~ :71\1 :,,~ ~~Q.,,•.:.,,,on €°-t'•,c.S'o~ 
.~ ~-~~ .... ,.20.,,.0.,.:.• . ..,,~ .,:; ~: ~ ~:t" ~e 'd>·· I,,'~ seis c:)L\oTAR" "'\ ~ - • ~ r • - :: : .... 4119 ,..._,: = 
~ ~,:. PuaL\C ~:..,..§ 
~ .11.·•~ PJ: ... ~ ~ux,~.r r;::,t'\;:A....0 ~ 
'\ -.;:;,!.o/umbe(!-::~c, $ ,,,.. ~ 0 '(\,,~,..:::;. 

LPA-302 111,,,, f: WAS ,,,,,, 
10/2014 l//ll1tt1\\\\\ 

• Washington, residing at 0~J!f1 44 rt; 
1 

My commission expires q/J /).c2-~ . . 
Page 2 of ( 4) Pages Parcel No. 342401-4-023-2002 

Page 189 of 263



WARRANTY DEED 

EXHIBIT A 
R/W DESCRIPTION 

KITSAP COUNTY PARCEL 342401-4-023-2002 

A PORTION OF RESULTANT PARCEL 1, DECLARATION OF BOUNDARY LINE 
ADJUSTMENT RECORDED UNDER AUDITORS FILE NUMBER 20161206168, 
RECORDS OF KITSAP COUNTY, WASHINGTON, BEING A PORTION OF THE 
NORTHEAST QUARTER OF THE SOUTHEAST QUARTER OF SECTION 34, 
TOWNSHIP 24 NORTH, RANGE 01 EAST, W.M., KITSAP COUNTY, WASHINGTON, 
DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: 

COMMENCING AT THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF SAID SECTION, A 3 1/2 INCH 
BRASS CAP IN MONUMENT CASING, FOUND IN PLACE, FROM WHICH THE EAST 
QUARTER CORNER OF SAID SECTION, A 3 1/2 INCH BRASS CAP IN MONUMENT 
CASING, FOUND IN PLACE, BEARS NORTH 00°48'52" EAST, 2647.53 FEET 
DISTANT; 
THENCE NORTH 00°48'52" EAST ALONG THE EASTERLY LINE OF SAID 
SUBDIVISION A DISTANCE OF 1,486.45 FEET; 
THENCE NORTH 88°18'02" WEST A DISTANCE OF 10.00 FEET TO THE 
INTERSECTION OF THE WESTERLY RIGHT OF WAY MARGIN OF POTTERY 
A VENUE WITH THE SOUTHERLY LINE OF SAID RESULT ANT PARCEL 1 AND THE 
POINT OF BEGINNING; 
THENCE NORTH 88°18'02" WEST ALONG SAID SOUTHERLY LINE A DISTANCE OF 
20.00 FEET; 
THENCE NORTH 00°48'52" EAST ALONG A LINE 20.00 FEET WESTERLY OF AND 
PARALLEL WITH SAID WESTERLY MARGIN A DISTANCE OF 84.39 FEET; 
THENCE SOUTH 88° 18'02" EAST A DISTANCE OF 20.00 FEET TO SAID WESTERLY 
MARGIN; 
THENCE SOUTH 00°48'52" WEST ALONG SAID WESTERLY MARGIN A DISTANCE 
OF 84.39 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING. 

CONTAINING 1,688 SQUARE FEET, MORE OR LESS. 
Grantor's Initials 

LPA-302 
10/2014 

Page 3 of(4) Pages 

~ 

-□AVID EVANS 
AND ASSOCIATES INC. 

14432 SE Eastgate Way, Suite 400 
Bellevue, WA 98007 

425.519.6500 

Page 190 of 263



WARRANTY DEED 

34 35 
\ 

FOUND 3 1/2" BRASS CAP 
STAMPED "WASHINGTON 
COUNTY REFERENCE T23N R1" 
IN CASING 

UJ UJ 

I~- ~ Jz z ---- vv @ ----------1~ 
(.) 

CL RIGHT OF WAY 
UJ ---- (/) 

SUNSETLN - 
b 
"' 

I 
--------- EXISTR/W I ----7 0 25' 50' 

I! 30• I 
( 342401-4-023-2002 ) I~ [s00·10·02"E 

~ 20.00' RESULTANT PARCEL 1 
20' R/W TAKE 7 I w DECLARATION OF 

BOUNDARY LINE ADJUSTMENT 1,688S.F. _ I - I "' > 
REC NO. 20161206168 "' "' 10' Ill >- <( 
GRAPHICAL DEPICTION "' "' ,.._ <( 

ROS REC NO. 20161206169 ci5I ci5I~ i3> 
IJ.J ~ NU.. 

i f;jl 1'il!ii ~eo:: 
<X)I ~f< ~:r:w 
, ;:,tUJ ~~I- 

f 0 0 0 ~, 01 8 _J I- I (I) zU 0 

; - - µ£-~ / 0. 
POINTOF J 

i BEGINNING 

! N88°10·02"w Grantor's Initials .,. - 10.00' '" ~ L,4p re, 
:i: I~ 'I: t,j 

~~ o1 us~✓..(., 
(0 

~ a:, 

l!ii "'"- w ~ ~"ii .. <;..,. 30' ~ I ""lt ~ ' 0 ~ I~ , I'll ,.,. Z, 
;:. j~ I 

I ~--. .: ,::,;;. 

34 
I~ 

POINT OF COMMENCEMENT .,,_-...__ ,f)~ 49283 ~~ /;,,."'1 
<I'~·· ... GJsTE~ .. /~"f FOUND 3 1/2" BRASS CAP 

0: ~o_,v:..t'i"i:i~\) <;, 35 STAMPED "WASHINGTON 

~ I - COUNTY REFERENCE T23N R1" .. ~ '""""!! IN CASING .. 3 I 2 Ii: 

EXHIBIT B 
PARCEL 342401-4-023-2002 • TAXPAYER MAGNESON ROYCE D 0 0 DAVID EVANS TAX PAYER ADDRESS 1608 POTTERY AVE PORT ORCHARD, WA 98366 

SITE ADDRESS 1608 POTTERY AVE PORT ORCHARD, WA 98366 
ANO ASSOC I ATES INC. 

14432 SE Eastgate Way, Suite 400 
TAKE AREA 1,688 S.F. Bellevue Washington 98007 

Phone: 425.519.6500 
SECTION NE 1/4, SE 1/4 SEC. 34, TWP 24 N., RNG. 01 E., W.M. 

LPA-302 
10/2014 

Page 4 of(4) Pages Parcel No. 342401-4-023-2002 

Page 191 of 263



REAL PROPERTY VOUCHER 

AGENCY NAME I hereby certify under penalty of perjury that the items and amounts listed herein are 

proper charges against the Agency, that the same or any part thereof 

City of Port Orchard has not been paid, and that I am authorized to sign for the claimant. 

216 Prospect St 
Port Orchard WA 98366 SIGNATURE (IN INK) FOR EACH CLAIMANT DATED 

~/4, 
GRANTOR OR CLAIMANT (NAME, ADDRESS) ITIN/SSN: xL .. ~- _.-: ~-. 
Royce D. and Desray Magneson RoyrrD, Magnesr 
1608 Pottery Avenue, Port Orchard WA 98366 

ll{lu/1.3 PROJECT NO. AND TITLE 

x Do l 1 o-vf 1un~ PW 2023-002 
Potterv Ave Sidewalk Extension and Road Diet Protect 
FEDERAL AID NO. I PARCEL NO. Desray MagnUon ,, 
NIA 34201-4-023-2002 
In ful, complete and final payment and settlement for the tltle or Interest conveyed or releas ed, as fully set forth In: 

I 

DATED $ AMOUNT 

LAND: 
1 688 Suuare Feet (mil) Fee Title + $11,394.00 

IMPROVEMENTS: 
Landscaping (85 Linear Feet of 5' Fence; 1,688 Square Feet Grass) + $3,887.00 

DAMAGES: 
Cost to Cure + 
Proximity + 
Other + 

SPECIAL BENEFITS 

JC (Just Compensation) Amount $15 281.00 
REMAINDER: 

Uneconomic Remnant + 
Excess Acquisition + 

DEDUCTIONS: 
Amount Previously Paid 
Performance Bond 
Salvage Amount 
Pre Paid Rent 
Other 

ADMINISTRATIVE SETTLEMENT + $34,719.00 
Septic Decommissioning + 
Sewer Connection Costs for One (1) Single Family Residence + 
Removal of Trees, Foliaze, Stumps Necessary for the Sewer Connection + 

REAL ESTATE EXCISE TAX To Be Paid By City of Port Orchard 

- + 
ACQUISITION AGE~ -~lght of Way Agent DI/fl 6/i; Voucher No. TOTAL AMOUNT PAID 
.. -✓,.,;; ,- r $50,000.00 

AUTHORIZED AGENT FOR AGENCY DATE 

Nick Bond AICP 
We have agreed to the compensation listed above as the full and final payment for the loss of our fence and landscaping. The city of 
Port Orchard will not, at any time in the future, be responsible for any additional costs above and beyond the amount listed above, 
nor for the construction of such improvement ( or repair). 
LPA-32110/2014 

Page 192 of 263



City of Port Orchard 
216 Prospect Street, Port Orchard, WA 98366 
(360) 876-4407 • FAX (360) 895-9029 
 
 

Agenda Staff Report 
 

Agenda Item No.: Business Item 6H Meeting Date: December 19, 2023 
Subject: Adoption of a Resolution Declaring Prepared by: Noah D. Crocker 

 Intent to be Reimbursed for Capital  Finance Director 
 Expenditures from a Future  Atty Routing No: 366922-0007 
 Borrowing Atty Review Date: 12/14/2023 

 
Summary: On November 28,2023 City Council approved a purchase and sale agreement for an office 
building adjacent to our Department of Community Development building.  The property is known as 
Kitsap County Tax Parcel No. 4650-015-006-0007, 730 Prospect Street.   
 
The City intends to make expenditures for the purchase from available funds and reasonably expects to 
be reimbursed for those expenditures from proceeds of bonds or other obligations (“bonds”) issued to 
finance those expenditures. 
 
Recommendation:  The Finance Director recommends adoption of a Resolution. 
 
Relationship to Comprehensive Plan: City Facilities 
 
Motion for consideration:  I move to adopt a Resolution, declaring the City’s intent to be reimbursed 
from future borrowing proceeds. 

 
Fiscal Impact: Provides the flexibility for cashflow funding and reimbursement from bond proceeds. 
 
Alternatives: Do not authorize and provide alternative guidance 
 
Attachments: Resolution 

Page 193 of 263



RESOLUTION NO.  ______ 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF PORT ORCHARD, WASHINGTON, APPROVING THE 
REIMBURSEMENT OF REAL PROPERTY EXPENDITURES PAID BY THE CITY PRIOR TO 
THE FINANCING OF SUCH EXPENDITURES. 

 
 WHEREAS, the City of Port Orchard (the “Local Agency”) reasonably expects to reimburse to 
itself the expenditures described herein with the proceeds of various financing contracts to be 
entered into by the Local Agency (the “Reimbursement Obligations”); and  
 
 WHEREAS, the expenditures of which the Local Agency reasonably expects to be 
reimbursed from the proceeds of Reimbursement Obligations, are for the acquisition of real 
property from Pontoon 1 Investments LLC, identified as Kitsap County Tax Parcel No. 4650-015-006-
0007 (the “Property”), commonly referenced as the 730 Prospect Street (the “expenditures”); and 
 
 WHEREAS, the above expenditures with respect to which the Local Agency reasonably 
expects to be reimbursed from the proceeds of Reimbursement Obligations will be made from 
contributions from Fund 001 for the acquisition real property; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the maximum principal amount of Reimbursement Obligations expected to be 
issued for the Property described herein is $2,000,000; now therefore, 
 
 THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF PORT ORCHARD, WASHINGTON, HEREBY RESOLVES AS 
FOLLOWS: 
 

THAT:  The City Council hereby adopts the recitals expressed above as Findings of 
Fact in support of this Resolution.  
 
THAT: The reimbursement to the City of Port Orchard for these expenditures paid 
prior to the financing of such expenditures, to be made from the borrowed funds, is 
approved. 

 
PASSED by the City Council of the City of Port Orchard, SIGNED by the Mayor and attested by 

the City Clerk in authentication of such passage this 19th day of December 2023. 
 

 
         
  Robert Putaansuu, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
 
    
Brandy Wallace, MMC, City Clerk  

Page 194 of 263



 
City of Port Orchard 
216 Prospect Street, Port Orchard, WA 98366 
(360) 876-4407 • FAX (360) 895-9029 
 

 
Agenda Staff Report 

 
   Agenda Item No. Business Item 6I   Meeting Date: December 19, 2023 

Subject Approval of Amendment No. 3 to Contract No. Prepared by: Denis Ryan 
 048-23 with Lincoln Construction, Inc for the   Public Works Director 
 City Hall Renovations Project       Atty Routing No: 366922-0009 
  Atty Review Date: 12/12/2023 

 
Summary: The Port Orchard City Hall facility was constructed in 1999. Through the years, weather, normal 
wear and tear, and increased staffing have triggered a need to update and renovate the building. In 2020, 
following a competitively-bid selection process, a consultant was hired to determine the current and future 
needs of the building and to prepare a design for the needed building renovations. The result of the 
consultant’s work determined the need and proposed scope of the City Hall Renovations Project (the 
“Project”).  On May 23, 2023, following a procurement process consistent with state law and the City’s 
Procurement Policies adopted by Resolution 073-23, as amended, the City executed Contract No. 048-23 with 
Lincoln Construction, Inc. for the Project.  Change Order No. 1, approved October 11, 2023, and Change Order 
No. 2, approved December 12, 2023, captured revisions and adjustments to the renovation.        

Change Order No. 3 is necessary to address the Public Works counter add, Copper Shingle Roofing Credit, Mail 
Station Scope Removal Credit, Weathervane Work Add, Level 1 Police Door Add, Level 1 Wall Demo Add. Staff 
have confirmed all of these changes are reasonable and necessary for the Project. These changes would 
increase the contract to reflect an increased cost, as amended, by $49,103.03, for a new contract total of 
$9,212,515.15 (applicable tax included).    

As a reminder, per the City’s Procurement Policies, with this approval the delegated change order authority 
for the Public Works Director is re-set, allowing staff to administratively approve of low-value change orders 
that may occur within the established cap.  Staff desired to flag this for the Council as this is a recent 
modification to the City’s Procurement Policies (adopted earlier in 2023).  

Recommendation: Staff recommends that the City Council authorize the Mayor to execute Change Order 
No. 3 to Contract No. 048-23 with Lincoln Construction, Inc. for the City Hall Renovations Project to increase 
the contract, as amended, by $49,103.03, for a new contract total of $9,212,515.15 (applicable tax included). 

Relationship to Comprehensive Plan:  Chapter 9:  Capital Facilities 

Motion for Consideration: I move to authorize the Mayor to execute Change Order No. 3 to Contract No. 
048-23 with Lincoln Construction, Inc. for the City Hall Renovations Project. 

Fiscal Impact:  This is funded with limited tax general obligation (LTGO) bonds.   

Alternatives:    Do not approve and provide further guidance 

Attachments: Change Order No. 3, Courtesy Copy of C048-23 and Change Order No. 1 and No. 2  

Page 195 of 263



CITY OF PORT ORCHARD   

Authorization for Change Order No. 3 

Date: 12/5/2023 Contractor: Lincoln Construction, Inc. 

Project: City Hall Renovation 11803 101st Ave. E. Suite 201 

Contract / Job # C048-23 Puyallup, WA 98373 

Amount Sales Tax Total Date Appvd by

Original Contract $8,245,941.00 $766,872.51 $9,012,813.51 13-Jun-22 Council

Change Order 1 $44,711.00 $4,698.77 $49,409.77 11-Oct-23 PW Director

Change Order 2 $92,579.00 $8,609.85 $101,188.85 12-Dec-23 Council  

Change Order 3 $44,925.00 $4,178.03 $49,103.03 19-Dec-23 Council

Total Contract $8,428,156.00 $784,359.15 $9,212,515.15

I have reviewed the Change Order information above and certify that to the best of my knowledge descriptions and 
costs are true and accurate. 

Contractor Approval Signature Public Works Director 

Printed Name & Title Printed Name 

      Approved: 
      Mayor 

Attest: 
City Clerk 

 

Council Approval Date 

THIS CHANGE ORDER AUTHORIZES (add description). 

Additional Work/Construction Change Directives:  
COP 009- Public Works Counter Add - $33,545.00 
COP 010R2- Copper Shingle Roofing – Credit ($931.00) 
COP 011- Mail Station Scope Removal – Credit ($10,353.00) 
COP 012- Weathervane Work - $2,546.00 
COP 013R1- Level 1 Police Door - $10,731.00 
COP 014- Level 1 Wall Demo - $9,387.00 
Total Change Order $44,925.00. See COP 009-COP 014 and AIA for breakdown. 

In all other respects the Underlying agreement between the parties shall remain in full force and effect, amended as set forth herein, but only 
as set forth herein. 

Change Orders that do not exceed 10%, with a maximum of 
$50,000, of either legally authorized budget limit or contract 
amount established by City Council can be approved by the Public 
Works Director. 

Change Orders that do not exceed 10%, with a maximum of 
$100,000, of either legally authorized budget limit or contract 
amount established by City Council are to be approved by the 
Mayor. 

Change Orders over $100,000 or exceed a total of 10% require 
Council Action. 

Page 196 of 263



CHANGE PROPOSAL REQUEST Lincoln Construction 

To: Port Orchard City Hall COP NO: 13R1 

CCD/PRNo.: PR09 

Date: 12/4/2023 

Project: 

Attn.: Jason Ritter-Lopatowski LCI Project No.: 1257 

A. TOTAL MATERIAL/EQ BASE COST $ 225.00 
B. TOT AL LABOR COST $ 4,286.25 

I $ 4,511.25 1 SUBTOTAL 

C. OVERHEAD AND PROFIT (15%) $ 676.69 

1$ 676.691 SUBTOTAL 

D. SUBCONTRACT COST $ 4,670.00 

E. OVERHEAD AND PROFIT ON 

SUBCONTRACT COST (12%) $ 560.40 

1$ 5,230.40 1 SUBTOTAL 

H. BOND (GC ONLY) $ 312.55 

SUBTOTAL 1$ 312.55 I 

TOT AL CHANGE PROPOSAL COST $ 10,731 
CONTRACT TIME ADJUSTMENT (DAYS~ TBD 

Lincoln Construction, Inc. 0 
CONTRACTOR Tom Romberg 

12/4/2023 
DATE 

01114.00 g3.3 (2) Page 197 of 263



(;~¥111:- r~ 
CHANGE PROPOSAL REQUEST , · \)! . (;)~~ J,incoln Constrnction 

To: Port Orchard City Hall COP NO: 14 

CCD/PR No.: PR 011 

Date: 12/4/2023 

Project: 

Attn.: Jason Ritter-Lopatowski LCI Project No.: 1257 

A. TOT AL MATERIAL/EQ BASE COST $ 300.00 
B. TOT AL LABOR COST $ 3,619.50 

3,919.501 SUBTOTAL I$ 

C. OVERHEAD AND PROFIT (15%) $ 587.93 

SUBTOTAL 1$ 587.93 I 
D. SUBCONTRACT COST $ 4,113.00 

E. OVERHEAD AND PROFIT ON 

SUBCONTRACT COST (12%) $ 493.56 

4,606.561 SUBTOTAL 1$ 

H. BOND (GC ONLY) $ 273.42 

SUBTOTAL 1$ 273.42 I 

TOT AL CHANGE PROPOSAL COST 9,387 
CONTRACT TIME ADJUSTMENT (DAYS)I TBD 

Lincoln Construction, Inc. 0 
CONTRACTOR 

12/4/2023 
Tom Romberg 

DATE 

01114.00 g3.3 (2) Page 198 of 263



CHANGE PROPOSAL REQUEST Lincoln Construction 

To: Port Orchard City Hall COP NO: 09 

CCD/PRNo.: PR007 

Date: 11/28/2023 

Project: 

Attn.: Jason Ritter-Lopatowski LCI Project No.: 1257 

A. TOT AL MATERIAL/EQ BASE COST $ 693.00 
B. TOT AL LABOR COST $ 3,740.80 

1$ SUBTOTAL 4,433.so 1 

C. OVERHEAD AND PROFIT (15%) $ 665.07 

1$ 665.071 SUBTOTAL 

D. SUBCONTRACT COST $ 24,526.00 

E. OVERHEAD AND PROFIT ON 

SUBCONTRACT COST (12%) $ 2,943.12 

SUBTOTAL 1$ 27,469.12 I 
H. BOND (GC ONLY) $ 977.04 

SUBTOTAL 1$ 977.041 

TOT AL CHANGE PROPOSAL COST $ 33 545 
CONTRACT TIME ADJUSTMENT (DAYS) TBD 

Lincoln Construction, inc. u 
CONTRACTOR Tom Romberg 

11/28/2023 
DATE 

01114.00 g3.3 (2) Page 199 of 263



,' 

CHANGE PROPOSAL REQUEST Lincoln Construction 

To: Port Orchard City Hall COP NO: 10R2 

CCD/PRNo.: PR 008 

Date: 12/4/2023 

Project: 

Attn.: Jason Ritter-Lopatowski LCI Project No.: 1257 

A. TOT AL MATERIAL/EQ BASE COST $ 
B. TOT AL LABOR COST $ 

! SUBTOTAL I$ - 

C. OVERHEAD AND PROFIT (15%) $ 

I SUBTOTAL 1$ - 

D. SUBCONTRACT COST $ (931.00) 

E. OVERHEAD AND PROFIT ON 

SUBCONTRACT COST (12%) $ 

SUBTOTAL 1$ (931.00) 1 

H. BOND (GC ONLY) $ 

SUBTOTAL 1$ - I 
TOTAL CHANGE PROPOSAL COST $ (931) 
CONTRACT TIME ADJUSTMENT (DAYS' TBD 

Lmcoln Construction, lnc. u 
CONTRACTOR Tom Romberg 

12/4/2023 
DATE 

01114.00 g3.3 (2) Page 200 of 263



CHANGE PROPOSAL REQUEST Lincoln Construction 

To: Port Orchard City Hall COP NO: 11 

CCD/PRNo.: PR 012 

Date: 12/1/2023 

Project: 

Attn.: Jason Ritter-Lopatowski LCI Project No.: 1257 

A. TOT AL MA TERIAL/EQ BASE COST $ 
B. TOT AL LABOR COST $ 

SUBTOTAL I $ - ! 
C. OVERHEAD AND PROFIT (15%) $ 

I SUBTOTAL 1$ - 

D. SUBCONTRACT COST $ (10,353.00) 

E. OVERHEAD AND PROFIT ON 

SUBCONTRACT COST (12%) $ 

SUBTOTAL I $ (10,353.00)1 

H. BOND (GC ONLY) $ 

1$ I SUBTOTAL - 

TOTAL CHANGE PROPOSAL COST $ (10353) 
CONTRACT TIME ADJUSTMENT (DAYS' TBD 

Lincoln Construction, Inc. u 
CONTRACTOR Tom Romberg 

12/1/2023 
DATE 

01114.00 g3.3 (2) Page 201 of 263



CHANGE PROPOSAL REQUEST Lincoln Construction 

To: Port Orchard City Hall COP NO: 12 

CCD/PRNo.: PR 010 

Date: 12/1/2023 

Project: 

Attn.: Jason Ritter-Lopatowski LCI Project No.: 1257 

A. TOT AL MATERIAL/EQ BASE COST $ 1,000.00 
B. TOT AL LABOR COST $ 1,149.80 

2,149.so 1 SUBTOTAL 1$ 

C. OVERHEAD AND PROFIT (15%) $ 322.47 

1$ 322.471 SUBTOTAL 

D. SUBCONTRACT COST $ 

E. OVERHEAD AND PROFIT ON 

SUBCONTRACT COST (12%) $ 

SUBTOTAL 1$ - I 
H. BOND (GC ONLY) $ 74.17 

SUBTOTAL I $ 74.17 I 
TOT AL CHANGE PROPOSAL COST $ 2 546 
CONTRACT TIME ADJUSTMENT (DAYS' TBD 

Lincoln Construction, lnc. u 
CONTRACTOR Tom Romberg 

12/1/2023 
DATE 

1~K 

01114.00 g3.3 (2) Page 202 of 263



CITY OF PORT ORCHARD II 
Authorization for Change Order No. 1 

Date: 10/11/2023 
Project: City Hall Renovation 

Contract / Job # C048-23 ------------- 

Contractor: Lincoln Construction, Inc. 
11803 101st Ave. E. Suite 201 
Puyallup, WA 98373 

THIS CHANGE ORDER AUTHORIZES (add description). 
Additional Work/Construction Change Directives: 
CCD 001- Mechanical equipment revision per RFI #3 
COP 002- Added weeps and lintel restoration 
COP 003- Caulking at planter walls adjacent to building 
COP 004Rl- Planter caps around the site and added caulking at tower windows 
COP 005- Roofing credit 
COP 006- Privacy window film at L VL I 
COP 007- (4) clock tower access hatches 
See COP's and AJA for breakdown. 

Amount Sales Tax Total Date Appvd by 
Original Contract $8,245,941.00 $766,872.51 $9,012,813.51 13-Jun-22 Council 
Change Order 1 $44,711.00" $4,698.77 $49,409.77 11-Oct-23 PW Director 

Change Order 2 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 00-Jan-00 
Change Order 3 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 00-Jan-00 
Change Order 4 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 00-Jan-00 
Total Contract $8,290,652.00 $771,571.28 $9,062,223.28 

l -- - --~ -- - 

I have reviewed the Change Order information above and certify that to the best of my knowledge descriptions and 
costs are true and accurate. 

Contractor Approval Signature 

Printed Name & Title 

Public Wor~or 

si)(!;//lr(~ 
Printed Name 

Change Orders that do not exceed 10%, with a maximum of 
$50,000, of either legally authorized budget limit or contract Approved: 
amount established by City Council can be approved by the Public 
Works Director. 

Change Orders that do not exceed 10%, with a maximum of Attest: 
$100,000, of either legally authorized budget limit or contract 
amount established by City Council are to be approved by the 
Mayor. 

Change Orders over $100,000 or exceed a total of 10% require 
Council Action. 

Mayor 

City Clerk 

Council Approval Date 

Thomas Romberg-Project Manager

Thomas Romberg

Page 203 of 263

jhuffmyer
Text Box

jhuffmyer
Text Box

jhuffmyer
Text Box

jhuffmyer
Text Box

jhuffmyer
Text Box

jhuffmyer
Text Box

jhuffmyer
Text Box

jhuffmyer
Text Box

jhuffmyer
Text Box

jhuffmyer
Text Box

jhuffmyer
Text Box

jhuffmyer
Text Box

jhuffmyer
Text Box

jhuffmyer
Text Box

jhuffmyer
Text Box

jhuffmyer
Text Box
Change Order #1 Totals- $49,409.77 w/ tax. See COP's and AIA for breakdown. 



ti AJA Document G70f - 2017 
Change Order 
PROJECT: (Name and address) 
Port Orchard City Hall Building 
Improvements 
216 Prospect Street 
Port Orchard, WA 98366 

OWNER: (Name and address) 
City of Port Orchard 
2 I 6 Prospect Street 
Port Orchard, WA 98366 

CONTRACT INFORMATION: 
Contract For: Construction 

Date: May 23, 2023 

ARCHITECT: (Name and address) 
Rice Fergus Miller, Inc. 
275 5th Street, Suite 100 
Bremerton, WA 98337 

CHANGE ORDER INFORMATION: 
Change Order Number: 001 

Date: October 12, 2023 

CONTRACTOR: (Name and address) 
Lincoln Construction Inc. 
11803 101 st Ave E, Suite 201 
Puyallup, WA 98373 

THE CONTRACT IS CHANGED AS FOLLOWS: 
(Insert a detailed description of the change and, if applicable, attach or reference specific exhibits. Also include agreed upon adjustments 
attributable to executed Construction Change Directives.) 
Construction Change Directives: 
CCD 01 - Mechanical equipment revision per RFT 3 
COP 02 - Added weeps and lintel restoration 
COP 03 - Caulking at planter walls adjacent to building 
COP 04rl - Planter caps around the site and added caulk at tower windows 
COP 05 - Roofing Credit 
COP 06 - Privacy window film at Level 1 
COP 07 - (4) Clock tower access hatches 

The original Contract Sum was 
The net change by previously authorized Change Orders 
The Contract Sum prior to this Change Order was 
The Contract Sum will be increased by this Change Order in the amount of 
The new Contract Sum including this Change Order will be 

The Contract Time will be increased by Zero (0) days. 
The new date of Substantial Completion will be 

$5,079.00 
$28,759.00 
$1,944.00 

$11,507.00 
<$17,526.00> 

$6,832.00 
$8,116.00 

$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 

8,245,941.00 

8,245,941.00 
44,711.00 

8,290,652.00 

NOTE: This Change Order does not include adjustments to the Contract Sum or Guaranteed Maximum Price, or the Contract Time, that have 
been authorized by Construction Change Directive until the cost and time have been agreed upon by both the Owner and Contractor, in which 
case a Change Order is executed to supersede the Construction Change Directive. 

NOT VALID UNTIL SIGNED BY THE ARCHITECT, CONTRACTOR AND OWNER. 

Lincoln Construction City of Port Orchard 
0.Wti~~ (Firm'}~ 
~ • .,~ -~ j ---------------- -"'"~·"'""'"'""""--"'*--""·L-~=--<''----.,.V"F-·----------- 

SIG~ATURE 

Jen,t ia/1- 
CONTRACTOR (Firm name) 

SIGNATURE 

Dean Kell 
PRINTED NAME AND TITLE 

October 12, 2023 

PRINTED NAME AND TITLE 

DATE DATE 

PRINTED N~:D TITLE 

t!!dk La~3 
DATE 

AIA Document G701 - 2017. Copyright© 1979, 1987, 2000 , 2001 and 2017. All rights reserved. "The American Institute of Architects," "American Institute of 
Architects," "AIA," the AIA Logo, and "AIA Contract Documents" are trademarks of The American Institute of Architects. This document was produced at 17:30:59 1 
ET on 10/12/2023 under Order No.3104238988 which expires on 07/26/2024, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in 
accordance with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail docinfo@aiacontracts.com. 
User Notes: (3B9ADA53) 

Thomas Romberg

Thomas Romberg-Project Manager

October 19,2023

Page 204 of 263



1 -201 
Construction Change Directive 
PROJECT: (name and address) 
Port Orchard City Hall Building 
Improvements 

OWNER: (name and address) 
City of Port Orchard 
216 Prospect Street 
Port Orchard, WA 98366 

CONTRACT INFORMATION: 
Contract For: Construction 

Date: May, 23, 2023 

ARCHITECT: (name and address) 
Rice Fergus Miller, Inc. 
275 5th Street, Suite 100 
Bremerton, WA 98337 

CCD INFORMATION: 
Directive Number: 01 

Date: September 13, 2023 

CONTRACTOR: (name and address) 
Lincoln Construction Inc. 
11803 1015' Ave E, Suite 201 
Puyallup, WA 98373 

The Contractor is hereby directed to make the following change(s) in this Contract: 
(Insert a detailed description of the change and, if applicable, attach or reference specific exhibits.) 

Revise mechanical equipment voltage per RFI 003 

PROPOSED ADJUSTMENTS 
1. The proposed basis of adjustment to the Contract Sum or Guaranteed Maximum Price is: 

~ Lump Sum increase of $5,079 

D Unit Price of$ per 

D Cost, as defined below, plus the following fee: 
(Insert a definition of or method for determining, cost) 

D As follows: 

2. The Contract Time is proposed to remain unchanged. The proposed adjustment, if any, is 

NOTE: The Owner, Architect and Contractor should execute a Change Order to supersede this Construction Change 
Directive to the extent they agree upon adjustments to the Contract Sum, Contract Time, or Guaranteed Maximum price for 
the change(s) described herein. 

When signed by the Owner and Architect and received by the Contractor, this document 
becomes effective fMMEDIA TEL Y as a Construction Change Directive (CCD), and the 
Contractor shall proceed with the change(s) described above. 

Port Orchard City Hall 

Contractor signature indicates agreement 
with the proposed adjustments in 
Contract Sum and Contract Time set 
forth in this CCD. 

Lincoln Construction Inc. 
CONTRACTOR (Firm name) 

SIGNATURE 
Tom Romberg-Project Manager 

PRINTED NAME AND TITLE 
September 13, 2023 

PRINTED NAME AND TITLE 
9-13-2023 

DATE 

OWNER (Firm name) 

Ylidi~ SINATUR . ~f 
\. rA~ fJf<D/).)/U ~ f NO 
PRINTED NAME AND TIT E q✓,gr-~ 
DATE DATE 

AIA Document G714 - 2017. Copyright© 2001, 2007 and 2017. All rights reserved. "The American Institute of Architects," "American Institute of Architects," 
"AIA," the AIA Logo, and "AIA Contract Documents" are trademarks of The American Institute of Architects. This document was produced at 14:21 :52 ET on 1 
09/13/2023 under Order No.3104238988 which expires on 07/26/2024, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in accordance 
with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail docinfo@aiacontracts.com. 
User Notes: (3B9ADA56) Page 205 of 263



CHANGE PROPOSAL REQUEST Lincoln Construction 

To: Port Orchard City Hall COP NO: 001 

CCD/PR No.: RFI 003 

Date: 9/11/2023 

Project: 

Attn.: Jason Ritter-Lopatowski LCI Project No.: 1257 

A. TOT AL MA TERIAL/EQ BASE COST $ 
B. TOT AL LABOR COST $ 

I$ 

' 
SUBTOTAL - 

C. OVERHEAD AND PROFIT (15%) $ 

I SUBTOTAL I $ - 

D. SUBCONTRACT COST $ 4,403.00 

E. OVERHEAD AND PROFIT ON 

SUBCONTRACT COST (12%) $ 528.36 

SUBTOTAL 1$ 4,931.361 

H. BOND (GC ONLY) $ 147.94 

SUBTOTAL 1$ 147.94 I 

TOT AL CHANGE PROPOSAL COST $ 5,079 
CONTRACT TIME ADJUSTMENT (DAYS) TBD 

Lincoln Construction, Inc. 0 
CONTRACTOR Tom Romberg 

9/11/2023 
DATE 

01114.00 g3.3 (2) Page 206 of 263



Lincoln Construction Change Order Request 

To: Jason Ritter-Lopatowski 
RFM Architects 

Owner COP/CCD/PR #: 

Date: 9/11/2023 -------- 
COP#: 001 -------- 
RFI 003 

Re: Port Orchard City Hall 

Please provide a change order for the following work: 

Per RFI 003 Revise Mechanical Equipment Voltage 

Total price per attached breakdown: 

State and local sales tax: 

Extension of time: 

$ 5,079 
includr X not included ---- ---- 

0 

We have proceeded with the work ------------- 
Work will not proceed without formal authorization ------------- 

This price is good for days from the above date, after which this request is subject to revision. ---- 5 

Sincerely, 
7/eomM ~om~- 'P,wfed ~~ 

Page 207 of 263



Lincoln Construction 

CHANGE ORDER REQUEST SUMMARY 

I Port Orchard City Hall 9/11/2023 

DESCRIPTION: 

LABOR 

COP:- REV:-DATE: 

Owner COP/CCD/PR #: RFI 003 

HOURS 
PROJECT MANAGER 
SUPERINTENDENT 
ASSISTANT SUPERINTENDENT 
CARPENTER 
LABORER 

SUBTOTAL _ 

SMALL TOOL ALLOWANCE@ 
SUBTOTAL ----------------------- MARK - UP@ 

TOTAL LABOR -------------------- 
MATERIALS/EQUIPMENT PHASE CODE UNITS 

SUBTOTAL ----------------------- USE TAX ON MATERIALS AND EQUIPMENT 
MARK-UP@ 

TOTAL MATERIAL/EQUIPMENT _ 

SUBCONTRACTS PHASE CODE UNITS 

Crescent Mechanical 

SUBTOTAL ----------------------- MARK - UP @ Sub Direct Cost 4,403 
TOTAL SUBCONTRACTS ------------------------- 

PROPOSAL SUBTOTAL 

BONDS/Liability/Builders Risk/B&O Tax 

PROPOSAL TOTAL 

RATE TOTAL 
X 95.00 $ 
X 88.95 $ 
X 85.25 $ 
X 82.25 $ 
X 73.50 $ 
X $ 
X $ 

$ 

0.0% $ 
$ 

15.0% $ 
$ 

RATE 
X $ 
X $ 
X $ 
X $ 

$ 
0.0% $ 

15.0% $ 
$ 

RATE 
X $ 
X 4,403.00 $ 4,403.00 
X $ 
X $ 
X $ 
X $ 
X $ 
X $ 

$ 4,403.00 
12.0% Less Sub Fee $ 528.36 

$ 4,931.36 

$ 4,931.36 

3.000% $ 147.94 

$ 5 079.30 

Updated: 9/30/2011 Page 5 of 7 
Page 208 of 263



1320 26th St NW #16 
Auburn WA 98001 
Phone: 253-833-5054 
Fax: 253-833-5144 

PROPOSED CHANGE ORDER 

To: Lincoln Construction 
11803 101 st Ave Suite 201 
Puyallup WA 98373 

Subject: 

Attention: 

We request a change order for the following work performed on this project: 

Description: 

Port Orchard City Hall 

Tom Romberg 

CMI Job No: 

CMICOP#: 
Date: 

2389 

1 
9/1/2023 

Revised VRF Outdoor Condensing Units to 480/3phase models per RFI # 3 Response. 

Amount of This Change Request: $4,403 

■Detailed Breakdown Attached 

■We are awaiting written direction before proceeding with this work. 

■Work During Regular Hours Only 

Owork Done on Expedited Basis 

0Per, we are proceeding with this work 

Owork in Progress 

Owork Already Completed 

By: Abby Haubrich 
Title: Proiect Manager 

cc: 
PM 

The cost of this change includes only those direct costs which can be identified at this time. There are no impact, ripple or delay costs 
included. Should it be determined at a later date that we are experiencing impact costs because of multiple changes, delays or other causes 
beyond our control, we will submit those costs at that time. 

Page 209 of 263



CRESCENT MECHANCIAL PROPOSED CHANGE ORDER BREAKDOWN 

Project: Port Orchard City Hall PCO#: 1 

Description: Revised OCU Model 480v/3ph Date: 9/1/2023 

I. LABOR: (effective 6/1/23) 
A.SHEETMETALSHOP 0.0 HRS@ $119.55 = $0.00 
B. SHEETMETAL FIELD 0.0 HRS@ $121.17 = $0.00 
C.SM FIELD T&H 0.0 HRS@ $46.70 $0.00 
D. DETAILING 0.0 HRS@ $125.00 = $0.00 
E. MATERIAL HANDLING 0.0 HRS@ $85.82 = $0.00 
F. SUBSISTENCE 0.0 HRS@ $34.65 = $0.00 
G. SUPERVISION @ 15% OF A thru E = $0.00 
H. PROJECT MANAGEMENT 1 HRS@ $95.00 = $95.00 

LABOR TOTAL $95.00 

II. LABOR BURDENS: 
A. SHOP BURDEN @35% OF ITEM IA $0.00 
B. SMALL TOOLS @ 5% OF ITEM IB $0.00 
C. SAFETY @ 2% OF ITEMS I AND IIA $1.90 

LABOR BURDEN TOTAL $1.90 

Ill. MATERIALS & EQUIPMENT: 
A. MATERIALS $0.00 
B. OCU 208 to 460v $3,542.45 
C. FREIGHT@4% OF MATERIAL $0.00 

MATERIALS & RENTAL TOTAL $3,542.45 

IV. SUBCONTRACTORS: 
A. $0.00 
B. $0.00 

SUBCONTRACTOR TOTAL $0.00 

V. OTHER DIRECT COSTS: 
A. OTHER $0.00 
B. OTHER $0.00 

OTHER DIRECT COST TOTAL $0.00 

VI. TOTAL ITEMS I, II, Ill, IV, V: $3,639.35 

VII. OVERHEAD AND PROFIT: 
A. OVERHEAD & PROFIT@ 18% OF ITEM I, II, 111, & V $655.08 
B. OVERHEAD & PROFIT @ 10% OF ITEM IV $0.00 

OVERHEAD & PROFIT TOTAL $655.08 

Sub Total VI & VII $4,294.43 

INSURANCE 2% OF ITEMS I-VII $85.89 
B&O Tax Of Sub Total $22.42 

TOT AL CHANGE REQUESTED t $41403 

Page 210 of 263



Abby Haubrich 

From: 
Sent: 
To: 
Cc: 
Subject: 

Hunter Minch <hminch@gensco.com> 
Tuesday, September 5, 2023 7:52 AM 
Abby Haubrich; Jeff Blankenship 
Commercial Logistics Team; Office 
RE: Port Orchard City Hall - Submittal Request 

Hi Abby, 

Please see below for the price difference. Please note the old quote pricing was before the price increase on May zs». 
ODUs are spec'd as 460V/3PH. 

Old Quote 

FE .. PP ■DIIP■lt-4111 121 
Mi~1Jbi~hi ~-q~~ment 

1 1 f:LJRY_-f;f?7~TNU-A:~§_ 
1 ~lJRY-{~F::1~YNU-A.d~$ 
1 elJRY.:-E;e.24QVNU.:-A.-13$_ 
:} cMe-~1016NU:-KA1 
'!I ruo □·H'IAt..111 l.t'A-:1 

-,a-♦-111:nnrt 11 

l.6 T Qn 2Q{J}l3.0/:3,. High !;Jfic_ieng,_ R:? $gri~ 
i 14 I9D. Af>.Q/3, H.!9~ f;tftc:j~nc;:v ~ $erj~s 
i ~()_Ton ,WQ/3, High f;ffjcie,ncy R2_S~ries_ 
16 Port Main BC . - , -~' "" . - .. --- 
,f Drut ~ .. h Ar' 

$ . {3,Q28.97 
$ 13,328.43 
S 21-622.1 • 

I I 
I 

l..\ '2.. /1 BO. \3 

New Quote 

Job Name: I Port Orchard City Hall 
Quote#: 23-0821 CD 
Exp~_re~: 10/5/2023 

253-t 

L h• -- 

. !o r~!!!_11e thissp«ialpricin(l ~iated~P.!_of.!!:t, aJI !!!_lea.Jes ~~stJpthr~h our Cammerc!!JISalu~rtment atcommerciaJsale~ 

_MJ_~u~is~~ E~~iement _ 
1 I P.~~Y-~P.7?Yf'tU-A:!;J~ _ 
1 1PL.J.ijY-l;P.1¥V:N!J-A~e~ 
1 I PURY-EP240YNU-A-BS ..:: i ,..._a;~ .. ; ·;:;;~~ .. -~ ;:...-.. . . .... -· .,. .... 

:~_Tcm4®t~. High (;,ffif~DJ:y R4.~~s 
_1~ Ton. t1§Q/~, H~h J;.ffi_c~nc:v R2.S.~rie~_ 

: io T<>.n ~1;3. Higt} ~ffic~nc:v R2 ~~rj~s 

Thank you, 
Hunter Minch 
Commercial Estimator I Gensco, Inc. 
Ph: 253-620-8254 
In Office Hours 8:00AM-4:30PM 

I 
$ ~.1:4~-7.Q_j 

--1 l 1tf t:~l I 
L\ Lo ,52 '1.. 53 

Yv ~ 2-~. 68 
Y '2,. 1&')0~ 1 l3 
-135-~ 2..l.\5') 

From: Abby Haubrich <Abby@crescentmechinc.com> 
Sent: Friday, September 1, 2023 12:31 PM 
To: Jeff Blankenship <jblankenship@gensco.com> 
Cc: Jesus Mendoza <jmendoza@gensco.com>; Commercial Logistics Team <Commerciallogistics@gensco.com>; Hunter 

1 

Page 211 of 263



Page 212 of 263



CHANGE PROPOSAL REQUEST Lincoln Construction

To: COP NO: 02

CCD/PR No.:  PR 03

Date:  

Project:  

Attn.:  LCI Project No.:  1257

A. TOTAL MATERIAL/EQ BASE COST -$                                          
B. TOTAL LABOR COST -$                                          

SUBTOTAL -$                                            

C. OVERHEAD AND PROFIT (15%) -$                                          

SUBTOTAL -$                                            

D. SUBCONTRACT COST 24,930.00$                               

E. OVERHEAD AND PROFIT ON

SUBCONTRACT COST (12%) 2,991.60$                                 

SUBTOTAL 27,921.60$                                 

H. BOND (GC ONLY) 837.65$                                    

SUBTOTAL 837.65$                                      

TOTAL CHANGE PROPOSAL COST 28,759$                                      
CONTRACT TIME ADJUSTMENT (DAYS) TBD

Thomas Romberg 0
CONTRACTOR Tom Romberg

DATE

9/18/2023

9/18/2023

Port Orchard City Hall

Jason Ritter-Lopatowski

Lincoln Construction, Inc.

 01114.00  g3.3 (2)Page 213 of 263



Lincoln Construction Change Order Request

To: Date:
COP #: 02

Owner COP/CCD/PR #: PR 03

Re: Port Orchard City Hall

Please provide a change order for the following work:

Total price per attached breakdown:
State and local sales tax: include X not included
Extension of time:

We have proceeded with the work
Work will not proceed without formal authorization

This price is good for 5 days from the above date, after which this request is subject to revision.

Sincerely,
Thomas Romberg-Project Manager

9/18/2023

 $                                                           28,759 

0

Jason Ritter-Lopatowski
RFM Architects

Per PR 03 Lintel Remideation-Weeps

Page 214 of 263



Lincoln Construction

CHANGE ORDER REQUEST SUMMARY

Port Orchard City Hall COP: 002 REV: 000 DATE: 9/18/2023

DESCRIPTION: Owner COP/CCD/PR #: PR 03

LABOR HOURS RATE TOTAL
PROJECT MANAGER X 95.00 = -$                      
SUPERINTENDENT X 88.95 = -$                      
ASSISTANT SUPERINTENDENT X 85.25 = -$                      
CARPENTER X 82.25 = -$                      
LABORER X 73.50 = -$                      

X = -$                      
X = -$                      

SUBTOTAL -$                      

SMALL TOOL ALLOWANCE @ 0.0% -$                      
SUBTOTAL -$                      

MARK-UP @ 15.0% -$                      
TOTAL LABOR -$                      

MATERIALS/EQUIPMENT PHASE CODE UNITS RATE
1 X = -$                      
1 X = -$                      
1 X = -$                      
1 X = -$                      

SUBTOTAL -$                      
USE TAX ON MATERIALS AND EQUIPMENT 0.0% -$                      
MARK-UP @ 15.0% -$                      

TOTAL MATERIAL/EQUIPMENT -$                      

SUBCONTRACTS PHASE CODE UNITS RATE
1 X = -$                      

FT Masonry 1 X 24,930.00 = 24,930.00$           
1 X = -$                      
1 X = -$                      
1 X = -$                      

X = -$                      
X = -$                      
X = -$                      

SUBTOTAL 24,930.00$           
MARK-UP @ Sub Direct Cost 24,930 12.0% Less Sub Fee 2,991.60$             

TOTAL SUBCONTRACTS 27,921.60$           

PROPOSAL SUBTOTAL 27,921.60$           

BONDS/Liability/Builders Risk/B&O Tax 3.000% 837.65$                

PROPOSAL TOTAL 28,759.25$           

Updated: 9/30/2011 Page 4 of  6
Page 215 of 263



Acknowledged & Signed: 

 
 
 
   
Jon A. Sherin, Finishing Touch Masonry   

 

Finishing Touch Masonry & Restoration Solutions, LLC 
1710 100th Place S.E., Suite B, Everett, WA  98208 
Office 425.948.7837   Fax 425.948.7838 
Contractor License FINISTM922MT    www.finishingtouchmasonry.com 

CHANGE ORDER 
REQUEST 

 

To:   Tom Romberg Date: September 13, 2023 

Company: Lincoln Construction, Inc. COR No. 001 

Project: Port Orchard City Hall Building Improvements 

Reference: PR-03 – Rusted Lintel Remediation 

 
Additional Work Details 

Selective demolition to remove brick at lintel, abrade rust, install rust inhibitor to lintel, 
relay brick, and clear weeps per PR-03 ............................................................................................... $24,930 
 
 
 
Breakdown Summary 

Labor (250 hours @ $80/hour) ................................ $20,000 
Materials: 
 Brick ......................................................................... 900 
 Caulking ................................................................... 353 
 Disposables .............................................................. 425 

Subtotal ........................................... $21,678 

 15% Overhead & Profit ........................ 3,252 

Total................................................. $24,930 
 

Page 216 of 263



CHANGE PROPOSAL REQUEST Lincoln Construction

To: COP NO: 03

CCD/PR No.:  PR 04

Date:  

Project:  

Attn.:  LCI Project No.:  1257

A. TOTAL MATERIAL/EQ BASE COST -$                                          
B. TOTAL LABOR COST -$                                          

SUBTOTAL -$                                            

C. OVERHEAD AND PROFIT (15%) -$                                          

SUBTOTAL -$                                            

D. SUBCONTRACT COST 1,685.00$                                 

E. OVERHEAD AND PROFIT ON

SUBCONTRACT COST (12%) 202.20$                                    

SUBTOTAL 1,887.20$                                   

H. BOND (GC ONLY) 56.62$                                      

SUBTOTAL 56.62$                                        

TOTAL CHANGE PROPOSAL COST 1,944$                                        
CONTRACT TIME ADJUSTMENT (DAYS) TBD

Thomas Romberg 0
CONTRACTOR Tom Romberg

DATE

9/18/2023

9/18/2023

Port Orchard City Hall

Jason Ritter-Lopatowski

Lincoln Construction, Inc.

 01114.00  g3.3 (2)Page 217 of 263



Lincoln Construction Change Order Request

To: Date:
COP #: 03

Owner COP/CCD/PR #: PR 04

Re: Port Orchard City Hall

Please provide a change order for the following work:

Total price per attached breakdown:
State and local sales tax: include X not included
Extension of time:

We have proceeded with the work
Work will not proceed without formal authorization

This price is good for 5 days from the above date, after which this request is subject to revision.

Sincerely,
Thomas Romberg-Project Manager

9/18/2023

 $                                                             1,944 

0

Jason Ritter-Lopatowski
RFM Architects

Per PR 04 Caulking at End of Wall

Page 218 of 263



Lincoln Construction

CHANGE ORDER REQUEST SUMMARY

Port Orchard City Hall COP: 003 REV: 000 DATE: 9/18/2023

DESCRIPTION: Owner COP/CCD/PR #: PR 04

LABOR HOURS RATE TOTAL
PROJECT MANAGER X 95.00 = -$                      
SUPERINTENDENT X 88.95 = -$                      
ASSISTANT SUPERINTENDENT X 85.25 = -$                      
CARPENTER X 82.25 = -$                      
LABORER X 73.50 = -$                      

X = -$                      
X = -$                      

SUBTOTAL -$                      

SMALL TOOL ALLOWANCE @ 0.0% -$                      
SUBTOTAL -$                      

MARK-UP @ 15.0% -$                      
TOTAL LABOR -$                      

MATERIALS/EQUIPMENT PHASE CODE UNITS RATE
1 X = -$                      
1 X = -$                      
1 X = -$                      
1 X = -$                      

SUBTOTAL -$                      
USE TAX ON MATERIALS AND EQUIPMENT 0.0% -$                      
MARK-UP @ 15.0% -$                      

TOTAL MATERIAL/EQUIPMENT -$                      

SUBCONTRACTS PHASE CODE UNITS RATE
1 X = -$                      

FT Masonry 1 X 1,685.00 = 1,685.00$             
1 X = -$                      
1 X = -$                      
1 X = -$                      

X = -$                      
X = -$                      
X = -$                      

SUBTOTAL 1,685.00$             
MARK-UP @ Sub Direct Cost 1,685 12.0% Less Sub Fee 202.20$                

TOTAL SUBCONTRACTS 1,887.20$             

PROPOSAL SUBTOTAL 1,887.20$             

BONDS/Liability/Builders Risk/B&O Tax 3.000% 56.62$                  

PROPOSAL TOTAL 1,943.82$             

Updated: 9/30/2011 Page 4 of  6
Page 219 of 263



Acknowledged & Signed: 

 
 
 
   
Jon A. Sherin, Finishing Touch Masonry   

 

Finishing Touch Masonry & Restoration Solutions, LLC 
1710 100th Place S.E., Suite B, Everett, WA  98208 
Office 425.948.7837   Fax 425.948.7838 
Contractor License FINISTM922MT    www.finishingtouchmasonry.com 

CHANGE ORDER 
REQUEST 

 

To:   Tom Romberg Date: September 13, 2023 

Company: Lincoln Construction, Inc. COR No. 002 

Project: Port Orchard City Hall Building Improvements 

Reference: PR-04 – Caulk End of Wall Abutment Conditions 

 
Additional Work Details 

Remove/chip mortar where planter walls meet building and add backer and sanded 
caulking to match adjacent mortar, to fill gaps at precast top and brick-to-brick joints 
per PR-04 ............................................................................................................................................... $1,685 
 
 
 
Breakdown Summary 

Labor (12 hours @ $80/hour) ....................................... $960 
Materials: 
 Caulking ................................................................... 375 
 Backer Rod ................................................................ 85 
 Sand ........................................................................... 10 
 Disposables ................................................................ 35 

Subtotal ............................................. $1,465 

 15% Overhead & Profit ........................... 220 

Total................................................... $1,685 
 
 

Page 220 of 263



CHANGE PROPOSAL REQUEST Lincoln Construction

To: COP NO: 04R1

CCD/PR No.:  

Date:  

Project:  

Attn.:  LCI Project No.:  1257

A. TOTAL MATERIAL/EQ BASE COST -$                                          
B. TOTAL LABOR COST -$                                          

SUBTOTAL -$                                            

C. OVERHEAD AND PROFIT (15%) -$                                          

SUBTOTAL -$                                            

D. SUBCONTRACT COST 9,975.00$                                 

E. OVERHEAD AND PROFIT ON

SUBCONTRACT COST (12%) 1,197.00$                                 

SUBTOTAL 11,172.00$                                 

H. BOND (GC ONLY) 335.16$                                    

SUBTOTAL 335.16$                                      

TOTAL CHANGE PROPOSAL COST 11,507$                                      
CONTRACT TIME ADJUSTMENT (DAYS) TBD

Thomas Romberg 0
CONTRACTOR Tom Romberg

DATE

10/2/2023

10/2/2023

Port Orchard City Hall

Jason Ritter-Lopatowski

Lincoln Construction, Inc.

 01114.00  g3.3 (2)Page 221 of 263



Lincoln Construction Change Order Request

To: Date:
COP #: 04R1

Owner COP/CCD/PR #:

Re: Port Orchard City Hall

Please provide a change order for the following work:

Total price per attached breakdown:
State and local sales tax: include X not included
Extension of time:

We have proceeded with the work
Work will not proceed without formal authorization

This price is good for 5 days from the above date, after which this request is subject to revision.

Sincerely,
Thomas Romberg-Project Manager

10/2/2023

 $                                                            11,507 

0

Jason Ritter-Lopatowski
RFM Architects

Unforeseen remidiation work at failed mortar and failed caulking.

Page 222 of 263



Lincoln Construction

CHANGE ORDER REQUEST SUMMARY

Port Orchard City Hall COP: 004 REV: 001 DATE: 10/2/2023

DESCRIPTION: Owner COP/CCD/PR #:

LABOR HOURS RATE TOTAL
PROJECT MANAGER X 95.00 = -$                      
SUPERINTENDENT X 88.95 = -$                      
ASSISTANT SUPERINTENDENT X 85.25 = -$                      
CARPENTER X 82.25 = -$                      
LABORER X 73.50 = -$                      

X = -$                      
X = -$                      

SUBTOTAL -$                      

SMALL TOOL ALLOWANCE @ 0.0% -$                      
SUBTOTAL -$                      

MARK-UP @ 15.0% -$                      
TOTAL LABOR -$                      

MATERIALS/EQUIPMENT PHASE CODE UNITS RATE
1 X = -$                      
1 X = -$                      
1 X = -$                      
1 X = -$                      

SUBTOTAL -$                      
USE TAX ON MATERIALS AND EQUIPMENT 0.0% -$                      
MARK-UP @ 15.0% -$                      

TOTAL MATERIAL/EQUIPMENT -$                      

SUBCONTRACTS PHASE CODE UNITS RATE
1 X = -$                      

FT Masonry 1 X 6,495.00 = 6,495.00$             
FT Masonry 1 X 3,480.00 = 3,480.00$             

1 X = -$                      
1 X = -$                      

X = -$                      
X = -$                      
X = -$                      

SUBTOTAL 9,975.00$             
MARK-UP @ Sub Direct Cost 6,495 12.0% Less Sub Fee 1,197.00$             

TOTAL SUBCONTRACTS 11,172.00$           

PROPOSAL SUBTOTAL 11,172.00$           

BONDS/Liability/Builders Risk/B&O Tax 3.000% 335.16$                

PROPOSAL TOTAL 11,507.16$           

Updated: 9/30/2011 Page 5 of  7
Page 223 of 263



Acknowledged & Signed: 

 
 
 
   
Jon A. Sherin, Finishing Touch Masonry   

 

Finishing Touch Masonry & Restoration Solutions, LLC 
1710 100th Place S.E., Suite B, Everett, WA  98208 
Office 425.948.7837   Fax 425.948.7838 
Contractor License FINISTM922MT    www.finishingtouchmasonry.com 

CHANGE ORDER 
REQUEST 

 

To:   Tom Romberg Date: September 29, 2023 

Company: Lincoln Construction, Inc. COR No. 003 Revised 

Project: Port Orchard City Hall Building Improvements 

Reference: Failed Mortar Replacement at Concrete Planter Caps 

 
Additional Work Details 

Replace failed and broken mortar joints at concrete planter caps (includes removing failed 
mortar and installing backer rod and flexible caulking with a sanded finish to match mortar) ............... $6,495 
 
 
 
Breakdown Summary 

Labor (60 hours @ $80/hour) .................................... $4,800 
Materials: 
 Caulking ................................................................... 650 
 Backer Rod .............................................................. 135 
 Sand ........................................................................... 20 
 Disposables ................................................................ 43 

Subtotal ............................................. $5,648 

 15% Overhead & Profit ........................... 847 

Total................................................... $6,495 
 

Page 224 of 263



Acknowledged & Signed: 

 
 
 
   
Jon A. Sherin, Finishing Touch Masonry   

 

Finishing Touch Masonry & Restoration Solutions, LLC 
1710 100th Place S.E., Suite B, Everett, WA  98208 
Office 425.948.7837   Fax 425.948.7838 
Contractor License FINISTM922MT    www.finishingtouchmasonry.com 

CHANGE ORDER 
REQUEST 

 

To:   Tom Romberg Date: September 13, 2023 

Company: Lincoln Construction, Inc. COR No. 004 

Project: Port Orchard City Hall Building Improvements 

Reference: Failed Caulking Replacement at Large Arched Storefront at Clock Tower 

 
Additional Work Details 

Replace failed and aged caulking at perimeter of large arched entry window/storefronts at 
front and rear of clock towers (includes removing existing failed caulking and backer material 
at brick abutment to metal window frame and replace with new backer and caulking to match) ........... $3,480 
 
 
 
Breakdown Summary 

Labor (32 hours @ $80/hour) .................................... $2,560 
Materials: 
 Caulking ................................................................... 350 
 Backer Rod ................................................................ 70 
 Sand ........................................................................... 10 
 Disposables ................................................................ 36 

Subtotal ............................................. $3,026 

 15% Overhead & Profit ........................... 454 

Total................................................... $3,480 
 
 

Page 225 of 263



CHANGE PROPOSAL REQUEST Lincoln Construction

To: COP NO: 05

CCD/PR No.:  PR 05

Date:  

Project:  

Attn.:  LCI Project No.:  1257

A. TOTAL MATERIAL/EQ BASE COST -$                                          
B. TOTAL LABOR COST -$                                          

SUBTOTAL -$                                            

C. OVERHEAD AND PROFIT (15%) -$                                          

SUBTOTAL -$                                            

D. SUBCONTRACT COST (17,526.00)$                              

E. OVERHEAD AND PROFIT ON

SUBCONTRACT COST (12%) -$                                          

SUBTOTAL (17,526.00)$                                

H. BOND (GC ONLY) -$                                          

SUBTOTAL -$                                            

TOTAL CHANGE PROPOSAL COST (17,526)$                                     
CONTRACT TIME ADJUSTMENT (DAYS) TBD

Thomas Romberg 0
CONTRACTOR Tom Romberg

DATE

9/19/2023

1/19/2023

Port Orchard City Hall

Jason Ritter-Lopatowski

Lincoln Construction, Inc.

 01114.00  g3.3 (2)Page 226 of 263



Lincoln Construction Change Order Request

To: Date:
COP #: 05

Owner COP/CCD/PR #: PR 05

Re: Port Orchard City Hall

Please provide a change order for the following work:

Total price per attached breakdown:
State and local sales tax: include X not included
Extension of time:

We have proceeded with the work
Work will not proceed without formal authorization

This price is good for 5 days from the above date, after which this request is subject to revision.

Sincerely,
Thomas Romberg-Project Manager

9/19/2023

 $                                                          (17,526)

0

Jason Ritter-Lopatowski
RFM Architects

Per PR 05 Roofing Credit

Page 227 of 263



Lincoln Construction

CHANGE ORDER REQUEST SUMMARY

Port Orchard City Hall COP: 005 REV: 000 DATE: 9/19/2023

DESCRIPTION: Owner COP/CCD/PR #: PR 05

LABOR HOURS RATE TOTAL
PROJECT MANAGER X 95.00 = -$                      
SUPERINTENDENT X 88.95 = -$                      
ASSISTANT SUPERINTENDENT X 85.25 = -$                      
CARPENTER X 82.25 = -$                      
LABORER X 73.50 = -$                      

X = -$                      
X = -$                      

SUBTOTAL -$                      

SMALL TOOL ALLOWANCE @ 0.0% -$                      
SUBTOTAL -$                      

MARK-UP @ 15.0% -$                      
TOTAL LABOR -$                      

MATERIALS/EQUIPMENT PHASE CODE UNITS RATE
1 X = -$                      
1 X = -$                      
1 X = -$                      
1 X = -$                      

SUBTOTAL -$                      
USE TAX ON MATERIALS AND EQUIPMENT 0.0% -$                      
MARK-UP @ 15.0% -$                      

TOTAL MATERIAL/EQUIPMENT -$                      

SUBCONTRACTS PHASE CODE UNITS RATE
1 X = -$                      

Exterior Specialties 1 X (17,526.00) = (17,526.00)$          
1 X = -$                      
1 X = -$                      
1 X = -$                      

X = -$                      
X = -$                      
X = -$                      

SUBTOTAL (17,526.00)$          
MARK-UP @ Sub Direct Cost -17,526 0.0% Less Sub Fee -$                      

TOTAL SUBCONTRACTS (17,526.00)$          

PROPOSAL SUBTOTAL (17,526.00)$          

BONDS/Liability/Builders Risk/B&O Tax 0.000% -$                      

PROPOSAL TOTAL (17,526.00)$          

Updated: 9/30/2011 Page 4 of  6
Page 228 of 263



EXTERIOR SPECIALTIES, LLC. 
                                                                                                               PO BOX 736 

WAUNA, WA 98395 
PHONE: 253-324-8958 

EMAIL: JERRYHARMON50@GMAIL.COM 

 

 

 

                                                                  CHANGE ORDER REQUEST 

 

Job Name : Port Orchard City Hall Renovation                                   PR – 5 

 Demo Existing Insulation 

  $ 60.95 x 40 hours                                                          $ 2,438.00 

Recycle Fees                                                                        

2 tons x $ 178.00                                                               $ 356.00 

Insulation not supplied 

100 sq x  $ 102.75                                                              $ 10,275.00 

Labor to install Insulation 

$ 60.95 x 60 hours                                                             $ 3,657.00 

Vapor Barrier not installed 

10 rolls x $ 80.00                                                                $ 800.00 

 

Total Credit to owner                                                         $ 17,526.00 

 

Jerry Harmon 

Owner 

Exterior Specialties  

 

 

 

 

Page 229 of 263



CHANGE PROPOSAL REQUEST Lincoln Construction

To: COP NO: 06

CCD/PR No.:  PR 01

Date:  

Project:  

Attn.:  LCI Project No.:  1257

A. TOTAL MATERIAL/EQ BASE COST -$                                          
B. TOTAL LABOR COST -$                                          

SUBTOTAL -$                                            

C. OVERHEAD AND PROFIT (15%) -$                                          

SUBTOTAL -$                                            

D. SUBCONTRACT COST 5,922.00$                                 

E. OVERHEAD AND PROFIT ON

SUBCONTRACT COST (12%) 710.64$                                    

SUBTOTAL 6,632.64$                                   

H. BOND (GC ONLY) 198.98$                                    

SUBTOTAL 198.98$                                      

TOTAL CHANGE PROPOSAL COST 6,832$                                        
CONTRACT TIME ADJUSTMENT (DAYS) TBD

Thomas Romberg 0
CONTRACTOR Tom Romberg

DATE

9/19/2023

9/19/2023

Port Orchard City Hall

Jason Ritter-Lopatowski

Lincoln Construction, Inc.

 01114.00  g3.3 (2)Page 230 of 263



Lincoln Construction Change Order Request

To: Date:
COP #: 06

Owner COP/CCD/PR #: PR 01

Re: Port Orchard City Hall

Please provide a change order for the following work:

Total price per attached breakdown:
State and local sales tax: include X not included
Extension of time:

We have proceeded with the work
Work will not proceed without formal authorization

This price is good for 5 days from the above date, after which this request is subject to revision.

Sincerely,
Thomas Romberg-Project Manager

9/19/2023

 $                                                             6,832 

0

Jason Ritter-Lopatowski
RFM Architects

Per PR 01 Supply Safety Window Fillm

Page 231 of 263



Lincoln Construction

CHANGE ORDER REQUEST SUMMARY

Port Orchard City Hall COP: 006 REV: 000 DATE: 9/19/2023

DESCRIPTION: Owner COP/CCD/PR #: PR 01

LABOR HOURS RATE TOTAL
PROJECT MANAGER X 95.00 = -$                      
SUPERINTENDENT X 88.95 = -$                      
ASSISTANT SUPERINTENDENT X 85.25 = -$                      
CARPENTER X 82.25 = -$                      
LABORER X 73.50 = -$                      

X = -$                      
X = -$                      

SUBTOTAL -$                      

SMALL TOOL ALLOWANCE @ 0.0% -$                      
SUBTOTAL -$                      

MARK-UP @ 15.0% -$                      
TOTAL LABOR -$                      

MATERIALS/EQUIPMENT PHASE CODE UNITS RATE
1 X = -$                      
1 X = -$                      
1 X = -$                      
1 X = -$                      

SUBTOTAL -$                      
USE TAX ON MATERIALS AND EQUIPMENT 0.0% -$                      
MARK-UP @ 15.0% -$                      

TOTAL MATERIAL/EQUIPMENT -$                      

SUBCONTRACTS PHASE CODE UNITS RATE
1 X = -$                      

Solar Art 1 X 5,922.00 = 5,922.00$             
1 X = -$                      
1 X = -$                      
1 X = -$                      

X = -$                      
X = -$                      
X = -$                      

SUBTOTAL 5,922.00$             
MARK-UP @ Sub Direct Cost 5,922 12.0% Less Sub Fee 710.64$                

TOTAL SUBCONTRACTS 6,632.64$             

PROPOSAL SUBTOTAL 6,632.64$             

BONDS/Liability/Builders Risk/B&O Tax 3.000% 198.98$                

PROPOSAL TOTAL 6,831.62$             

Updated: 9/30/2011 Page 4 of  6
Page 232 of 263



Deal Date Sep 11, 2023
Rep Fabian Garcia
Install Date
Installer(s)
Deal Name Lincoln Construction Inc- POCH Security Film

Tom Romberg (Lincoln Construction Inc)
216 Prospect St, Port Orchard, WA 98366
Mobile: (253) 606-8350
tom.romberg@lincolnnw.com

Tom Romberg (Lincoln Construction Inc)
11803 101st Ave Ct E Suite 201, Puyallup, WA 98373
Mobile: (253) 606-8350
tom.romberg@lincolnnw.com

We are assuming NO silicone attachment system, IF that is to be added and frames qualify to receive it, added cost would be $1550

Sales Tax not included. 
Minimum job size per trip is $500 ($600 for security film).
A $200 trip charge will be applied for any jobs with less than a 24 hour notice of cancellation or that can't be completed when scheduled.
No removal of old film included unless specifically mentioned.
We require 3 feet in front of the glass for access.

OPTION 1

Security Film
3M S800 Security Film on 2 Type A, 5 Type B, 2 Type C QTY PRICE

3M - Ultra S800 9 $5,922.00

Additional Services

Silicone Attachment Option $1,550.00

TOTAL 9 $7,472.00

DEAL #1025306

JOB LOCATION BILLING TO

JOB DETAILS

TERMS

Page 233 of 263



Deal Date Sep 11, 2023
Rep Fabian Garcia
Install Date
Installer(s)
Deal Name Lincoln Construction Inc- POCH Security Film

Work to be performed during regular business hours (M-F 8am to 5pm) unless specified otherwise.

No additional Insurance or bonds, lifts and/or scaffolding unless specified.

Estimate is based on NON Prevailing Wage.

Solar Art cannot be held responsible for materials that are supplied by customer.

Solar Art is non-union.

All work will be completed by trained technicians per the manufacturer's install instructions.

Install will be performed per the Visual Inspection Standards for Window Film by the International Window Film Association (IWFA).

Borders will be uniform and at a distance of 1/16" to 1/32" from the window seal. Light gaps with extremely dark films may be visible. Contamination will be

kept to a minimum and per IWFA standards. For complete description visit https://iwfa.com/guidelines

Security and Graffiti film may have a wider gap.

Payment due on NET 30 terms.

Warranty will be released once final payment is received.

A 3% fee will be added to any credit card payments exceeding $15,000.

For contractor's licenses, COI's and W-9's please visit:

https://www.solarart.com/licenses-insurance

Please prepare for your installation by removing any items away from the

glass.

Upon completion the film may have a dimpled appearance from residual

moisture. The film shall dry flat with no moisture bubbles within a period

of 30-60 days.

Please do not clean your windows during the period.

OC Office: 949.770.8969 | LA Office: 818.888.1600 | SD Office: 619.280.8556 | SF Office: 650.349.2257
Seattle: 253.536.4440 | Dallas: 214.503.9977 | Arizona: 602.589.5385 | Corporate: 949.825.7940

Mailing Address: 23042 Mill Creek Drive | Laguna Hills, CA 92653 | info@solarart.com | www.solarart.com

DEAL #1025306

GENERAL PROJECT DETAILS

INSTALLATION & IWFA VISUAL INSPECTION STANDARDS

PAYMENT TERMS DOCUMENT LINKS

THE SITE FILM CURING

Page 234 of 263

https://iwfa.com/guidelines/
https://www.solarart.com/licenses-insurance


CHANGE PROPOSAL REQUEST Lincoln Construction

To: COP NO: 07

CCD/PR No.:  PR 02

Date:  

Project:  

Attn.:  LCI Project No.:  1257

A. TOTAL MATERIAL/EQ BASE COST 3,811.00$                                 
B. TOTAL LABOR COST 1,974.00$                                 

SUBTOTAL 5,785.00$                                   

C. OVERHEAD AND PROFIT (15%) 867.75$                                    

SUBTOTAL 867.75$                                      

D. SUBCONTRACT COST 1,095.00$                                 

E. OVERHEAD AND PROFIT ON

SUBCONTRACT COST (12%) 131.40$                                    

SUBTOTAL 1,226.40$                                   

H. BOND (GC ONLY) 236.37$                                    

SUBTOTAL 236.37$                                      

TOTAL CHANGE PROPOSAL COST 8,116$                                        
CONTRACT TIME ADJUSTMENT (DAYS) TBD

Thomas Romberg 0
CONTRACTOR Tom Romberg

DATE

9/19/2023

9/19/2023

Port Orchard City Hall

Jason Ritter-Lopatowski

Lincoln Construction, Inc.

 01114.00  g3.3 (2)Page 235 of 263



Lincoln Construction Change Order Request

To: Date:
COP #: 07

Owner COP/CCD/PR #: PR 02

Re: Port Orchard City Hall

Please provide a change order for the following work:

Total price per attached breakdown:
State and local sales tax: include X not included
Extension of time:

We have proceeded with the work
Work will not proceed without formal authorization

This price is good for 5 days from the above date, after which this request is subject to revision.

Sincerely,
Thomas Romberg-Project Manager

9/19/2023

 $                                                             8,116 

0

Jason Ritter-Lopatowski
RFM Architects

Per PR 02 Supply and install 4 clock tower access hatches.

Page 236 of 263



Lincoln Construction

CHANGE ORDER REQUEST SUMMARY

Port Orchard City Hall COP: 007 REV: 000 DATE: 9/19/2023

DESCRIPTION: Owner COP/CCD/PR #: PR 02

LABOR HOURS RATE TOTAL
PROJECT MANAGER X 95.00 = -$                      
SUPERINTENDENT X 88.95 = -$                      
ASSISTANT SUPERINTENDENT X 85.25 = -$                      
CARPENTER 24 X 82.25 = 1,974.00$             
LABORER X 73.50 = -$                      

X = -$                      
X = -$                      

SUBTOTAL 1,974.00$             

SMALL TOOL ALLOWANCE @ 0.0% -$                      
SUBTOTAL 1,974.00$             

MARK-UP @ 15.0% 296.10$                
TOTAL LABOR 2,270.10$             

MATERIALS/EQUIPMENT PHASE CODE UNITS RATE
1 X = -$                      

Fire Rated Framing Lumber-Nails 1 X 350.00 = 350.00$                
Access Hatches 1 X 3,461.00 = 3,461.00$             

1 X = -$                      
SUBTOTAL 3,811.00$             

USE TAX ON MATERIALS AND EQUIPMENT 0.0% -$                      
MARK-UP @ 15.0% 571.65$                

TOTAL MATERIAL/EQUIPMENT 4,382.65$             

SUBCONTRACTS PHASE CODE UNITS RATE
1 X = -$                      

Exterior Specialties 1 X 740.00 = 740.00$                
Commercial Insulation 1 X 355.00 = 355.00$                

1 X = -$                      
1 X = -$                      

X = -$                      
X = -$                      
X = -$                      

SUBTOTAL 1,095.00$             
MARK-UP @ Sub Direct Cost 740 12.0% Less Sub Fee 131.40$                

TOTAL SUBCONTRACTS 1,226.40$             

PROPOSAL SUBTOTAL 7,879.15$             

BONDS/Liability/Builders Risk/B&O Tax 3.000% 236.37$                

PROPOSAL TOTAL 8,115.52$             

Updated: 9/30/2011 Page 4 of  6
Page 237 of 263



Quote Date Order #

PO # Page #

Instructions

Ship Point Via

Shipped Terms

Ln
#

Product
And Description

Quantity
Ordered

Unit
Price

Amount
(Net)

Quote Order
09/08/23 723395-00

access panels 1

Bill To LINCOLN CONSTRUCTION INC
11803 101st  AVE E.STE 201
PUYALLUP, WA 98373

Cust #

166524

Correspondence To Masons Supply Company
PO BOX 1027
RIDGEFIELD, WA 98642

Ship To PORT ORCHARD CITY HALL
C / O LINCOLN CONSTRUCTION INC
216 PROSPECT ST
PORT ORCHARD, WA 98366

Oregon
Portland

800-537-3407
503-234-4321

Washington
Woodinville

800-537-6216
425-487-6161NORTHWEST OWNED FOR OVER 90 YEARS

CLACKAMAS,OR

503-722-1528

WEST EUGENE,OR

541-683-1408

EUGENE,OR

541-744-6696

HILLSBORO,OR

503-533-0107

MEDFORD,OR

541-772-6161

RIDGEFIELD,WA

360-887-4777

SALEM,OR

503-585-5504

SEATTLE,WA

206-767-4645

TACOMA,WA

253-581-6161

NO REFUND WILL BE ISSUED FOR NORMALLY

STOCKED MATERIAL RETURNED 45 DAYS AFTER

ORIGINAL PURCHASE.

NO REFUND WITHOUT PRESENTATION OF THIS SALE

SLIP.  15% RESTOCK ON ALL APPROVED RETURNS.

Masons Kingdome SALESMAN

Qty
UM

Lines Total Qty Shipped Total

Sign Name Print Name Time Out Time In

This quoted price is good for a period of 30 days from the date of the quotation. Masons Supply must receive a purchase order within that same 30 days to hold the price.  The quoted prices are valid

only if all items and quantities in the indicated sizes are ordered. Any changes may result in revised pricing. No extended delivery dates will be offered on this quotation. Customer must accept delivery

of this order within Masons Supply and Manufacturers normal production and delivery schedule to receive the quoted price. This offer expressly limits acceptance to the terms stated herein, and any

additional or different terms proposed by the Buyer are rejected unless expressly assented to in writing. Masons terms and conditions of sale apply to all sales of the quoted products and are

incorporated into this quotation.

Print Time: 09/08/23 08:27* Customer Copy Page 1 of 1

1% 10th F/M

**********TOM ROMBERG
# 253-606-8350
PORT ORCHARD CITY HALL

1 BD ITK1818 1 EA 163.13 163.13
ITK 18"X18", 1" FLANGE KNOB FIRE RATED WHT

2 BD ITK2424 1 EA 176.74 176.74
ITK 24"X24", 1" FLANGE KNOB FIRE RATED WHT

3 BD XTM24241202 4 each 865.10 3460.40
24x24,MORT/PREP,#1202 GALNL,GKT,ALUM

3 6 Total 3800.27
Taxes 321.82
Invoice Total 4122.09

Page 238 of 263



Page 239 of 263



EXTERIOR SPECIALTIES, LLC. 
                                                                                                               PO BOX 736 

WAUNA, WA 98395 
PHONE: 253-324-8958 

EMAIL: JERRYHARMON50@GMAIL.COM 

 

 

 

                                                                  CHANGE ORDER REQUEST 

 

Job Name : Port Orchard City Hall Renovation                                   PR – 2 

  

Added Hatches at clock tower 

Sheet Metal Flashings 

Flashing and fabrication                                                  $ 400.00 

Labor to install flashing 

$ 60.95 x 4 hours                                                               $ 243.80 

 

Sub Total                                                                             $ 643.80 

15% Allowable Mark Up                                                   $  96.57 

 

Total Change Request                                                       $ 740.37 

 

Jerry Harmon 

Owner 

Exterior Specialties  

 

 

 

 

Page 240 of 263



Commercial Insulation Service
7930 Center St. SW P: 253-241-9140
Tumwater, WA 98501 JohnBrown@cisinsulation.com

CIS Job Number 2342 Date 9/6/2023 COR 2

Job Name Port Orchard City Hall Renovations PR 2
Qty UM Rate Total

Labor 
Foreman HR 97.59$       -$              
Journeyman 2 HR 92.63$       185.26$        
Journeyman OT HR 138.95$     -$              
Journeyman 2X OT HR 185.27$     -$              

Subtotal 185.26$        
Materials
Liquid Flashing 8 EA 15.45$       123.60$        

EA -$           -$              
EA -$           -$              

-$           -$              
-$           -$              
-$           -$              
-$           -$              

Sub Total 123.60$        
Equipment -$              
Delivery/Pickup EA -$           -$              
Boom Lift EA -$           -$              

-$           -$              
Sub Total -$              

Grand-Subtotal 308.9$          Labor, Materials, Equipment
Consumables -$              
B&O Use Tax -$              
Environmental Fee -$              

Sub Total 308.9$          >>>> Total  $                308.86 

Cost of Time
Time Extension day 0.00 -$              
Delays day 0.00 -$              

Sub Total -$              -$                      

Description of work

Subtotal 308.86$                 

Allowed Markup 15% $46.33

Additional Working Days COR 2 Total $355

indirect costs based on information provided by the owner.

Contractor:
John Brown - Estimator/PM 253-241-9140 Date 9/6/2023

Signature

Approved by:
Date

Signature

CHANGE ORDER REQUEST

This proposal excludes sales tax and  includes any and all necessary adjustments to the construction schedule and all direct and 

Added liquid flashing at 4 clock tower hatches

Page 241 of 263

mailto:JohnBrown@cisinsulation.com


 

275 Fifth Street, Suite 100 Bremerton, WA 98337 

(360) 377-8773   rfmarch.com 

 

 

PROPOSAL REQUEST 

Project: Port Orchard City Hall Building Improvements PR No.: PR-02 

Project No.: 2020013 Date Issued: 08/30/2023 

Owner: City of Port Orchard Issued To: Lincoln Construction Inc. 

 216 Prospect Street  11803 101st Ave E, Suite 201 

 Port Orchard, WA 98366  Puyallup, WA 98373 

Contract Date: 05/23/2023 Attn: Debbie Howells 

Please submit an itemized proposal for changes in the Contract Sum and Contract Time for proposed modifications to 
the Contract Documents described herein. Submit proposal within 7 days, or notify the Architect in writing of the date 
on which you anticipate submitting your proposal.  THIS IS NOT A CHANGE ORDER, A CONSTRUCTION CHANGE 
DIRECTIVE OR A DIRECTION TO PROCEED WITH THE WORK DESCRIBED IN THE PROPOSED 
MODIFICATIONS. 

Description:  
1. Provide (4) hatches in the exterior wall to align with the openings in the clock faces. 

a. Hatches to be exterior rated and gasketed 

Attachments: 
Access Hatch detail. 

Requested By: Jason Ritter – Rice Fergus Miller 
Copies To:   Owner   Contractor 

   Architect   Field 
   Consultant   Other 

 
END OF PROPOSAL REQUEST 

Page 242 of 263



F
IE

L
D

 V
E

R
IF

Y
 L

O
C

A
T

IO
N

1
6
"  

S
Q

 C
L
O

C
K

 F
A

C
E

 H
A

T
C

H

WALL INFILL

2X FIRE RETARDANT WOOD ROUGH OPENING.  

REFER TO HATCH MANUFACTURER FOR ROUGH 

OPENING DIMENSIONS.

24" SQ EXTERIOR RATED ACCESS HATCH.  WATER 

TIGHT CONSTRUCTION

2X FIRE RETARDANT WOOD ROUGH OPENING.  

REFER TO HATCH MANUFACTURER FOR ROUGH 

OPENING DIMENSIONS.  SLOPE SILL FOR DRAINAGE.

LIQUID FLASHING TO WRAP INTO ROUGH OPENING 

FULL DEPTH.

DRIP EDGE.  WET SET IN SEALANT AND LAP ONTO 

WRB

HEAD, JAMB, AND SILL FLASHING TO EXTEND FULL 

DEPTH OF RO.  FLAT HEM ON INSIDE EDGE.  TYPICAL 

ALL SIDES.

CONTINUOUS SEALANT AROUND DOOR FRAME 

PERIMETER PER MANUFACTURER

SLOPE

LIQUID FLASHING TO WRAP ONTO INTERIOR FACE 

OF BLOCKING.  WET SET HATCH ONTO LIQUID 

FLASHING

Page 243 of 263



CITY OF PORT ORCHARD 

Authorization for Change Order No. 2 

Date: 11/10/2023 

Project: City Hall Renovation 

Contract / Job # C048-23 ------------- 

Contractor: Lincoln Construction, Inc. 

11803 101st Ave. E. Suite 201 

Puyallup, WA 98373 

THIS CHANGE ORDER AUTHORIZES (add description). 
Additional Work/Construction Change Directives: 
COP 008- Change StronGirts from 24" OC to 16" OC, double the screws needed for the attachment and change to stainless steel #14 x 2" Hex 
Washer Head Self-Drilling. Change StronGrits from 24" OC to 12" OC at Zone 5. Exterior cladding attachment system. 

See COP 008 and AIA for breakdown. 
See memo for more detail. 

Amount Sales Tax Total Date Appvd by 
Original Contract $8,245,941.00 $766,872.51 $9,012,813.51 13-Jun-22 Council 
Change Order 1 $44, 111 .. 00 $4,698.77 $49,409.77 11-Oct-23 PW Director 

Change Order 2 $92,579.00 $8,609.85 $101,188.85 10-Nov-23 Council 

Total Contract $8,383,231.00 $780,181.12 $9,163,412.12 

-- . l - - l I L - 

I have reviewed the Change Order information above and certify that to the best of my knowledge descriptions and 
costs are true and accurate. 

Contractor Approval Signature 

Thomas Romberg-Project Manager 

Printed Name & Title Printed Name 

Public Works Oiror 

(.JM<C q/4<'.J 
Change Orders that do not exceed 10%, with a maximum of 
$50,000, of either legally authorized budget limit or contract Approved: 
amount established by City Council can be approved by the Public 
Works Director. 

Change Orders that do not exceed 10%, with a maximum of Attest: 
$100,000, of either legally authorized budget limit or contract 
amount established by City Council are to be approved by the 
Mayor. 

Change Orders over $100,000 or exceed a total of 10% require 
Council Action. 

Mayor 

City Clerk 

Council Approval Date 

December 12, 2023

Deputy City Clerk

Mayor Pro-Tem

DocuSign Envelope ID: 77F5F89C-4330-4117-A788-61088F983560

Page 244 of 263



-.,AJA Documen 0 -20 
Change Order 
PROJECT: (Name and address) 
Port Orchard City Hall Building 
Improvements 
216 Prospect Street 
Port Orchard, WA 98366 

OWNER: (Name and address) 
City of Port Orchard 
216 Prospect Street 

Port Orchard, WA 98366 

CONTRACT INFORMATION: 
Contract For: Construction 

Date: May 23, 2023 

ARCHITECT: (Name and address) 
Rice Fergus Miller, Inc. 
275 5th Street, Suite I 00 
Bremerton, WA 9833 7 

CHAN E ORDER INFORMATION: 
Change Order Number: 002 

Date: November 8, 2023 

CONTRACTOR: (Name and address) 
Lincoln Construction Inc. 
11803101stAveE,Suite201 
Puyallup, WA 98373 

THE CONTRACT IS CHANGED AS FOLLOWS: 
(Insert a detailed description of the change and, if applicable, attach or reference specific exhibits. Also include agreed upon adjustments 
attributable to executed Construction Change Directives.) 
Change Order Proposal: 
COP 08 - Additioanl girts for siding attachment $92,579.00 

The original Contract Sum was 
The net change by previously authorized Change Orders 
The Contract Sum prior to this Change Order was 
The Contract Sum will be increased by this Change Order in the amount of 
The new Contract Sum including this Change Order will be 

The Contract Time will be increased by Zero (0) days. 
The new date of Substantial Completion will be 

$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 

8,245,941.00 
44,711.00 

8,290,652.00 
92,579.00 

8,383,231.00 

NOTE: This Change Order does not include adjustments to the Contract Sum or Guaranteed Maximum Price, or the Contract Time, that have 
been authorized by Construction Change Directive until the cost and time have been agreed upon by both the Owner and Contractor, in which 
case a Change Order is executed to supersede the Construction Change Directive. 

NOT VALID UNTIL SIGNED BY THE ARCHITECT, CONTRACTOR AND OWNER. 

Dean Kelly 
PRINTED NAME AND TITLE 

November 8, 2023 

Lincoln Construction 
CONTRACTOR (Firm name) 

7~'R~ 
SIGNATURE 
Thomas Romberg-Project Manager 

PRINTED NAME AND TITLE 
11-15-2023 

DATE DATE 

AIA Document G701 - 2017. Copyright© 1979, 1987, 2000 , 2001 and 2017. All rights reserved. "The American Institute of Architects," "American Institute of 
Architects," "AIA," the AIA Logo, and "AIA Contract Documents" are trademarks of The American Instil te of Architects. This document was produced at 19: 12:33 1 
ET on 11/08/2023 nder Order No.3104238988 which expires on 07/26/2024, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in 
accordance with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail docinfo@aiacontracts.com. 
User Notes: (3B9ADA53) 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 77F5F89C-4330-4117-A788-61088F983560

Page 245 of 263



CHANGE PROPOSAL REQUEST Lincoln Construction

To: COP NO: 08

CCD/PR No.:  

Date:  

Project:  

Attn.:  LCI Project No.:  1257

A. TOTAL MATERIAL/EQ BASE COST -$                                          
B. TOTAL LABOR COST -$                                          

SUBTOTAL -$                                            

C. OVERHEAD AND PROFIT (15%) -$                                          

SUBTOTAL -$                                            

D. SUBCONTRACT COST 80,252.00$                               

E. OVERHEAD AND PROFIT ON

SUBCONTRACT COST (12%) 9,630.24$                                 

SUBTOTAL 89,882.24$                                 

H. BOND (GC ONLY) 2,696.47$                                 

SUBTOTAL 2,696.47$                                   

TOTAL CHANGE PROPOSAL COST 92,579$                                      
CONTRACT TIME ADJUSTMENT (DAYS) TBD

Thomas Romberg 0
CONTRACTOR Tom Romberg

DATE

10/11/2023

10/11/2023

Port Orchard City Hall

Jason Ritter-Lopatowski

Lincoln Construction, Inc.

 01114.00  g3.3 (2)

DocuSign Envelope ID: 77F5F89C-4330-4117-A788-61088F983560

Page 246 of 263



Lincoln Construction Change Order Request

To: Date:
COP #: 08

Owner COP/CCD/PR #:

Re: Port Orchard City Hall

Please provide a change order for the following work:

Total price per attached breakdown:
State and local sales tax: include X not included
Extension of time:

We have proceeded with the work
Work will not proceed without formal authorization

This price is good for 5 days from the above date, after which this request is subject to revision.

Sincerely,
Thomas Romberg-Project Manager

10/11/2023

 $                                                           92,579 

0

Jason Ritter-Lopatowski
RFM Architects

Per engineering, change the Strongirt System to 16OC in lieu of 24OC.

DocuSign Envelope ID: 77F5F89C-4330-4117-A788-61088F983560

Page 247 of 263



Lincoln Construction

CHANGE ORDER REQUEST SUMMARY

Port Orchard City Hall COP: 008 REV: 000 DATE: 10/11/2023

DESCRIPTION: Owner COP/CCD/PR #:

LABOR HOURS RATE TOTAL
PROJECT MANAGER X 95.00 = -$                      
SUPERINTENDENT X 88.95 = -$                      
ASSISTANT SUPERINTENDENT X 85.25 = -$                      
CARPENTER X 82.25 = -$                      
LABORER X 73.50 = -$                      

X = -$                      
X = -$                      

SUBTOTAL -$                      

SMALL TOOL ALLOWANCE @ 0.0% -$                      
SUBTOTAL -$                      

MARK-UP @ 15.0% -$                      
TOTAL LABOR -$                      

MATERIALS/EQUIPMENT PHASE CODE UNITS RATE
1 X = -$                      
1 X = -$                      
1 X = -$                      
1 X = -$                      

SUBTOTAL -$                      
USE TAX ON MATERIALS AND EQUIPMENT 0.0% -$                      
MARK-UP @ 15.0% -$                      

TOTAL MATERIAL/EQUIPMENT -$                      

SUBCONTRACTS PHASE CODE UNITS RATE
1 X = -$                      
1 X 79,897.00 = 79,897.00$           

Commercial Insulation 1 X 355.00 = 355.00$                
1 X = -$                      
1 X = -$                      

X = -$                      
X = -$                      
X = -$                      

SUBTOTAL 80,252.00$           
MARK-UP @ Sub Direct Cost 79,897 12.0% Less Sub Fee 9,630.24$             

TOTAL SUBCONTRACTS 89,882.24$           

PROPOSAL SUBTOTAL 89,882.24$           

BONDS/Liability/Builders Risk/B&O Tax 3.000% 2,696.47$             

PROPOSAL TOTAL 92,578.71$           

Updated: 9/30/2011 Page 4 of  6

DocuSign Envelope ID: 77F5F89C-4330-4117-A788-61088F983560

Page 248 of 263



1

Tom Romberg

To: tom romberg
Subject: FW: POCH Stainless Steel Screw Option for Exterior Framing at 24" On Center

 
 

Thank you, 
 
Tom Romberg |LCi  
Lincoln Construction Inc  Est. 1953 
11803 101st Ave Ct E, Suite 201 Puyallup, WA 98373 
Cell 253‐606‐8350 
Ofc 253.847.6414 | Fax 253.847.6806 
 

From: Phil Clark <phil@devcoengineering.com>  
Sent: Friday, September 22, 2023 8:35 AM 
To: Tom Romberg <tom.romberg@lincolnnw.com>; John Saari <John@cisinsulation.com> 
Cc: John Brown <JohnBrown@cisinsulation.com>; Jeff Tiegs <jeff.tiegs@lincolnnw.com>; Bill Markham 
<bill.markham@lincolnnw.com>; George Drabner <george@cisinsulation.com>; Brooke Powers 
<brooke@devcoengineering.com> 
Subject: RE: POCH Stainless Steel Screw Option for Exterior Framing at 24" On Center 
 
Tom/John, 
The capacities of the proposed alternate screws are comparable to the original screws we specified.   
However, the 20ga studs at 24” o.c. rather than 16” o.c. does cause issue at the building corners (zone 5 wind loads).   
This is what will be needed: 
At zone 5 (12’ from building corners): Strongirts at 12” o.c. max. with (2) screws each stud. 
At zone 4 (the remainder): Strongirts at 16” o.c. max. with (2) screws each stud.   
 
The attached pdf shows where the zone 5 locations occur.  Note: the entire clock tower would be zone 5. 
 
Please review and give feedback. 
Thanks, 
 

Phil Clark 
CAD/IT/BIM Manager 
Devco Engineering, Inc. 
541-757-8991 x212 

 

phil@devcoengineering.com 
Mail: PO Box 1211, Corvallis, OR 97339 
Office: 245 NE Conifer Blvd., Corvallis, OR 97330 
This email and any files transmitted with it are confidential and intended solely for the use of the individual or entity to whom they are addressed. If you have 
received this email in error, please notify the system manager. Please notify the sender immediately by email if you have received this email by mistake and 
delete this email from your system. If you are not the intended recipient, you are notified that disclosing, copying, distributing or taking any action in reliance on the 
contents of this information is strictly prohibited.  

 

 

 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 77F5F89C-4330-4117-A788-61088F983560

Page 249 of 263



Provided to Builders Exchange of WA, Inc. For usage Conditions Agreement see www.bxwa.com - Always Verify Scal

ZONE 5

12
'-0

"

12'-0"

DocuSign Envelope ID: 77F5F89C-4330-4117-A788-61088F983560

Page 250 of 263



Commercial Insulation Service
7930 Center St. SW P: 253-241-9140
Tumwater, WA 98501 JohnBrown@cisinsulation.com

CIS Job Number 2342 Date 10/3/2023 COR 1 REV-1

Job Name Port Orchard City Hall Renovations
Qty UM Rate Total

Labor 
Foreman HR 97.59$       -$              
Journeyman 96 HR 92.63$       8,892.48$     
Journeyman 56 HR 92.63$       5,187.28$     Zone 5 add

Journeyman OT HR 138.95$     -$              
Subtotal 14,079.76$   

Materials
StronGirts 560 EA 53.76$       30,105.60$   
Screws 22,400 EA 0.30$         6,720.00$     
Credit screws 5,040 EA (0.19)$        (957.60)$       Credit

StronGirts 300 EA 53.76$       16,128.00$   Zone 5 add

Screws 3000 EA 0.30$         900.00$        Zone 5 add

-$           -$              
-$           -$              

Sub Total 52,896.00$   
Equipment -$              
Boom Lift / Fuel 1 EA 1,400.00$  1,400.00$     
Sundries 1 EA 250.00$     250.00$        
Boom / Sundries 1 EA 850.00$     850.00$        Zone 5 add

Sub Total 2,500.00$     
Grand-Subtotal 69,475.8$     Labor, Materials, Equipment
Consumables -$              
B&O Use Tax -$              
Environmental Fee -$              

Sub Total 69,475.8$     >>>> Total  $           69,475.76 

Cost of Time
Time Extension day 0.00 -$              
Delays day 0.00 -$              

Sub Total -$              -$                      

Description of work

Subtotal 69,475.76$            

Allowed Markup 15% $10,421.36

Additional Working Days COR 1 REV-1 Total $79,897

indirect costs based on information provided by the owner.

Contractor:
John Brown - Estimator/PM 253-241-9140 Date 10/3/2023

Signature

Approved by:
Date

Signature

CHANGE ORDER REQUEST

This proposal excludes sales tax and  includes any and all necessary adjustments to the construction schedule and all direct and 

Change StronGirts from 24" oc to 16" oc, double the screws needed for 
attachment and change to Stainless Steel #14 x 2" Hex Washer Head Self-

Drilling. Change StronGirts from 24" oc to 12" oc at Zone 5. 

REVISED ON FOLLOWING
SHEET.  NO CHANGE IN

PRICE

$ -11,532.64
$ 57,943.12

Total $11,532.64 to be remove
from this COP (+/-)

$425

$2,593.64

Should be $450

If this number was to go from 24"
to 12" than 16" to 12" should be
an $8,064 add.

This should be 16" oc

DocuSign Envelope ID: 77F5F89C-4330-4117-A788-61088F983560

Page 251 of 263

mailto:JohnBrown@cisinsulation.com


Commercial Insulation Service
7930 Center St. SW P: 253-241-9140
Tumwater, WA 98501 JohnBrown@cisinsulation.com

CIS Job Number 2342 Date 10/23/2023 COR 1 REV-2

Job Name Port Orchard City Hall Renovations
Qty UM Rate Total

Labor 
Foreman HR 97.59$       -$              
Journeyman 96 HR 92.63$       8,892.48$     24" to 16" change

Journeyman 56 HR 92.63$       5,187.28$     Zone 5 add 16" to 12" change

Journeyman OT HR 138.95$     -$              
Subtotal 14,079.76$   

Materials
StronGirts 560 EA 53.76$       30,105.60$   24" to 16" change

Screws 22,400 EA 0.30$         6,720.00$     
Credit screws 5,040 EA (0.19)$        (957.60)$       Credit

StronGirts 300 EA 53.76$       16,128.00$   Zone 5 add 16" to 12" change

Screws 3000 EA 0.30$         900.00$        Zone 5 add 16" to 12" change

-$           -$              
-$           -$              

Sub Total 52,896.00$   
Equipment -$              
Boom Lift / Fuel 1 EA 1,400.00$  1,400.00$     
Sundries 1 EA 250.00$     250.00$        
Boom / Sundries 1 EA 850.00$     850.00$        Zone 5 add

Sub Total 2,500.00$     
Grand-Subtotal 69,475.8$     Labor, Materials, Equipment
Consumables -$              
B&O Use Tax -$              
Environmental Fee -$              

Sub Total 69,475.8$     >>>> Total  $           69,475.76 

Cost of Time
Time Extension day 0.00 -$              
Delays day 0.00 -$              

Sub Total -$              -$                      

Description of work

Subtotal 69,475.76$            

Allowed Markup 15% $10,421.36

Additional Working Days COR 1 REV-2 Total $79,897

indirect costs based on information provided by the owner.

Contractor:
John Brown - Estimator/PM 253-241-9140 Date 10/23/2023

Signature

Approved by:
Date

Signature

CHANGE ORDER REQUEST

This proposal excludes sales tax and  includes any and all necessary adjustments to the construction schedule and all direct and 

Change StronGirts from 24" oc to 16" oc, double the screws needed for 
attachment and change to Stainless Steel #14 x 2" Hex Washer Head Self-

Drilling. Change StronGirts from 16" oc to 12" oc at Zone 5. 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 77F5F89C-4330-4117-A788-61088F983560

Page 252 of 263

mailto:JohnBrown@cisinsulation.com


Provided to Builders Exchange of WA, Inc. For usage Conditions Agreement see www.bxwa.com - Always Verify Scal

ZONE 5

12
'-0

"

12'-0"

DocuSign Envelope ID: 77F5F89C-4330-4117-A788-61088F983560

Page 253 of 263



~o/d 
ORCHARD _____,......-- --- .. - 

Memorandum 
TO: File 

FROM: K. Chris Hammer, PE, PMP - City Engineer 'J::.(!71 
DATE: October 31, 2023 

REGARDING: COP-008; Girt spacing 

Lincoln and their subcontractor Commercial Insultation Service allege that a different girt 
system is needed than what was specified in the bid documents. Girts at 24 inches on center 
vertically were provided in the bid. The specifications require that the Contractor provide 
engineering for the new girt system. Engineering by Devco indicates that tighter spacing for the 
Girts is needed to meet wind criteria. 

The City's consultant team could have provided engineering for the Girt system and specified 
the size and spacing of the girts at different locations in the building so that adequate 
information was provided for bidding. It was not practical for bidders to complete engineering 
of the girt system to bid the project. The assumption that exterior studs are at 16 inches on 
center and girts at 24 inches on center was a reasonable assumption at the time of bidding. 
Exterior metal stud spacing of 16 inches on center is common for building construction. 

Both the Contractors Engineer and the City's Consultants agree that locations with type 4 and 
type 5 wind loads need tighter girt spacing. Type 5 locations include building corners and the 
clock tower. Refer to the redline plans provided in COP-008. This necessitates the addition of 
girts and modifications to insulation. Girts are needed at 16 inches on center in most location 
and 12 inches on center at corners and the clock tower. 

The City's consultant should have provided more information on the girt system at the time of 
bidding including the existing stud size and spacing and preliminary girt size and spacing. The 
bidder did not have adequate information to bid the project. The bidder made reasonable 
assumptions in bidding on the project. Therefore, the City agrees with the Contractors' basis 
for the change proposal. 

PUBLIC WORKS 
216 PROSPECT ST PORT ORCHARD, WA 98366 

PHONE (360)876.4991 I FAX (360) 876.4980 
EMAIL: PUBLICWORKS@PORTORCHARDWA.GOV 

WWW. PORTORCHARDWA.GOV 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 77F5F89C-4330-4117-A788-61088F983560

Page 254 of 263



City of Port Orchard 
Council Meeting Minutes 
Work Study Session Meeting of November 21, 2023 
          
 

 
CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL 
 
Mayor Putaansuu called the meeting to order at 6:30 p.m. 
 
Roll call was taken by the City Clerk as follows: 
 

Mayor Pro-Tem Trenary Present  
Councilmember Chang Present  

 Councilmember Clauson Present  
Councilmember Cucciardi Absent  
Councilmember Diener Present  
Councilmember Lucarelli Present 
Councilmember Rosapepe Present  

 Mayor Putaansuu  Present via Zoom  
  
Staff present: Public Works Director Ryan, Utilities Manager Brown, Senior Planner Fisk, and City 
Clerk Wallace. 
 
The meeting streamed live on YouTube. 
 
Pledge of Allegiance (Time Stamp 00:24) 
 
Mayor Pro-Tem Trenary led the audience and Council in the Pledge of Allegiance 
 
1.  2023-2025 Legislative Agenda (Time Stamp 00:45) 
 
Josh Weiss and Annika Vaughn with Gordon Thomas Honeywell Governmental Affairs discussed the 
draft legislative priorities which included the Port Orchard Community Event Center, Bay Street sea 
level rise-resilience funding, vehicular pursuits, police training academy and BLEA (Basic Law 
Enforcement Academy), funding for substance use disorder treatment and Blake implementation, 
Foster Pilot Program, and Sedgwick roundabouts at SR16/SR160 intersections. 
 
Mayor Putaansuu explained the formal legislative agenda is going before Council on December 12th, 
2023, for approval. 
 
Additional discussion was held regarding funding for education, revenue forecasting, print media and 
notices, and building relationships with delegates. 
 
Council Direction: No direction was given to staff. 

Page 255 of 263



Minutes of November 21, 2023 
 Page 2 of 4  

 
2. Stormwater Level of Service and Rates (Time Stamp 23:35) 
 
Utilities Manger Brown pointed out that on September 12th, Council received a presentation on the 
Stormwater Comprehensive Plan. She said a part of the plan is level of service and is asking Council 
to discuss so staff can have direction moving forward with a rate ordinance in the future. Currently 
the City is working on level 1, which barely meets the minimum requirements of the current permit. 
 
Discussion was held regarding staffing between levels 1 and 2, additional benefits for level 3, 
differences between all levels, incidents, getting information out to the public, capital projects, 
capital facility charges, fixing existing deficiencies, and levels of service in neighboring agencies. 
 
Mayor Putaansuu explained level 2 is more proactive and is the staff recommendation. This is also a 
five-year plan so we should be discussing this again in 5-years. Staff will be bringing forward the plan 
next week for adoption and the rate recommendation will be before Council on December 12th for 
adoption. 
 
Utilities Manager Brown said staff identified 20 capital projects that need to be done and put the top 
10 into this program. They are listed on the City’s website. 
 
Council Direction: Council directed staff to move forward with Level 2 option A and not utilizing the 
high growth scenario. 
 
3. 2023 Comprehensive Plan Amendments (Time Stamp 50:38) 
 
Senior Planner Fisk said earlier this year, Council saw a Comprehensive Plan Amendment, but we 
usually only do them once a year. In this case, this is the second set you are going to see. Included in 
the Council packet is the Capital Facilities Element and the Transportation Improvement Program 
(TIP).  
 
The only change in the Capital Facilities Element is a line item which was added related to property 
acquisition for City facilities. In the TIP, adjustments were made for project schedules, priorities 
funding, completion of some projects, grant funding, accelerating schedules, and an addition of a 
new project for right-of-way acquisition.  
 
This has been discussed with the Land Use Committee and the Planning Commission held a public 
hearing. This is scheduled to go back before Council at their next week’s Council meeting. 
 
Council briefly discussed the plan and did not voice any concerns with the proposed amendments. 
 
Council Direction: No direction was given to staff. 
 
4. An Ordinance Amending POMC 20.132 – Temporary Signs (Time Stamp 56:13) 
 

Page 256 of 263



Minutes of November 21, 2023 
 Page 3 of 4  

 
Senior Planner Fisk explained a little over a year ago, Council asked staff to start reviewing the 
increase in temporary signs in public right-of-way. Beginning fall of 2022, staff documented the 
existence of the signs at 7 locations in Port Orchard. They documented with photos and also gathered 
police crash data at those intersections and noticed there was an increase of crashes in the study 
areas. This study was done for over a year. The results and a draft ordinance were presented to the 
Planning Commission who recommended approval of the ordinance.  
 
The ordinance identifies corridors where temporary signs may be placed which include Tremont 
Avenue, Lund Avenue, Sedgwick Road, and Bethel Avenue, but certain criteria were placed on the 
locations. Currently, signs can be located anywhere except within a median or inside a roundabout 
and it can be placed along the side of a road in the public right-of-way without any limitations. Based 
upon the data they gathered, they want to keep the signs out of intersections. 
 
The ordinance also requires a sign to be at least 50-feet from an intersection and cannot be placed 
adjacent to public property, and the area must be accessible by a pedestrian facility, sidewalk, or 
walkway. 
 
There are 2 ordinances for Council to consider. One is the Planning Commission’s recommendation, 
and the other is staff’s recommendation which added another criteria where the sign must be 50-
feet from where the street curve ends.  
 
Additional discussion was held regarding how to show the public where and how the signs could be 
placed, enforcing the sign code, content of signs, different sign regulations, safety, sign storage, and 
the 2 proposed ordinances. 
 
Council Direction: Council directed staff to move forward with the staff recommended ordinance 
and to hold a public hearing on the proposed ordinance before adoption. 
 
5. Update to Fee Schedules for Community Development and Public Works (Time Stamp 1:16:26) 
 
Senior Planner Fisk mentioned the current fee schedule was last updated in April of 2022. Since then, 
many changes have occurred since which include the adoption of the August ICC Building Valuation 
Table, fees added for the review of multiple elevations when submitted with a Basic Plan review to 
reflect processing time, clarification of hourly rate charges for plan review by staff members when 
multiple revisions are submitted, clarification of inspection fee charged at hourly rate as indicated in 
the fees tables, adding the Fireworks Display fee to the Fire permit fee table, updates to the City’s 
refund policies, establish rates for Fire Code permits, clarification of charges for 3rd party consultant 
review for building and fire code permits when using the hourly rate, fees added or increased to 
reflect processing time for code-related requirements, minimum charge for work without a permit 
penalty increased from $65 to $75, fee added for published notifications ($300 each), clarification of 
payment of outstanding Hearing Examiner fees, and clarification of notary services. 
 
Additional discussion was held including adding additional staff, charging a technology fee, rate 
differences, barriers for housing costs and missing middle housing. 

Page 257 of 263



Minutes of November 21, 2023 
 Page 4 of 4  

 
Council Direction: No direction was given to staff. 
 
GOOD OF THE ORDER (Time Stamp 1:23:49) 
 
Councilmember Diener asked that the legislative priorities that were discussed tonight be placed on 
the main page of the City’s website or in a Facebook post. 
 
Mayor Putaansuu explained that tomorrow, the temporary signals will be removed at the new 
roundabout on SR166/Bay Street, but they ran out of working days for asphalt paving. This will need 
to wait until spring when there are warmer temperatures. He also spoke about lighting and 
sidewalks, and voiced his frustration with the project and explained this is not a City project. 
 
Councilmember Rosapepe asked Council Elect Morrissey if he had anything for the Good of the 
Order. 
 
Council Elect John Morrissey replied he does have some questions regarding signage when it comes 
to real estate and construction.  
 
Councilmember Clauson mentioned he will be on vacation next week and will not be attending the 
Council meeting. 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
The meeting adjourned at 7:59 p.m. No other action was taken. Audio/Visual was successful. 

 

 
          
Brandy Wallace, MMC, City Clerk   Robert Putaansuu, Mayor 

Page 258 of 263



City of Port Orchard 
Council Meeting Minutes 
Regular Meeting of November 28, 2023 
           
 
 

1. CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL 
 
Mayor Putaansuu called the meeting to order at 6:30 p.m.  
 
Roll call was taken by the City Clerk as follows: 
 
 Mayor Pro-Tem Trenary Absent  

Councilmember Chang Present  
 Councilmember Clauson Absent 

Councilmember Cucciardi Present  
Councilmember Diener Present via Zoom 
Councilmember Lucarelli Present  
Councilmember Rosapepe Present  
Mayor Putaansuu  Present 

  
Staff present: Public Works Director Ryan, Community Development Director Bond, City Attorney 
Reitan, Police Chief Brown, and City Clerk Wallace. 
 
Staff present via Zoom: City Attorney Archer 
 
The meeting streamed live on YouTube. 
 
A. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE (Time Stamp 00:18) 

 
Mayor Putaansuu led the audience and Council in the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA (Time Stamp: 00:37) 
 
MOTION: By Councilmember Cucciardi, seconded by Councilmember Lucarelli, to approve the 
agenda as presented. 
 
The motion carried. 
 
3. CITIZENS COMMENTS (Time Stamp 01:34) 
 
There were no citizen comments. 
 

Page 259 of 263



 

 
November 28, 2023, City Council Meeting Minutes 

Page 2 of 5 
 

4. CONSENT AGENDA (Time Stamp: 02:08) 
A. Approval of Voucher Nos. 86917 through 86947 including bank drafts in the amount of 

$113,134.89 and EFT’s in the amount of $173,855.88 totaling $286,990.77. 
B. Approval of Payroll Check Nos. 86948 through 86956 including bank drafts and EFT’s in the 

amount of $248,746.21 and Direct Deposits in the amount of $231,868.61 totaling $480,614.82. 
C. Adoption of a Resolution Authorizing the Purchase of Water Meters and Associated Parts from 

Ferguson Waterworks Via DES Contract No. 01118 (Resolution No. 110-23) 
D. Adoption of a Resolution Adopting the 2024 Legislative Agenda (Resolution No. 111-23) 
E. Approval of an Interlocal Agreement with Kitsap County for the Provision of Juvenile Detention 

Facilities (Contract No. 004-24) 
F. Adoption of a Resolution Granting Final Plat Approval for McCormick Woods North Phase III, 

Division 4 (Resolution No. 112-23) 
G. Approval of an Amendment to Contract No. 072-22 with Axon Enterprise, Inc. for Body-worn 

Cameras  
H. Excusal of Councilmembers Clauson and Trenary from Council Meeting for Personal Reasons 

 
MOTION: By Councilmember Rosapepe, seconded by Councilmember Cucciardi, to approve the 
Consent Agenda as presented. 
 
The motion moved. 
 
5. PRESENTATION 
 
There were no presentations. 

 
6. PUBLIC HEARING  
 
A. Ordinance Amending Port Orchard Municipal Code Chapter 5.60 Fireworks (Time Stamp 02:46) 
 
Mayor Putaansuu opened the public hearing, and there being no testimony, closed the public hearing 
at 6:34 p.m. 
 
7. BUSINESS ITEMS 
 
A. Adoption of an Ordinance Amending Port Orchard Municipal Code Chapter 5.60 Fireworks 

(Time Stamp 04:53) 
  

MOTION: By Councilmember Rosapepe, seconded by Councilmember Cucciardi, to approve an 
ordinance authorizing the revisions to POMC 5.60 as presented. 
 
The motion carried.  
(Ordinance No. 035-23) 
 

Page 260 of 263



 

 
November 28, 2023, City Council Meeting Minutes 

Page 3 of 5 
 

B. Adoption of an Ordinance Adopting the 2023 Comprehensive Plan Amendments (Time Stamp 
06:12) 

 
MOTION: By Councilmember Lucarelli, seconded by Councilmember Rosapepe, to approve the 2023 
Comprehensive Plan Amendments as presented  
 

The motion carried.  
(Ordinance No. 036-23) 
 
C. Adoption of a Resolution Approving a Contract with KPFF Consulting Engineers for the 

SR166/Bay Street Reconstruction (Time Stamp 08:04) 
 

MOTION: By Councilmember Chang, seconded by Councilmember Rosapepe, to adopt a resolution, 
approving and authorizing the Mayor to execute a Contract (Once concurrence is received from 
FHWA) with KPFF Consulting Engineers for the SR166/Bay Street Reconstruction Project in an amount 
of $1,307,006.59 and documenting the procurement procedures.  
 
The motion carried.  
(Resolution No. 113-23 and Contract No. 099-23) 
 
D. Adoption of a Resolution Adopting the City of Port Orchard 2023 Stormwater and Watersheds 

Comprehensive Plan (Time Stamp 15:14) 
 
MOTION: By Councilmember Lucarelli, seconded by Councilmember Cucciardi, to approve a 
Resolution adopting the City of Port Orchard Stormwater and Watersheds Comprehensive Plan. 
 

The motion carried.  
(Resolution No. 114-23) 
 
E. Adoption of a Resolution Accepting the Lodging Tax Advisory Committee’s Recommendation 

for the 2024 Funding Allocation (Time Stamp 18:09) 
 
MOTION: By Councilmember Cucciardi, seconded by Councilmember Lucarelli, to adopt a resolution 
adopting the Lodging Tax Advisory Committee’s recommendation for the 2024 funding allocation, as 
presented. 
 

The motion carried.  
(Resolution No. 115-23) 
 
F. Approval of a Purchase and Sale Agreement for Kitsap County Tax Parcel No. 4650-015-006-

0007 for Additional Staffing Needs (Time Stamp 29:05) 
 

Page 261 of 263



 

 
November 28, 2023, City Council Meeting Minutes 

Page 4 of 5 
 

MOTION: By Councilmember Cucciardi, seconded by Councilmember Rosapepe, to authorize the 
Mayor to execute the Purchase and Sale agreement and authorize the deposit of $10,000 in earnest 
money. 

 
The motion carried.  
 
8. DISCUSSION ITEMS (No Action to be Taken) 
 
There were no discussion items. 
 
9. REPORTS OF COUNCIL COMMITTEES (Time Stamp: 33:49) 
 
Councilmember Chang reported on the November 28th Transportation Committee meeting. 
 
Councilmember Lucarelli reported the Festival of Chimes and Lights event is this coming Saturday 
[December 2nd] and provided a brief update of the event. 
 
10. REPORT OF THE MAYOR (Time Stamp 40:37) 
The Mayor reported on the following: 

• King tides. 
 

11. REPORT OF DEPARTMENT HEADS (Time Stamp 41:39) 
 
Public Works Director Ryan reported on public works staff and decorating for the Festival of Chimes 
and Lights, spraying deicer, and coordinating with the police department on king tides. 
 
Police Chief Brown reported on Kitsap Shop with a Cop at Walmart. 
 
12. CITIZEN COMMENTS (Time Stamp 43:34) 
 
There were no citizen comments. 
 
13. EXECUTIVE SESSION 
 
No executive session was held. 
 
14. CITY COUNCIL GOOD OF THE ORDER (Time Stamp: 43:56) 
 
Councilmember Chang spoke about a potential sponsorship for the Holiday Good Neighbor Awards. 
 
15. ADJOURNMENT 
 
The meeting adjourned at 7:15 p.m. No other action was taken. Audio/Visual was successful. 

 

Page 262 of 263



         
Brandy Wallace, MMC, City Clerk  Rob Putaansuu, Mayor 

Page 263 of 263


	4C 01 SR-PSE_CityHallConservationMeasures(10788492.1)
	City of Port Orchard
	Agenda Staff Report


	4C 02 RESOLUTION-PSE_CityHallConservationMeasures (002)(10788491.1)
	4C 03 PRESIGNED - P1377771.1 City of Port Orchard - City Hall
	4D 01 SR- C001-15  Aspect Consulting Amend 2(10788503.1)
	Agenda Staff Report

	4D C001-15-ApectConsultingAmend2-Council
	C001-15-AspectConculting-Amendment packet-template.pdf
	ASPECT -Proposal_2024 to 2025_2023.11.30_140310.pdf
	Project No. AS140310A
	Background and Coordination with Others
	Scope of Work
	Schedule and Cost Estimate
	Closing




	4E 01 SR RFM Amendment #12
	Agenda Staff Report

	4E 02 Amendment #12(10788500.1)
	4E 03 KPG Landscape 2024 Hourly Rates
	4E 04 ELS Biologist 2024 Hourly Rates
	Rate Schedule—2024

	4E 05 231213 POCEC DNR KPFF Survey Civil JARPA Hourly Rates
	4E 06 RFM Arch-PM 2023 Hourly Rates
	4E 07 S+BA MEP 2023 Hourly Rates
	4F 01 STAFF REPORT-Opensquare(10788816.1)
	Agenda Staff Report

	4F 02 RESOLUTION - Opensquare Furniture Design Services(10788810.1)
	4F 03 21373_Port Orchard City Hall copied
	4F 04 121919-STI-Contract
	5A 1 Staff Report McCormick revised DA Hearing
	Agenda Staff Report

	6A 01 Staff Report McCormick revised DA Business Item
	Agenda Staff Report

	6A 02 McCormick Dev Agrmt Ordinance
	6A 03 First Amendment to McCormick Transportation DA  12-6-2023 Clean(10728979.7)
	6A 04 3.1_DA Ex A1
	6A 05 3.2_DA Ex A2 Fee Credit area
	Page 1

	6A 06 3.3_DA Ex B1
	6A 07 3.4_DA Ex B2 New Concurrency map
	Page 1

	6A 08 3.5_DA Ex C original boundary
	Page 1

	6A 09 3.6_DA Ex D first revision
	Page 1

	6B 01 2023.12.19-Staff Report-Ordinance Amendment 2023-2024 Biennial Budget-Final(10788494.1)-Final
	Agenda Staff Report

	6B 02 2023.12.19-Ordinance Amendment 2023-2024 Biennial Budget(10788496.1)-Final
	6B 03 2023.12.19-Income Statement
	6B 04 Salary Schedule -Clean Eff 1-14-24 revised
	Clean Copy

	6C 01 Staff Report new 2024 positions v2(10788046.1)
	Agenda Staff Report

	6C 02 Ordinance 2024 new positions v2(10788118.1) final
	6C 03 Appendix A new positions 2024 v2
	6D 01 COPO COB Franchise Agreement Staff Report(10786100.1)
	Agenda Staff Report

	6D 02 COPO COB Franchise FINAL(10669603.7)
	6E 01 SR Appointment 2VariousBoards
	Agenda Staff Report

	6E 02  Res Board and Commission Appointments
	6F 01 SR Freeman Property Acquisition for Pottery(10788803.1)
	Agenda Staff Report

	6F 02 RES -Freeman Property Aquisition for Pottery(10788791.1)
	6F 03-Freeman Offer Letter
	6F 04 2-Freeman Warranty Deed
	6F 05-Freeman Real Property Voucher
	6G 01 SR Magneson Property Acquisition for Pottery(10788686.1)
	Agenda Staff Report

	6G 02 RES -Magneson Property Aquisition for Pottery(10788784.1)
	6G 03 MagnesonOffer Letter &Warranty Deed ptn34240140232002-Magneson
	6H 01 Staff Report-Reimbursement Resolution-730 Prospect Street(10788673.1)-Final
	Agenda Staff Report

	6H 02 Reimbursement Resolution-730 Prospect(10788679.1)-Final
	6I 01 STAFF REPORT- C048-23-CO3-City Hall Improvements CN (002)(10788493.1)
	City of Port Orchard
	Agenda Staff Report


	6I 02 Change Order No. 3
	6I 03 COP- 013,014 Initialed
	6I 04 COP- 09, 10R2, 11, 12 Initialed
	6I 05 048-23  - Lincoln Construction, Inc.   - Supplement _ Change Order 1
	6I 06 02_Change_Order_No._2-_Signed
	POCH COP 008 Change Strongirt System Per Engineering to 16OC_RFM Comments
	POCH COP 008 Change Strongirt System Per Engineering to 16OC
	CSC COP Cover
	Lincoln COR Cover
	Lincoln COR Detail

	Siding Attachment Engineering Email
	Zone 5 Plan
	Commercial Insulation COR#1 - REV-1
	COR#1 - REV-1
	Zone 5 Plan



	6J 01 20231121 Minutes
	6K 01 20231128 Minutes
	2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA (Time Stamp: 00:37)
	4. CONSENT AGENDA (Time Stamp: 02:08)
	8. DISCUSSION ITEMS (No Action to be Taken)
	15. ADJOURNMENT


	ADPD233.tmp
	...
	Mayor:
	Mark Trenary (Mayor Pro-Tempore)
	E/D & Tourism Committee, Chair
	Utilities/Sewer Advisory Committee
	Transportation Committee
	KRCC-alt
	Shawn Cucciardi
	Finance Committee
	E/D & Tourism Committee
	Lodging Tax, Chair
	Fred Chang
	Economic Development & Tourism Committee
	Land Use Committee
	Transportation Committee
	Jay Rosapepe
	Finance Committee,
	KRCC, PSRC-alt, PSRC Transpol-alt, KRCC Transpol-alt, KRCC Planpol-alt,
	John Clauson
	Finance Committee, Chair
	Utilities/Sewer Advisory Committee
	Kitsap Public Health District-alt
	Cindy Lucarelli
	Festival of Chimes & Lights Committee, Chair
	Utilities/Sewer Advisory Committee, Chair
	Kitsap Economic Development Alliance
	Scott Diener
	Land Use Committee, Chair
	Transportation Committee
	Department Directors:
	Nicholas Bond, AICP
	Development Director
	Denis Ryan
	Public Works Director
	Tim Drury
	Municipal Court Judge
	Noah Crocker, M.B.A.
	Finance Director
	Matt Brown
	Police Chief
	Brandy Wallace, MMC, CPRO
	City Clerk
	Meeting Location:
	Contact us:

	ADP63FA.tmp
	...
	Mayor:
	Mark Trenary (Mayor Pro-Tempore)
	E/D & Tourism Committee, Chair
	Utilities/Sewer Advisory Committee
	Transportation Committee
	KRCC-alt
	Shawn Cucciardi
	Finance Committee
	E/D & Tourism Committee
	Lodging Tax, Chair
	Fred Chang
	Economic Development & Tourism Committee
	Land Use Committee
	Transportation Committee
	Jay Rosapepe
	Finance Committee,
	KRCC, PSRC-alt, PSRC Transpol-alt, KRCC Transpol-alt, KRCC Planpol-alt,
	John Clauson
	Finance Committee, Chair
	Utilities/Sewer Advisory Committee
	Kitsap Public Health District-alt
	Cindy Lucarelli
	Festival of Chimes & Lights Committee, Chair
	Utilities/Sewer Advisory Committee, Chair
	Kitsap Economic Development Alliance
	Scott Diener
	Land Use Committee, Chair
	Transportation Committee
	Department Directors:
	Nicholas Bond, AICP
	Development Director
	Denis Ryan
	Public Works Director
	Tim Drury
	Municipal Court Judge
	Noah Crocker, M.B.A.
	Finance Director
	Matt Brown
	Police Chief
	Brandy Wallace, MMC, CPRO
	City Clerk
	Meeting Location:
	Contact us:


	Button1: 


